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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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OF 1934
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OR
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(212) 277-7100
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) d¢fie Act:
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) dfie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.  Yed No
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subject to such filing requirements for the pastfgs. YesX No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsto Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gribnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YIXI No O



Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
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10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated file|

Non-accelerated file [0 (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yes[ No
As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate market valeemimon stock held by non-affiliates was approxinya$679,505,408.

As of February 28, 2013, there were 32,444,731eshair the registrant’'s common stock outstandingl(ehing 349,280 shares held in
treasury and 5,207 shares of restricted stock)yglae $0.001 per share.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part Il incorporates information from certain poris of the registrant’s definitive proxy statemembe filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the figear end of December 31, 2012.




Table of Contents

PART I.
ITEM 1.
ITEM 1A.
ITEM 1B.
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4,
PART Il
ITEM 5.
ITEM 6.
ITEM 7.
ITEM 7A.
ITEM 8.
ITEM 9.
ITEM 9A.
ITEM 9B.
PART Il
ITEM 10.
ITEM 11.
ITEM 12.
ITEM 13.
ITEM 14.
PART IV.
ITEM 15.

SIGNATURES

EXHIBIT INDEX

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties

Leqgal Proceeding

Mine Safety Disclosure

Market for Reqgistra’ s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andds Purchases of Equity Securil
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary |

Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants oméming and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur:

Other Informatior

Directors and Executive Officers of the Reqisti

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dMahagement and Related Stockholder Mau
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsDarsttor Independenc

Principal Accountant Fees and Servi

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedi

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

16
30
31
31
31

32
34
36
55
56
56
57
58

58
58
58
58
59

60
61
62

F-1



Table of Contents

PART I.

ITEM 1. Business

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and tramsétion services and focus on providing our clemith a positive business impact
and enhancing their long term financial value. Wstemize our services to improve the economicausirtess performance and transform
organizations to be leaner and more flexible. Quisourcing services provide front-, middle- andksaffice processing for our clients, who
primarily global companies. Outsourcing serviceslae the transfer to us of select business operatf a client, such as claims processing,
policy administration and finance and accountiritgravhich we administer and manage the operafiongur client on an ongoing basis. We
also offer a number of transformation services itheltide decision analytics, finance transformato operations and process excellence
services. These transformation services help éemtsl provide additional insight into their futiieancial and operational results, improve t
operating environments through cost reduction gased efficiency and productivity initiatives, anthance the risk and control environments
within our clients’ operations whether or not theg outsourced to us. We serve primarily the neé@obal 1000 companies in the insurance
and healthcare, utilities, banking and financial®es, travel, transportation and logistics sextor

Our services for each of the sectors include:

Insurance and Healthcare Litilities Raniiod snd Financias Traval, Tmnrf'xrrtatl“n and
Services Logistics

= Mew Business and Agency

Managemeani

= Parifolic and Energy

= Meter to Cash

» Morigage Processing

= Retail Banking and Credit

= Travel Fulfillment
= Chent and Supplser

= Policy Administration Balancing Cards Fulfillmuant
= Claims Manageament = Debl Management Cansumer Finance Travel mnllw and
= Clinical Services = Cuslomer Services = Commercial Lending Reporting

= Premium Billing and = Investmenl Management = Customer Senvice
Accounting Supply Chain and
« Legal Support Oiperations Support

Revenue Management

= Procure lo Pay

w Cirderto Cash

Finance and Accounting Outsourcing

= Hire to Retire

= Recond to Report

= Treasury and Taxes

Decizslon Analytics

Marketing and Customer Anahylics
Risk Analytics

Oparations Analybics

Finance and Investmen! Anatylics

Finance Transformation

= Organization Design
w Process Oplimization
= Syelems Advisory

w Accounting Advisary

Operations and Process Excellence

 Process Reengineering
=  Project Management Office Supporl

« Enterprse Lean S Sigma Deploymant

# Strategic Cost Managemant Programs

= Governance, Risk and Compliance

We combine in-depth knowledge of the industry sescito which we focus with proven expertise in tfansng business operations to our
offshore and onshore delivery centers, and adreiiig} and managing such operations. We have sdatigssansferred more than 900
processes covering a broad array of products awitss to our operations centers, including apprately 130 new processes that were

transferred to us in 2012.

Our operations centers are located in India, thEppmes, the Czech Republic, the U.S., BulgaMa)aysia and Romania. Our
geographic footprint enables us to leverage a lpogé¢ of highly qualified and educated technicalfpssionals who are able to handle comple;
processes and services that require functionds slald industry expertise.
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While a majority of our professionals provide sees in the English language, our operations irCthech Republic, Bulgaria and
Romania provide multi-lingual delivery capabilitiéd’e believe we can offer consistent high qualdgvees at substantially lower costs than
those available from U.S.- or U.K.-based in-howsalities or U.S.- or U.K.-based outsourcing prarsl As of December 31, 2012, we had a
headcount of approximately 21,000 employees, atantial portion of whom are based in India. Ourragiens platforms are supported by a
state-of-the-art infrastructure that can be expdridaneet each client’s needs. We market our ses\directly through our sales and marketing
and client management teams, which operate frorVtSeand Europe. Our senior managers have exteagperience in the industry sectors
on which we are focused and are well versed ibtieiness practices of leading multinational corpons.

We believe our reputation for operational excelieiscwidely recognized by our clients and is andngint competitive advantage. We
use Lean and Six Sigma, which are data-driven naetflogies for eliminating defects in any processdamtify process inefficiencies and
improve productivity in client and support process&/e deliver continued process enhancements mytsw and implementing process
improvements from employees and through our prtgayesoftware tools. As a part of our commitmengt@lity, information security and
employee safety, several of our delivery centeescartified to various standards, such as the I3@ 2008 standard for quality management,
the 1ISO 27001:2005 standard for our informatiorusgcmanagement system and the OHSAS 18001:2@0datd for our occupational hea
and safety management processes. Certain clierdtapes processes in our operations center in tiig@pines are certified as compliant with
the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standaklhdye received an unqualified SSAE 16 (SOQYpe Il) report on general controls frc
Ernst & Young Pvt. Ltd., an affiliate of our indeqient registered public accounting firm, for sel’/dedivery centers and certain client
operations processes. In 2012, our clinical praessManila, the Philippines, received accreditafrom the URAC, a leading healthcare and
education accreditation organization.

Services
Outsourcing Services

Our outsourcing services are structured aroundsitngdocused business process outsourcing (“BPér)ises as well as cross-industry
BPO services, such as finance and accounting &stvic

Insurance and HealthcareWe have established a leadership position in segyiasurance and healthcare companies and derived
approximately 49% of our revenues in 2012 from sselvices. In 2012, the research firm Everest Granged EXL the largest player in the
U.S. BPO insurance market. Within the life insuemaroperty and casualty insurance, health andilityansurance and retirement services
business lines, we have expertise in providingisesvin the areas of claims processing, premiumbamefit administration, agency
management, account reconciliation, policy reseamtlerwriting support, new business processinlicypservicing, trades/sub-account
transactions, add-on processing, premium audiingpiand collection and customer service. We hagpigied significant experience in
transferring and managing processes in these afsbave also built significant capability to maeanjnical operations for healthcare payers

We have significantly increased our use of proprietechnology tools and platforms to provide isiagly complex services for our
insurance and healthcare clients. Through our aitegpri of Landacorp, Inc. (“Landacorp”) on Octolie, 2012, we acquired a leading care
management software platform for healthcare payeri®ctober 2011, through our acquisition of Truhi®ervices, LLC (“Trumbull”), we
acquired the capability to provide subrogation E@wto property and casualty insurers as weltasss to a software platform called
SubroSource™. In connection with our acquisitiofPaffessional Data Management Again, Inc. (“PDMA)April 2010, we acquired an
insurance policy administration platform calleddBRO® to administer life insurance, health insuraanauities and credit life and disability
insurance policies for insurance and healthcasntdi
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Our services include:

Mew Business and Policy Claims A e Premium Billing

= Coveraga and = Customer Senice = Firat Motification of || = Care Management | | = Billing and = Confracl
Quete Generation = Rengwals Loss w Dizegse Remillance Managemant

= Undenwriting Rules | | = Lapses and Re- = Adjudication Management = Premium = Litigation Support
and Data Review instatements = Setflement = Health and Administration = Legal Research

= Policy Set-up and = Canversions = Abandoned Welingss Program | | = Account = Adminisirative
Issuance « Cancellations Praperty Management Spadncaon Support

a Mew Agent Setup | | « Dishursaments = Third-Party Fault w Clinical Review s E’:ﬁm;::"l_m:f = Compliance

= Commissions = Subrogation = Liilization Accounting Sarvices
Management Management

= Debi Managemsent

Utilities. We have expertise in providing end-to-end servioeshe back-office operations of utilities compasin service areas such as
meter to cash, portfolio and energy balancing, dentagement and customer service. A large pahesketservices involves complex
processing of transactions.

Our services include:

Partfali d Ene .

= Business o Consumer (B2C) = |mbalance Payment = Inbound Collectons = Area Operation
and Business o Business Raconciliation » Qutbound Collections = Mational Billing
(B28) = Vacant Property Portfolio = Warrant Planning and = \Web and Email
= Cusiomer Evenls Revigw Checking Insohvency Comespondence
(Acquisitions and “ Metering Transformation = Provider Swilch Processing
Withdrawals) Program

= Home Move Processing
= Billing and Metering Schemes
= Enargy Payment

Banking and Financial ServicesWe have expertise in servicing and processing uarmanking products, including residential mortgage
lending, retail banking, credit cards, consumeatiice, commercial lending and investment management.
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Our services include:

Maortgage Processing

Onginatian
Undenwriting and
Clesing

Post Funding
Servicing

= Escrow Sdministration

Secondary Market
Services

Ratall Banking and Consumer Finance Commercial Lendin HveRimAn
1 =
Credit Cards s g Management

| o= Customer Acquisition

= Mew Account Setup

= Transaction
Procassing

= Undenwriting Support

= Cradit Managemenl

= Fraud Managament

= Customer Acguisition
and Loan Crigination

= Application Processing
and Underwriting

= Customer and Accounl |

hanagament
= Documantabion
Management

and Loan Origination

= Application Processing
and Undenwriting

= Customer and Accounl
Managemeant

= Documentalion
Managemant

Cash Managemeant
and Treasury

Paortfolio Rieconcitiation
Fund Accounting
Invesior Reporting
Partfoleo Performance
Analysis and
Reporting

Travel, Transportation and LogisticsWe have expertise in managing and improving opamatj financial and analytical functions for
clients in the travel, transportation and logistitdustries. We provide end-to-end, front-, middiad back-office services to companies in the
corporate and leisure travel management indusirgdtlition, we have expertise in processing trartapon and logistics transactions,
including end-to-end supply chain management, warging, transportation management and internatiogétics services. We also provide
highly complex operational and analytical serviteairlines, trucking and shipping companies, oceamiers and logistics providers.

Our services include:

Travel Client & Suppller] Travel Accounting Customer Supply Chain and Revenue
Fulfillment Settlement end Reporting Service Operations Support Management
= Resarvation = Airling || = Sales, Supplier = Deliverad Not = Nabwork = Revenue Leakage
Processing Satllamenis and Revenue Ireoiced Oplimization = Fraight
w Ticketing and s Mon-aifine Tracking and Managemant = Terminal and Classification
Irvoscing Setbements Accounting = Proof of Delivery & Dastribution Canter = Fraight Bill and
= Back Office = Clent Billing = Groups & Event Bulls O Lading Perlomance Payment Audils
Interface « Recelvables Accounting = Cargo Claims fanagement = Cash Application
- = Month End . = Fraight Bill Entry = Sales Analytics
:ﬂﬂﬂmﬂ' Drebit Management Accounting = Macro Processing = Track and Trace
e :
g = Balahce Sheeal = Carier Scorecards
Processing Reconciliation
= Business
Reporling and
| Banchmarking

Finance and AccountingWe provide outsourcing services to our clientsafine organizations through our finance and accoginti
center of excellence. We provide integrated endrdfinance and accounting outsourcing servicessa@n array of finance and accounting
service cycles, including procure to pay, ordecdsh, hire to retire, record to report and treasmgy tax processes, in part by leveraging our
deep capabilities in finance transformation, decisinalytics and a number of tools and methodosogigich are proprietary or

4



Table of Contents

available through a number of partnerships withdtparties. Our finance and accounting outsoursergices are provided to clients across a

broad spectrum of industries.

Our services include:

S P

Procure to Pay Crder to Cash Hire to Retire Record to Report Treasury and Taxes
= Bourcing Strategy = Order Enlry and s Payroll Procesging o General Accounting « Cash Forecasting and
= |nvoice Capture and Fuliiltment « Benefits Administration | | = Intercompany Managemant
Processing = Billing o Warkforce Accounting w Direct Taxes
= Disbursements = Credit and Colactions Administration » Fixed Assei Accounting « Tax Complanca

= Spend Analysis
= Masler Datla
Management

Cash Applications
Conlact and Data
Services

= Slock Option and

Pensson Accounting

Empboyee Master Data
Management

Period-end Closa
Specialized Accounting
Financial ard Statulory
Reporting

= IS Tax Reporting and

Stalutory Compliance

= |nternational and US

Federal, State and

Municipal Taxes

Transformation Services

We offer a number of service offerings that we rédecollectively as transformation services. Theferings include decision analytics,
finance transformation and operations and processllence services.

These transformation services focus on helpingcbents by improving their operating environmerteotigh cost reduction, additional
insight for business forecasting, enhanced effijehigher productivity, improved effectivenessbokiness decisions and improved risk and
control environment within our clients’ operatiombether or not they are outsourced to us. Our toamstion services have enabled us to
expand our client base by providing complementaryise offerings to our clients and also to migmtents into our outsourcing services. We
have experienced a significant increase in demandur annuity-based transformation services, whighengagements that are contracted fol
periods of one year or more. We actively cresB-and, where appropriate, integrate our tramsétion services with our outsourcing service
part of an integrated solution for our clients. @ansformation services team is comprised of Gy@00 professionals.

Decision Analytics

We offer decision analytics services, includingadfiitering, organization and synthesis, manageritdatmation system reporting, trend
and variance analysis, statistical and econometoideling and economic and financial markets ree@ar decision analytics services invc
accessing and analyzing large volumes of data fruttiple sources in order to understand histoneaformance or behavior to predict
particular outcomes. We utilize the insights thatgenerate to assist our clients in making bettdrdata-driven business decisions, which are
expected to lead to tangible financial benefits.

Our decision analytics services include marketind e@ustomer analytics, risk analytics, operatiameytics and finance and investment
analytics. Our offerings emphasize our expertigiwiour industry focus areas which are complentebtetechniques, technology tools and
methodologies designed to deliver quantitative ningeproprietary intellectual property and busin@selligence to achieve optimal results
with faster turnaround times for our clients.
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We deliver these services through a team of ingusgtecialists and graduates with mathematicalsstatl, engineering, economics,
business or accounting backgrounds. A large pragrodf our decision analytics team members haveived postgraduate degrees in busin
or other quantitative or financial disciplines.

Our services include:

= Cusiomer Prospecling and = Credi Risk and Policy = Call Canter Analytics = Investment Identification and
Acquisition Development = Capacity Planning Assessment
= Customer Segmentation = Cradit Scoring and = Resources Oplimization = Valuation, Due Diligence and
« Marketing Effectivenass Underwriting = Customer Satistaction Deal Structisfing
= Altriion and Loyalty = Regulatory Compliance Analysis = Sell-Side/Financial Analylics
Managamsant = Fraud Detection and = Productivily Optimization
= Portfolio Profitabiit Prevention
= Coflections and Recovery
Strategy
A

Finance Transformation

Our finance transformation services include finaoiganizational design, finance process optimizatimance systems advisory,
governance, risk and compliance and accountingsadyiservices.

As part of our finance organization design seryvigesassist our clients with the design and implataiiton of various target operating
models, outsourcing and shared service programsfince process optimization services help oient$ evaluate the efficiency,
effectiveness and internal controls of our cliefittince and accounting processes including manageimformation systems and decision
support, through various diagnostic methods indgdienchmarking. We also provide advisory and imgletation support for various finance
automation and system optimization initiatives tlgio our finance systems advisory services. Our m@vee, risk and compliance services
include compliance advisory and support, interpgittand controls monitoring services. Our accaoumind financial advisory reporting
services include transaction assurance, generalating, financial reporting and finance and acdimgnprocess optimization services. Many
of our professionals who provide these servicesearéfied accountants, internal auditors and pse@nd technology experts.

Our services include:

Organization Design Process Optimization Systems Advisory Gme{;r;a“:ﬁ.;:j;k i Accounting Advisory

= Target Oparating = Finance Function = Requirements Analysis || = Regulatory = Controllership Support
Medel Diagnostic = Automation Compliance Program = Remediation Suppor,
= Cutsourcing = Working Capital Assessment and Management Project Managemeant
Crpporiunity Optimization Systems Optimization = Audil Anatylics and Special Projects
Identification « Financial Close = Project Management = Costof Compliance
= Shared Services = Management and Implementation & ksl AuAl
Advisory Information Systenms Suppen
and Reporting

Operations and Process Excellence Services

We assist clients in understanding, controlling emproving their business processes with a viemdoeasing effectiveness at optimized
cost. We utilize Lean and Six Sigma methodologiezdvise our clients on cost reduction initiatie@sl subsequently manage the
implementation of our recommendations. Our servides identify business processes that can be wedrby documenting processes, crea
standard operating procedures,
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defining metrics and evaluation criteria as welgaserating customized dashboards and reportimg wair proprietary methodologies. By
diagnosing existing processes, we are able totassi€lients in improving their operations by migdig, eliminating or automating certain
activities.

Our services include:

Enterprise Lean Six Sigma Project Managemant Office

Process Reengineering Strategic Cost Management

Deplaymant Support
= Opportunity identification = Cost Benchmarking = Gap Analysis = Project Govermnance
= Process Mappang s Qffshoring and Rightshoring “ Change Management = Quakily Managemant
= Operating Model Design Advisary = Meirics and Dashboarding = Monitoring and Compliance
= Mew Process = Procurement Optimization = Cusiemer Experience = Technical Business
Conceplualization and Design Enhanceman Requiremani and Deploymand
= Documentation | = Lean Six Sigma Menloring Crersight

Geographic and Segment Information

Please see the disclosures in Notes 4 and 14 tooosolidated financial statements for segmentgaudjraphic information regarding ¢
business.
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Business Strategy

Our goal is to continue to be a leading provideowiourcing and transformation services in theisty sectors on which we are focus
Specific elements of our growth strategy include:

Creating Positive Business Impact for Clients byf@ing a Broad Range of Operations Management, Aytid¢s and Platform Technology
Services

In servicing our clients, we seek to differentiateselves by emphasizing the broad range of opaimtnanagement, analytics and
platform technology services that we provide a$ pbour outsourcing and transformation services. Wlieve that clients are increasingly
viewing their service providers as lobgrm partners that provide a full range of serafferings. By leveraging our broad range of sersiaac
improving our clients’ operations through tangibleasures such as revenue enhancement, revenugp@msde leakage prevention, cost
reduction, write-off reduction and working capitatiuction, we can provide our clients with a pesitbusiness impact and create a long-term
partnership.

Utilizing Innovative Approaches to Enhance MarginuStainability

We believe that we can better enhance our margitasiability by utilizing innovative delivery andiping approaches. Successful
innovative delivery approaches will require the asacquired or internally developed intellectuedgerty, methodologies and analytical
models as well as a range of proprietary technotogis. These innovative delivery approaches gue#jly specialized for the industry sectors
on which we are focused.

In this light, we have significantly increased ase of proprietary technology tools and platforimetigh a combination of acquisitions
and in-house development. Our Landacorp acquishtaaprovided us with a family of leading healtlecaranagement software platforms that
manage clinical data for over 50 million lives vehdur PDMA and Trumbull acquisitions have providesdwith the LifePR® and
SubroSourcé platforms, respectively, for our cBantthe insurance sector. We have also built petgoy platforms such as the Freight Bill
Audit and Payment platform to automate the recegidation and exception processing of customeoimes for our clients in the
transportation and logistics sectors.

In addition, we believe that the increased utilaaof transaction-based and other innovative pgehodels, supplemented by these
innovative delivery approaches, may also enharesulstainability of our margins while deliveringiieased value to our clients. Currently, a
majority of our revenues is billed to our clients@time and materials basis. We intend to incré@s@umber of processes in which we utilize
transaction-based and other innovative pricingetibedp align our incentives with our clients, therelssisting them with variable cost structures
and driving service improvements.

Extending Our Industry Expertise

We have developed expertise in transferring andeg more than 900 outsourcing processes to paraiions centers, including more
than 550 processes in the insurance and healtimzhrstry. This expertise continues to distinguisHfrom other providers of outsourcing
services and has established our reputation aslatg provider of outsourcing services. We intemddntinue to strengthen our processing
capabilities by focusing on more complex and vanbancing services that are common to these setterstend to supplement our
innovative delivery and pricing approaches withititeoduction of industry-specific training acadesito enhance the domain expertise of oul
employees. In 2012, we launched the EXL Healthéaademy in Manila, Philippines, to deepen and eki®ur clinical and utilization
capabilities for healthcare payers and providers.

Cultivating Large-scale, Long-term Relationships diexpanding Our Existing Client Base

We intend to continue to maintain our focus ondasgale, long-term client relationships. We belithere are significant opportunities
for additional growth with our existing clients,chwe seek to expand these relationships by inargdke depth and breadth of the services we
provide. We also believe that our geographicalstrdiuted network of operations centers will enalddo expand our client base and range of
services. Our domain expertise and long-term clielattionships enable us to provide more fully gméged and innovative outsourcing and
transformation services and develop closer relatiges with our clients.

8
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We will also continue to initiate long-term relaighips with small and medium sized companies if@wus industries and expand our
relationships with such companies over time. Weridtto develop longerm relationships that present recurring revermpmdunities with ne
clients by leveraging our industry experience axghading our marketing activities in a manner desijto strengthen, encourage and
accelerate long-term relationship building. We curg to be highly selective and seek industry-legdilients, targeting Global 1000
companies that have the most complex and diverssepses and, accordingly, stand to benefit sigmiflg from our services.

Continuing to Invest in Our People and Operationkdfrastructure

We intend to continue to invest in infrastructuneluding human resources, process optimizationdatidery platforms, to meet our
growing client requirements. We intend to furthefirre and supplement the innovative methods weaisecruit, train and retain our skilled
employees. We intend to continue focusing on réogihighly qualified employees and developing employees’ leadership skills through
specialized programs, rigorous promotion standandsistry-specific training and competitive competicn packages that include incentive-
based compensation. During 2012, we inaugurateshicfor talent dedicated to recruitment, capgbéhhancement and talent development
and also partnered with a leading managementutesiih India to develop various management andrarog dedicated to our target industry
sectors and services. During 2012, we launchedapsations centers in Manila, Philippines and Pumdia and acquired our operations ce
in Chico, California, as a result of our acquisitiof Landacorp.

Pursuing Strategic Relationships and Acquisitio

We intend to continue to selectively consider sgat relationships with industry leaders that add tong-term client relationships,
enhance the depth and breadth of our services@nglement our business strategy. We also intesélectively consider acquisitions,
partnerships and alliances or investments thatexjland the scope and effectiveness of our serbic@slding proprietary technology assets
and intellectual property, adding new clients énw@ing us to enter new geographic markets. On Gautd, 2012, we acquired Landacorp, a
leading care management software platform for heate payers, with approximately 125 employeehénd.S.

Our Industry

BPO service providers work with clients to devedoml deliver business operational improvements thighgoal of achieving higher
performance at lower costs. Organizations outsatleie key business processes to third partieedaae costs, improve process quality, ha
increased transaction volumes and reduce redund@utgourcing can enable organizations to enharafégbility and increase efficiency and
reliability, permitting them to concentrate on thadre areas of competence. BPO is a long-terntegitacommitment for companies that, once
implemented, is generally not subject to cycligareding or information technology budget reductidnsreased global demand, cost
improvements in international communications aredahitomation of many business services have creageghificant opportunity for offshore
BPO providers, and many companies are moving seféice processes to providers with the capacitgadform these functions from overseas
locations.

Companies have historically used BPO providergiteedevenue growth by expanding service offeritigg otherwise would be too
costly to administer or by enhancing receivabléettions that would otherwise not be cost-efficienpursue using internal staff. We believe
the demand for BPO services will be primarily lgdifidustries that are transactidnven and that require significant customer intéoas. Th
high cost of servicing a large number of small cosdr accounts makes outsourcing a compelling giaddternative for such industries.

Companies are increasingly looking to provideramdlytics services to apply statistical tools, medad techniques to clean, organize
and examine structured and unstructured corpoedteand thereby to generate specific businesstetatalysis and insight into their business
and prospects using this data. The enhanced gemeddtbusiness data across multiple formats, suihist reduction in data storage costs,
growing enterprise demand for data-driven and tiea-decision making and availability of sophistaghanalytics tools have enabled
companies to overcome a local shortage of speedbnalytics talent and benefit from global labarkets. Service providers who can deve
industry-specific analytics expertise are especiatll poised to benefit from this global trend.
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According to Nasscom, an industry trade organipatxports from India in the information technolayyd business process manager
industry are expected to grow between 12% and 1dd6-gver-year in the fiscal year ending March 3£ to between $85 and $87 billion.

Trend Toward Offshore Delivery of BPO and Analyti&ervices

Global demand for high quality, lower-cost BPO se#s from external providers, combined with opersi and cost improvements in
international telecommunications and the automatiomany business services, have created a signtfigpportunity for BPO service
providers that are able to take advantage of ahof€ talent pool. Many companies are moving sedeftont-, middle- and back-office
processes to providers with the capacity to perfitrese functions from overseas locations.

Over the past decade, India and the Philippines baverged as preferred locations for companiesgrio outsource services ranging
from insurance claims processing, payroll procegsimedical transcription, customer relationship agement to backdffice operations such
accounting and data processing, filtering and degdion. India currently accounts for the largdsire of the offshore BPO services market.
Recently, in order to take advantage of multipleglaage capabilities and large educated talent maasempetitive costs, companies have
engaged service providers with operations in oftwations such as Eastern Europe and Latin America.

In analytics services, India has also emergedleading delivery location, driven by a large queatively-trained workforce and
attractive cost efficiencies, as compared to oiiheations. By 2015, the Indian offshore data anedytnarket is expected to be approximately
$1.2 billion in size, having grown at a CAGR of 25%ce 2010, according to Avendus, an Indian fireradvisor. We offer a global analytics
delivery model and operate multiple analytics centd excellence in India and other locations gligba

Sales and Marketing and Client Management

We market our services to our existing and prospedients through our sales and client managetsamhs, which are aligned by
industry verticals and cross-industry domains aagfinance and accounting. Our sales and clienagement teams operate from the U.S. an
Europe and are supported by our business develdgean.

Our sales, marketing and business development taseresponsible for new client acquisitions, pubgdiations, relations with
outsourcing advisory companies, brand awarenespanidipation in industry forums and conferend®ar sales, marketing and business
development teams identify prospective clients taseselective criteria that apply our industry eise to the prospective client’s business
units and services, goals and operating constrants qualify the long-term relationship potentigth the client. Our client relationships vary
from a single discrete process to multiple comjméegrated processes.

Our client management team is responsible for magadient relationships, understanding client reeadd developing customized
services that create value for clients from outesof outsourcing and transformation services. Edictegic client relationship is assigned a
team that consists of members from the client mamagt team, an operations delivery leader, a meoflmir transformation services group
and a member of our technology team. Members oflteat management team work closely with the dglnteam to ensure high levels of
client satisfaction and are also responsible faifmss expansion and revenue growth of their réispedient accounts.

Our sales and client management professionals faeidentifying, qualifying and initiating discussis with our current and prospective
clients. They operate collaboratively with our mgsis development team which prepares responseguests for proposals, hosts client visits
to our facilities and coordinates due diligenceporcesses to be outsourced to us.

As of December 31, 2012, we employed approximé&t8ly sales, marketing, business development anat cienagement professionals
primarily in the U.S. and Europe. Each professidraa significant experience in global outsourcing expertise in identifying outsourcing
opportunities and process migration. Our salesntlinanagement, marketing and business developgaans work actively with our service
delivery team as the sales process moves clogkee tdlient’s final decision to either select or ergd a service provider relationship. The client
executive or sales executive works with the serdiévery team to define the scope, services, apsans and execution strategies for each
proposed project and to develop project estimaigésng and sales proposals. Our senior manageraeigws and approves each proposal.
selling cycle varies depending on the type of servequired, generally ranging from six monthsigt&en months for our outsourcing
services.
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Members of our sales, client management, marketitgbusiness development teams remain activeljniegion a project through the
execution phase. Each client team consists of gocate sponsor, executive steering committee, tipasleadership team and, in some cases
a dedicated human resources, technology and infcaste team.

Clients

We generated revenues from approximately 270 dlien2012. Our top three, five and ten clientspeesively, generated 26%, 39% and
59% of our revenues in 2012, respectively. In 2@l top three, five and ten clients, respectivgbnerated 32%, 45% and 62% of our annua
revenues, respectively. While we are developingtieiships with new clients and expect to contitudiversify our client base, we believe
that the loss of any of our ten largest clientsldtave a material adverse effect on our finarpéaformance. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—
Risks Related to Our Business—We have a limitedberrof clients and provide services to few indestrin 2012, approximately 59% of our
total revenues came from top ten clients.”

Our long-term relationships with our clients typigavolve from providing a single, discrete pros@sto providing a series of complex,
integrated processes across multiple business Fegsutsourcing services, we enter into long-tagreements with our clients with typical
initial terms of between three and eight years.e&gnents for transformation services generally Iséegter initial terms. Each agreement is
individually negotiated with the client.

In addition, our agreements generally limit oubliigy to our clients to a maximum amount, subjecinany cases to certain exceptions
such as indemnification for third-party claims drdaches of confidentiality. In order to meet thecsfic needs of our clients, we enter into
contracts with varying contractual provisions.

Competition

Competition in the BPO services industry is inteasd growing. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks R&ldo Our Business—We face
significant competition from U.S.-based and non-th&sed outsourcing and information technology {f'ldompanies and from our clients,
who may perform outsourcing services themselvéiserin-house, in the U.S. or through offshore geoar other arrangements.” Many
companies, including certain of our clients, chomsperform some or all of their customer servi@lections and back-office processes
internally. Their employees provide these servagpart of their regular business operations. Smmganies have moved portions of their in-
house customer management functions offshore,divejuo offshore affiliates. We believe our key adiage over in-house business processt
is that we give companies the opportunity to foongheir core products and services while we faruservice delivery and operational
excellence. We believe that clients who operatgtaith business model—partnering with external BROvers while handling other BPO
functions in-house—have the opportunity to benclitiae performance of their internal BPO operatiagainst ours.

We compete primarily against:
. BPO service companies based in offshore locatigensicularly India, such as Genpact Limited and W(N8Idings) Limited;

. the BPO divisions of large IT service companies glothal BPO services companies, such as Acceragnizant Technology
Solutions, Tata Consultancy Services and Info

. niche providers that provide services in a spegéiographic market, industry or service area ssamalytics and healthcare; ¢
. leading accounting and management consulting fi
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We compete against these entities by establishingetves as a service provider with deep industpggise, superior operational
capabilities and process expertise, and uniqusftvamation service capabilities, which enablesougspond rapidly to market trends and the
evolving needs of our clients in this sector. SedBusiness Strategy-Greating Positive Business Impact for Clients bfe@dig a Broad Ranc¢
of Operations Management, Analytics and Platforrahifelogy Services,” and “—Extending Our IndustrypExise.”

We expect that competition will increase. A sigeafiit part of our competitive advantage has hisalyibeen a wage cost advantage
relative to companies in the U.S. and Europe aaabHility to attract and retain highly experieneed skilled employees. We believe, howe
that as a result of rising wage costs in India ather locations of our operations centers andrifrastructure improvements that are taking
place in other emerging markets around the world ability to compete effectively will increasingtiepend on our ability to utilize innovative
approaches that rely on our industry expertiseelbas a broad range of operations managemenytasahnd platform technology services to
create a positive business impact for our clients.

Intellectual Property

Our principal intellectual property consists ofdeanarks, copyrighted software and other matenpatsprietary and licensed platforms,
and the know-how of our management and employeesh&Ve several trademarks and logos registeredtwgth).S. Patent and Trademark
Office and certain foreign jurisdictions. We alsmsider the availability of patent protection fertain proprietary technology.

We often use our clients’ software systems anditparty software platforms to provide our servid®®& customarily enter into licensing
and nondisclosure agreements with our clients hind parties with respect to the use of their safevsystems and platforms. Clients typically
obtain consents for us to access and use thirg paftware licenses held by the client so that veg provide our services. Our contracts
usually provide that intellectual property creaspécifically for use of a client will automaticalbe assigned to that client.

We consider our business processes and implemantagthodologies to be confidential, proprietafpimation that includes trade
secrets that are important to our business. Clemdsbusiness partners sign nondisclosure agresmesniiring confidential treatment of our
information. Our employees are also required ta 8itellectual property assignments and confidéitgiandertakings as a condition to their
employment.

Technology

We have a well-developed international telecommatioas capacity to support our business operations business continuity
management plan includes plans to eliminate cerisits inherent in critical applications by buildinedundancies and resilience into the
connectivity and telecommunications infrastructuretwork, systems, power availability, transpodiatiphysical security, and trained
manpower availability, as well as utilizing distiied computing. Our infrastructure is built on istty standards and we work closely with
several leading original equipment manufacturetds@imcipal technology partners.

We customize our technology solutions in line vatir clients’ business and outsourcing requiremeédis.technology teams are
comprised of expert professionals from technologygzt management, infrastructure management,rimtion security and technology
operational service delivery, thereby permittingasdapt our infrastructure services to our cig¢htough various phases of our client
engagements. We seek to understand our clientsidsssand outsourcing requirements and their psqol@sforms, develop and implement
customized services to our clients and delivenbddi services that facilitate the offshore conduntt management of their business processes

We have robust systems in place to protect theapyiwf our clients and their customers and to ensampliance with the laws and
regulations governing our activities.
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Process Compliance and Management

We have an independent quality compliance teamawitor, analyze, provide feedback on and report@se performance and
compliance. In addition, we have a customer expegd¢eam to assess and improve end-customer expefier all processes. Currently, we
have over 400 quality compliance analysts and cust@xperience analysts.

For most of our operations processes, we repodgsoperformance on B-ProMPT, a wesed application accessible by both our cli
and us. B-ProMPT includes process control capasilguch as digital dashboards for evaluating pootgnagement and performance at any
level within an organization, including trackingetmdividual performance of agents, supervisorsa@hdr employees. B-ProMPT includes
advanced analytics capacity to provide Six Sigmsetgrocess analysis, including trend analysig;iloigion analysis and correlation analysis
and tracking.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had a headcount obappately 21,000 individuals, a substantial portadrwhom are based in India. We
have approximately 600 employees in the U.S. aedJti., approximately 2,000 employees in the Phpitips and over 500 employees in the
Czech Republic, Bulgaria and Romania. Our emplogeesiot unionized. We have never experienced ami stoppages and believe that we
enjoy good employee relations.

Hiring and Recruiting
Our employees are critical to the success of oginess. Accordingly, we focus on recruiting, traghand retaining our professionals.

We have developed effective strategies that erabkfficient recruitment process. We have 90 eng#eydedicated to recruitment. Sc
of the strategies we have adopted to increasdazftig in our hiring practices include online voagsessment and a centralized hiring center.
Our hiring policies focus on identifying high guglemployees who demonstrate a propensity for legrrcontribution to client services and
growth. Candidates must undergo numerous testiardiews before we extend offers for employm&té also conduct extensive
background checks on candidates, including crintiaakground checks, where permitted and as regbiredients or on a sample basis. In
addition, where permitted, we perform random desiihg on the workforce on a regular basis. In 20d2received more than 68,000
applications for employment and hired approximag800 new professionals. We also have an empl@feeral program that provides us w
a cost effective way of accessing qualified potdregmployees.

We offer our professionals competitive compensapiackages that include significant incenthased compensation and offer a varie
benefits, including free transport to and from hdmeertain circumstances, subsidized meals amddceess to recreational facilities that are
located within some of our operations centers. tOurover rate for billable employees was 29.3%tffieryear ended December 31, 2012. As
competition in our industry increases, our turnawate could increase. See “ltem 1A. Risk FactorsskRRelated to Our Business—We may
fail to attract and retain enough sufficiently t@dl employees to support our operations, as cotigpefor highly skilled personnel is intense
and we experience significant employee turnoverstat

Training and Development

We dedicate significant resources to the trainimg) @evelopment of our professionals. On DecembgP@12, we had over 230 certified
trainers. Our trainers work with professionals im cecruitment, operations and quality control tedmcreate an end-to-end process for value
addition, skill evaluation, skill enhancement aedtification. We also use training to provide canity by linking skill assessment at the point
of recruitment to subsequent assessment and ojottheaining.

We customize our training to country, client, intlysaind service, closely collaborating with thesnlis throughout the training process.
Over 8,500 employees received training for theriaisce industry and processes at
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the insurance academy established by us in 2009fi@unce and accounting academy, inaugurated wehher 2011, trained approximately
900 employees in basic accounting, payroll andttexaluring 2012. Our healthcare academy, inaugdrat Manila, Philippines in 2012,
trained over 300 employees during the year, whiletavel academy, inaugurated in Gurgaon, Indi20ih1, trained over 900 employees.
Training for new employees includes culture, vaod accent training. We also have ongoing traittiag includes refresher training programs
and personality development programs. We develogmployees’ leadership skills through various téljfig development programs, talent
identification and performance management mechasiamd significant monetary and non-monetary irigcest The overall participation in
various programs administered in 2012 resultegpraimately 74,000 days of training. We have alsmted career development programs
for our middle and junior level management emplasyéelping them define and identify their careghpavithin the company. In 2012, we
provided training to over 1,000 of our junior andidie managers at the EXL School of Management gweent, which was launched in
2010.

In February 2012, we inaugurated the EXL CentefTadent in Noida, India, our first facility exclugly dedicated to recruitment,
capability enhancement and talent development.ciol@®r 2012, we announced a partnership with tdaininstitute of Management,
Lucknow to deliver a business management programwdoking executives at the institute’s campus oidd, India, focusing both on general
management and also industry-focused modules csuttory, analytics and operational excellence.

Regulation

Because of the diversity and highly complex natfreur service offerings, our operations are sulijga variety of rules and regulations
and several U.S. and foreign federal and statecagenregulate aspects of our business. In additionclients may contractually require that
comply with certain rules and regulations, eveihdse rules and regulations do not actually applyst Failure to comply with any applicable
laws and regulations could result in restrictionsoar ability to provide our products and serviasywell as the imposition of civil fines and
criminal penalties, which could have a materialexde effect on our operations.

We are one of the few service providers that canige third-party administrator insurance servitem India and the Philippines,
having been licensed or exempted from, or not stilije licensing in 44 states and 16 states, reéispede Additionally, we are licensed or
otherwise eligible to provide third-party admingbr services in all states within the U.S. Certdiour debt collection, workers compensation
utilization review and telemarketing services reguis to maintain licenses in various jurisdictionsequire certain categories of our
professionals to be individually licensed. We coué to obtain licenses required by our businessatipes.

Our operations are also subject to compliance itariety of other laws, including the U.S. fedematl state regulations, that apply to
certain portions of our business, such as the@@&dit Reporting Act, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley AdtietHealth Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, the HITECH Act of 2008e Truth in Lending Act, the Fair Credit Billirgct, the Federal Trade Commission Act
and FDIC rules and regulations. We must also comly applicable regulations relating to healthcane other personal information that we
process as part of our services. Additionally, dignt contracts may specify other regulatory regmients we must meet in connection with
services we provide. We provide our employees tritiming for applicable laws and regulations.

Regulation of our business by the Indian governmaéfiects us in several ways. For instance, untilil&911, we benefited from certain
tax incentives promulgated by the Indian governmiactuding a holiday from Indian corporate incotages for the operation of some of our
Indian operations centers. Our operations centedaipur and Noida, which were established in $p&onomic Zones (“SEZsTh 2010, anc
our new operations center in Pune established gl@®12, are eligible for tax incentives until 208&h years from the year of their
establishment. As part of our acquisition of BussProcess Outsourcing, Inc. in 2011 (the “OPI Asitian”), we acquired operations centers
in Bengaluru and Kochi, India that are also esthigld in SEZs. Our operations center in Bengalunpdeted its first five years of operations
on March 31, 2012 and benefited from a 100% exaempin export profits in prior years. Under Indiar tegulations, the Bengaluru
operations center is now entitled to a 50% tax gptem on export profits for five years from Apri) 2012. After April 1, 2017, the applicable
tax exemption will be further reduced. We anticgpastablishing additional operations centers insS&Zother tax advantaged locations in the
future. We also continue to benefit from certaiitacentives for our operations in the Philippin8se “ltem 1A. Risk
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Factors.” Our subsidiaries in India are also sulifecertain currency transfer restrictions. Seaffsigement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—FKgrdtxchange” and “—Income Taxes.”

Other Information
ExIService Holdings, Inc. was incorporated in Dedagvon October 29, 2002.

The Company files annual, quarterly and currenorisp proxy statements and other information whtl $ecurities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Excleaagt of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Yimy read and copy this
information at the Public Reference Room of the SE@m 1580, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DA548. You may obtain information
about the Public Reference Room by calling the SEG800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintainghsite (http://www.sec.gov) that
contains reports, proxy and information statemeantd, other information regarding issuers thatdlkctronically through the EDGAR System.

The Company also maintains a website at http://vexiservice.com. The Company makes available, ffeharge, on its website its
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om¥#10-Q, proxy statements, current reports on R¢snand amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) ord)%(f the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonablyipahbt after such reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business

We have a limited number of clients and providesees to few industries. In 2012, approximately 5@foour total revenues came from top
ten clients.

We have derived and believe that we will contimueérive a substantial portion of our total revenfiem a limited number of large
clients. In 2012, our ten largest clients accoufbedpproximately 59.0% of our total revenues. §fé@erated 10.1% of our total revenues in
2012 from the Travelers Company (“Travelers”). Wevide services to Travelers under a services aggaeand work assignments and order:
generated thereunder. Although the services agmetethoes not have a fixed term, the work assignmamtswork orders expire in December
2013 and renew every year thereafter unless giduty elects not to renew within a specified petiedore the next renewal date. Travelers
may terminate the services agreement, or any wesigament or work order, without cause upon 60 gaigs notice. We expect that a
significant portion of our total revenues will conte to be contributed by a limited number of lacgents in the near future. The loss of or
financial difficulties at any of our large clientsould have a material adverse effect on our busjnmesults of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

General economic and business conditions could riagdy affect our business in multiple ways.

The recent global economic downturn adversely itgghcompanies in the industries to which we progigievices, including the bankir
financial services and insurance industries. In22@pproximately 57% of our total revenues werévadrfrom clients in those industries,
including 49% of our total revenues that were datifrom clients in the insurance industry. Our bass largely depends on continued deman
for our services from clients and potential clieintshese industries. Adverse developments in tiretiestries or the other select industries to
which we provide services could further unfavoradiffiect our business. In particular, we currentlyivke, and are likely to continue to derive
significant portion of our revenues from clientsdted in the U.S. Any future decreases in the ggterel of economic activity, such as
decreases in business and consumer spending, resuld in a decrease in demand for our servicaticpkarly our transformation services, tl
reducing our revenues. Continued high unemploynaes in the U.S. could also adversely affect gmaahd for our services. Other
developments in response to economic events, suchresolidations, restructurings or reorganizatipasticularly involving our clients, could
also cause the demand for our services to decline.

Any future disruptions in the commercial credit k&ts may impact liquidity in the global credit matlas greatly, or even more, than in
recent years, and we may not be able to predighipact such worsening conditions will have on augeted industries in general, and our
results of operations specifically. Future turbelein global markets and economies may adverstdgtadur liquidity and financial condition,
and the liquidity and financial condition of ouretits. Market disruptions may limit our ability &@cess financing or increase our cost of
financing to meet liquidity needs, and affect thdity of our customers to use credit to purchageservices or to make timely payments to us
resulting in adverse effects on our financial ctindiand results of operations. Changes in globahemic conditions could also shift demand
to services for which we do not have competitiveaadages, and this could negatively affect the armhotibusiness that we are able to obtain.

Our industry may not develop in ways that we curtigranticipate due to negative public reaction ihg U.S. and elsewhere to offshore
outsourcing, recently proposed legislation or otkgse.

We have based our strategy of future growth oragesssumptions regarding our industry and futereetbpments in the market for
outsourcing services. For example, we believettiere will continue to be changes in product andise requirements, and investments in the
products offered by our clients will continue tefiease. However, the trend to outsource businegegses may not continue and could rev
Offshore outsourcing is a politically sensitiveiom the U.S. and elsewhere, and many organizatéom public figures have publicly
expressed concern about a perceived associatiare®etoffshore outsourcing providers and the logslf in the U.S. and elsewhere. In
addition, there has been limited publicity abowet tiegative experience of certain companies thadfiskore outsourcing, particularly in India.
Current or prospective clients may elect to perfstoh services themselves or may be discouragedtfemsferring these services to offshore
providers to avoid any negative perception that mawassociated with using an offshore provider. sloywvdown or reversal of existing
industry
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trends would harm our ability to compete effectyweith competitors that operate out of facilitiesdted in the U.S. and elsewhere.

A variety of U.S. federal and state legislation haen proposed that, if enacted, could restridismourage U.S. companies from
outsourcing their services to companies outsiddJtise For example, legislation has been proposaiditbuld require offshore providers to
identify where they are located and that would iegootice to individuals whose personal informatie disclosed to non-U.S. companies. In
addition, recently introduced bills have proposeavjuling tax and other economic incentives for camips that create employment in the U.S.
by reducing their offshore outsourcing. Other Hiltere proposed requiring call centers to disclbe& geographic locations, requiring notice tc
individuals whose personal information is disclosedon-U.S. affiliates or subcontractors, requjritisclosures of companies’ foreign
outsourcing practices or restricting U.S. privaeter companies that have federal government ottstriederal grants or guaranteed loan
programs from outsourcing their services to offshegrvice providers. Because most of our clierddamated in the U.S., any expansion of
existing laws or the enactment of new legislatiestricting offshore outsourcing could adversely actpour ability to do business with U.S.
clients and have a material and adverse effecuombusiness, results of operations, financial ciorliand cash flows.

In other countries, such as the U.K., which congati2g0.2% of our total revenues in 2012, there @sk@en some negative publicity ¢
concern expressed regarding the possible effgobdbsses caused by outsourcing. Legislation eakictthe U.K. provides that if a company
transfers or outsources its business or a pats dilisiness to a transferee or a service providermployees who were employed in such
business are entitled to become employed by thefeeee or service provider on the same terms anditions as they had been employed
before the transfer. The dismissal of such empleysea result of such transfer of business is déemifair dismissal and entitles the
employees to compensation. As a result, we mayrbediable for redundancy payments to the emplogéesir clients in the U.K. who
outsource business to us. We are generally indédriif our existing contracts with clients in thekUto the extent we incur losses or
additional costs due to the application of thidgdkgion to us, and we intend to obtain indemnifima in future contracts with clients. However,
if we are unable to obtain indemnification in fudwgontracts with clients, we may be liable undgragreements we enter into in the future®
U.K. clients. Similar legislation has also beenated in certain other European jurisdictions.

Our client contracts contain certain termination ahother provisions that could have an adverse effec our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Most of our client contracts may be terminated by dients without cause and do not commit oumtieo provide us with a specific
volume of business. Any failure to meet a clieetpectations could result in a cancellation or remewal of a contract or a decrease in
business provided to us. We may not be able tacephny client that elects to terminate or notweit® contract with us, which would reduce
our revenues. For example, we provide servicesawélers which is our largest client under a sewiagreement that Travelers may terminate
without cause upon 60 days prior notice. The Idsw déinancial difficulties at any of our large efits would have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, financial @@mrdand cash flows.
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A limited number of our contracts allow a cliemt,dertain limited circumstances, to request a beack study comparing our pricing a
performance with that of an agreed list of othevise providers for comparable services. Basecherrésults of the study and depending ol
reasons for any unfavorable variance, we may bainedjto make improvements in the services we piar reduce the pricing for services
a prospective basis to be performed under the rengaterm of the contract or our client could electerminate the contract, which could have
an adverse effect on our business, results of tpesaand financial condition. Many of our contsacbntain provisions that would require u
pay penalties to our clients and/or provide owgrak with the right to terminate the contract if deenot meet pre-agreed service level
requirements or if we do not provide certain prdolity benefits. Failure to meet these requirememtaccurately estimate the productivity
benefits could result in the payment of significpabhalties by us to our clients which in turn colaétve a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢deomdiSome of our contracts with clients specifgttti a change of control of our company
occurs during the term of the contract, the cliead the right to terminate the contract. Theseipimvs may result in our contracts being
terminated if there is such a change in contr@ilteng in a potential loss of revenues. In additithhese provisions may act as a deterrent tc
attempt by a third party to acquire our company.

We may fail to attract and retain enough sufficidpttrained employees to support our operations casnpetition for highly skilled personne¢
is intense and we experience significant employembver rates.

Our industry is labor intensive and our succes®dég to a significant extent on our ability toadty hire, train and retain qualified
employees, including our ability to attract emplegevith needed skills in the geographic areas iiclmive operate. The industry, including us,
experiences high employee turnover. In 2012, ounoer rate for billable employees was approxinya®&l.3%. There is significant
competition for professionals with skills necessarperform the services we offer to our clienteréased competition for these professionals
could have an adverse effect on us. A significaatdase in the turnover rate among our employeescplarly among our higher skilled
workforce, would increase our recruiting and tragncosts and decrease our operating efficiencylymtivity and profit margins, and could
lead to a decline in demand for our services. Highover rates generally do not impact our reverasese factor the attrition rate into our
pricing models by maintaining additional employémseach process. However, high turnover ratesidease our cost of revenues and
therefore impact our profit margins due to highearuitment, training and retention costs. High emeé turnover increases training,
recruitment and retention costs because we musttaiaiarger hiring, training and human resourcggagtments and it also increases our
operating costs due to having to reallocate celiaginess processes among our operations centers wie have access to the skilled
workforce needed for our business. In 2012, werieclapproximately $2.4 million on recruitment approximately $2.7 million on training
costs due to employee turnover, thereby increasimgosts and reducing our profit margins for fetiod by $5.1 million.

In addition, our ability to maintain and renew ¢ixig engagements and obtain new business will déperdarge part, on our ability to
attract, train and retain personnel with skillsttkeep pace with the demand for outsourcing, emghmdustry standards and changing client
preferences. A lack of sufficiently qualified pemsel could also inhibit our ability to establishepgtions in new markets and our efforts to
expand geographically. Our failure to attract,itrand retain personnel with the qualifications 8seey to fulfill the needs of our existing and
future clients or to assimilate new employees ss&fedly could have a material adverse effect onbmginess, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

We have a long selling cycle for our outsourcingrgiees that requires significant funds and managenteesources and a long
implementation cycle that requires significant ras@e commitments.

We have a long selling cycle for our outsourcing®es, which requires significant investment apital, resources and time by both our
clients and us. Before committing to use our sejipotential clients require us to expend sulisidithe and resources educating them as to
the value of our services, including testing ourises for a limited period of time, and assesshrgyfeasibility of integrating our systems and
processes with theirs. Our clients then evaluateservices before deciding whether to use themréfbee, our selling cycle, which generally
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ranges from six to eighteen months, is subjectaaynisks and delays over which we have little @icantrol, including our clients’ decision to
choose alternatives to our services (such as ptioeiders or in-house offshore resources) andithiag of our clients’ budget cycles and
approval processes. In addition, we may not be tabdeiccessfully conclude a contract after theérgetlycle is complete.

Implementing our services involves a significantooitment of resources over an extended periochtd from both our clients and us.
Our clients may also experience delays in obtaiimternal approvals or delays associated with teldgy or system implementations, thereby
delaying further the implementation process. Oignt$ and future clients may not be willing or atdénvest the time and resources necessar
to implement our services, and we may fail to clesles with potential clients to which we have dedcsignificant time and resources. These
factors could have a material adverse effect orbasimess, results of operations, financial coaditind cash flows.

Once we are engaged by a client, it may take ugsdvymonths before we start to recognize signifitaavenues.

When we are engaged by a client after the sellinggss for our outsourcing services, it takes ffoan to six weeks to integrate the
client’s systems with ours, and up to three mottieseafter to build up our services to the cliemguirements. Depending on the complexity
of the processes being implemented, these timegeermay be significantly longer. Implementing pssss can be subject to potential delays
similar to certain of those affecting the sellingle. Therefore, we do not recognize significaneraies until after we have completed the
implementation phase.

We enter into long-term contracts with our clientand our failure to estimate the resources and timeguired for our contracts may
negatively affect our profitability.

The initial terms of our outsourcing contracts tgly range from three to five years. In many of outsourcing contracts we commit to
long-term pricing with our clients and thereforebthe risk of cost overruns, completion delaysgevimflation and adverse movements in
exchange rates in connection with these contrHaig fail to estimate accurately the resourcestand required for a contract, future wage
inflation rates or currency exchange rates (ortéadiccurately hedge our currency exchange ratesexp) or if we fail to complete our
contractual obligations within the contracted tiraefie, our revenues and profitability may be neghtiaffected.

Consistency in our revenues from period to periogpgnds in part on our ability to reflect the chamgj demands and needs of our existing
and potential clients. If we are unable to adjustiopricing terms or the mix of products and serviege provide to meet the changing
demands of our clients and potential clients, ourdiness, results of operations and financial coridit may be adversely affected.

Most of our contracts use a pricing model that tes for hourly or annual billing rates. Industrycpng models are evolving, however,
and we anticipate that clients may increasinglyest transaction-based or other pricing modelselfire unable to obtain operating
efficiencies or if we make inaccurate assumptiamsbntacts with transaction-based pricing, oufitability may be negatively affected. If we
are unable to adapt our operations to evolvingmgiprotocols, our results of operations may becaskly affected or we may not be able to
offer pricing that is attractive relative to oumgpetitors.

In addition, the services we provide to our cliesntsl the revenues and income from those servicgslewine or vary as the type and
guantity of services we provide under those cotdralsanges over time, including as a result ofifhishthe mix of products and services we
provide. Furthermore, our clients, some of whichehaxperienced significant and adverse changéeinprospects, substantial price
competition and pressures on their profitabilitsgyé in the past and may in the future demand peidactions, automate some or all of their
processes or change their outsourcing strategydwrm more work in-house or to other providers, ahwhich could reduce our profitability.
Any significant reduction in or the elimination thfe use of the services we provide to any of dents, or any requirement to lower our prices
would harm our business.
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Our profitability will suffer if we are not able t@ppropriately price our services or manage our efsatilization levels.

Our profitability is largely a function of the etfency with which we utilize our assets, in par#wour people and our operations centers
and the pricing that we are able to obtain forsmmvices. Our asset utilization levels are affetigd number of factors, including our ability to
transition employees from completed projects to assignments, attract, train and retain employleescast demand for our services and
maintain an appropriate headcount in each of atations, as well as our need to dedicate resotwaasployee training and development and
other typically non-chargeable activities. The gsiave are able to charge for our services aretatfdyy a number of factors, including our
clients’ perceptions of our ability to add valueaihgh our services, substantial price competitioimpduction of new services or products by us
or our competitors, our ability to accurately estis) attain and sustain revenues from client engagts, our ability to estimate resources for
long-term pricing, margins and cash flows for Idegm contracts and general economic and politicatitions. Therefore, if we are unable to
appropriately price our services or manage ourtagsieation levels, there could be a material @de effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our transformation services are cyclical and basaa specific projects involving short-term contracts

Our transformation services, such as our decisiatytics, finance transformation and operations pnogess excellence services, are
cyclical and can be significantly affected by v&das in business cycles. Changes in the deadtindse scope of work required for complial
with the requirements of legislation applicableto clients could have a significant impact on @ierservice offerings of our finance
transformation services business.

In addition, a majority of our transformation seeé consist of specific projects with contract tegenerally not exceeding one year and
may not produce ongoing or recurring business $oonce the project is completed. These contrastsieually contain provisions permitting
termination of the contract after a short noticeqeke The short-term nature and specificity of #hpsojects could lead to material fluctuations
and uncertainties in the revenues generated frawiging transformation services.

Our operating results may experience significantriability and as a result it may be difficult for sito make accurate financial forecasts.

Our operating results may vary significantly froeripd to period. Although our existing agreemenithoriginal terms of three or more
years provide us with a relatively predictable rawebase for a substantial portion of our busirtessiong selling cycle for our services and
budget and approval processes of prospective slimake it difficult to predict the timing of enteg into definitive agreements with new
clients. The timing of revenue recognition undewriient agreements also varies depending on wheenamplete the implementation phase
with new clients. The completion of implementatiaries significantly based upon the complexityhe processes being implemented.

Our period-to-period results have in the past aag aiso in the future fluctuate due to other fagtorcluding client losses, delays or
failure by our clients to provide anticipated bsis, variations in employee utilization rates résglfrom changes in our clients’ operations,
delays or difficulties in expanding our operati@esnters and infrastructure (including hiring newpkoyees or constructing new operations
centers), changes to our pricing structure ordfaur competitors, currency fluctuation, seasamanges in the operations of our clients and
other events identified in this Annual Report omd 0-K. Our revenues are also affected by chamgpscing under our contracts at the time
of renewal or by pricing under new contracts. Bamaple, because a significant portion of our reesmare denominated in U.K. pounds
sterling or U.S. dollars while most of our expenaesincurred and paid in Indian rupees and thipphie peso, our revenues can decrease o
increase significantly if the exchange rates ambegndian rupee, the U.K. pound sterling, theippihe peso and the U.S. dollar fluctuate
significantly. In addition, most of our contracts ot commit our clients to provide us with a sfieciolume of business. These factors may
make it difficult to make accurate financial foretsaor replace anticipated revenues that we doageive as a result of delays in implementing
our services or client losses. If our actual ressdét not meet any estimated results that we aneoundf we underperform market expectations
as a result of such factors, trading prices forammmon stock could be adversely affected.
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Our senior management team is critical to our camtied success and the loss of one or more membemiokenior management team cot
harm our business.

Our future success substantially depends on thincad services and performance of the membersioi@anagement team and other
key employees possessing technical and busineabitiips, including industry expertise, that aifficult to replace. Specifically, the loss of
the services of Rohit Kapoor, our Vice Chairman &ief Executive Officer, could seriously impairrability to continue to manage and
expand our business. There is intense competitioaxXperienced senior management and personnetewxitimical and industry expertise in the
industry in which we operate, and we may not be &bketain these officers or key employees. Aliowe have entered into employment anc
non-competition agreements with all of our exeatificers, certain terms of those agreements noayp@ enforceable and in any event these
agreements do not ensure the continued servidesétexecutive officers. Mr. Kapoor and certaihisfaffiliates have certain registration
rights with respect to their shares of common stock

In addition, we currently do not maintain “key pam8insurance covering any member of our manageteam. The loss of any of our
key employees, particularly to competitors, coudddhna material adverse effect on our businessltsesfioperations, financial condition and
cash flows.

Our inability to effectively manage our rapid infigructure and personnel growth could have a matéaverse effect on our operations,
results of operations and financial condition.

Since we were founded in April 1999, we have exqreréd rapid growth and significantly expanded qerations. We have fifteen
operations centers in India, six operations ceritetise U.S., two operations centers in each ofjBué& and the Philippines and one in each of
Romania, the Czech Republic and Malaysia. Our hmatcas increased from approximately 1,800 on Bee 31, 2002 to approximately
21,000 on December 31, 2012. We expect to develdpraprove our internal systems in the locationgrehwe operate in order to address the
anticipated growth of our business. We are alsairmoimg to look for operations centers at additidnaations outside of our current operating
geographies. We believe expanding our geograplsie bhoperations will provide higher value to olierts by decreasing the risks of
operating from a single country (including potehsiaortages of skilled employees, increases in veagés during strong economic times and
currency fluctuations), while also giving our clismccess to a wider talent pool and establishingsa in countries that may be competitive in
the future. However, we may not be able to effetyivnanage our infrastructure and employee expansjgen additional operations centers o
hire additional skilled employees as and when #ireyrequired to meet the ongoing needs of ourtsliemd we may not be able to develop ani
improve our internal systems. Our inability to exiscour growth strategy, to ensure the continuedjadcy of our current systems or to mai
our expansion effectively could have a materialemslg effect on our business, results of operatforemjcial condition and cash flows.

We may engage in strategic acquisitions or transawes, which could have a material adverse effectaur business, results of operations
and financial condition.

As part of our business strategy, we intend toinaetto selectively consider acquisitions or inwestts, some of which may be material.
Through the acquisitions we pursue, we may seehrbppities to expand the scope of our existingises/we provide, add new clients or to
enter new geographic markets. We have made adquoisin the past, including our acquisitions in 2@f Business Processing Outsourcing
Inc. (the “OPI Acquisition”) and Trumbull Servicdd, C and our acquisition of Landacorp in 2012. Thean be no assurance that we will
successfully identify suitable candidates in thieifel for strategic transactions at acceptable pricave sufficient capital resources to finance
potential acquisitions or be able to consummatedasyred transactions. Our failure to close traisas with potential acquisition targets for
which we have invested significant time and resesicould have a material adverse effect on oundiaécondition and cash flows.

Acquisitions, including completed acquisitions, dhxe a number of risks, including diversion of mgament’s attention, ability to
finance the acquisition on attractive terms, falto retain key personnel or
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valuable customers, legal liabilities and the rmeegimortize acquired intangible assets, any of whimuld have a material adverse effect on ot
business, results of operations, financial condidad cash flows. Future acquisitions may alsolr@sthe incurrence of indebtedness or the
issuance of additional equity securities.

We could also experience financial or other setbaftkansactions encounter unanticipated problénetiding problems related to
execution, integration or underperformance relattvprior expectations. Our management may nobieta successfully integrate any
acquired business into our operations or maintairstandards, controls and policies, which coukktemmaterial adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢amdiConsequently, any acquisition we do comptess not result in long-term benefits to us.

Following the completion of an acquisition, we nigwe to rely on the seller to provide administratimd other support, including
financial reporting and internal controls, and otfnensition services to the acquired business foeriod of time. There can be no assurance
that the seller will do so in a manner that is ptakle to us.

We may not be able to realize the entire book vadfigoodwill and other intangible assets from acaitions.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately #166llion of goodwill and $43.5 million of intandi assets. We periodically asses:s
these assets to determine if they are impairedaanhonitor for impairment of goodwill relating tl acquisitions. Goodwill is not amortized
but is tested for impairment testing at least ommmual basis as of December 31 of each year, lmsadumber of factors including operating
results, business plans and future cash flows. inmgat testing of goodwill may also be performediaen annual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of goodwill below its cangy amount. We perform an assessmet
qualitative factors to determine whether the exiséeof events or circumstances leads to a detetioinihat it is more likely than not that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg amount. Based on the results of the qualigatissessment, the Company performs the
guantitative assessment of goodwill impairment ddtermines that it is more likely than not tha fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount. In the event that the book valugomdwill is impaired, any such impairment woulel tharged to earnings in the period of
impairment. We cannot assure you that future inmpairt of goodwill will not have a material adver$ieet on our business, financial condit
or results of operations.

Employee wage increases may prevent us from susgigiour competitive advantage and may reduce ouofiirmargin.

Our most significant costs are the salaries aratedlbenefits of our operations staff and otherleymes. For example, wage costs in
India have historically been significantly loweathwage costs in the U.S. and Europe for compashilgd professionals, which has been
of our competitive advantages. However, becausapfi economic growth in India, increased demamaédsourcing services from India and
increased competition for skilled employees in éndvages for comparably skilled employees in l@d&increasing at a faster rate than in the
U.S. and Europe, which may reduce this competaiheantage. We may need to increase the levels plogee compensation more rapidly
than in the past to remain competitive in attragtind retaining the quality and number of employtkasour business requires. Wages are
generally higher for employees performing transfation services than for employees performing outsog services. As the scale of our
transformation services increases, wages as amageeof revenues will likely increase. To the akthat we are not able to control or share
wage increases with our clients, wage increasesrathyce our margins. We will attempt to controllsaosts by our efforts to add capacity in
locations where we consider wage levels of skiletsonnel to be satisfactory, but we may not beessful in doing so. Additionally, because
a majority of our employees are based in Indiagaid in Indian rupees, while our revenues are milgnen U.S. dollars and U.K. pounds
sterling, our employee costs as a percentage eftems may increase or decrease significantly iEkobange rates among the Indian rupee, tf
U.K. pound sterling and the U.S. dollar fluctuatgmgficantly.

If more stringent labor laws become applicable ts ar if our employees unionize, our profitabilityay be adversely affecte

India has stringent labor legislation that protextgloyee interests, including legislation thas $etth detailed procedures for dispute
resolution and employee removal and legislatiotithposes financial obligations on employers upetnenchment. Though we are exempt
from some of these labor laws at present underptiees in some states for providers of IT-enabledises, there can be no assurance that
such laws will not become applicable to us in tteife. If these labor laws become applicable toemoployees, it may become difficult for us
to maintain flexible human resource policies arithat and employ the numbers of sufficiently quatifcandidates that we need or discharge
employees, and our compensation expenses may secsgmificantly. Regulations in our other opemtireographies also regulate our relat
with our employees.

In addition, our employees may in the future forioms. If employees at any of our operations carbeccome eligible for union
membership, we may be required to raise wage levedsant other benefits that could result in aréase in our compensation expenses, in
which case our profitability may be adversely atféeic

The Government of India has recently focused orotlmeipational health and safety concerns experiebgavorkers in the outsourcing
industry. The introduction of legislation imposirestrictions on working hours or conditions of gsgionals in the outsourcing industry could
have an adverse effect on our business, resutiparhtions and financial condition.
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We face significant competition from U.S.-based amoin-U.S.-based outsourcing and IT companies andrr our clients, who may perform
outsourcing services themselves, either in-housethe U.S. or through offshore groups or other amgements.

The market for outsourcing services is highly cotitipe, and we expect competition to intensify ancrease from a number of sources.
We believe that the principal competitive factor®ur markets are breadth and depth of processtesgyeknowledge of industries served,
service quality, the ability to attract, train ardain qualified people, compliance rigor, globeligery capabilities, price and sales and client
management capabilities. We also face competitiom fnon-U.S.-based outsourcing and IT companiedu@ng those in the U.K. and India)
and U.S.-based outsourcing and IT companies. litiaddthe trend toward offshore outsourcing, inegtional expansion by foreign and
domestic competitors and continuing technologitanges, such as cloud computing, will result in e different competition for our
services. These competitors may include entraata the communications, software and data networkidgstries or entrants in geographic
locations with lower costs than those in which werate. Some of these existing and future compefitave greater financial, personnel and
other resources, a broader range of service offerigreater technological expertise, more recoptedarand names and more established
relationships in industries that we currently sesvenay serve in the future. In addition, some wf @ompetitors may enter into strategic or
commercial relationships among themselves or withdr, more established companies in order to aser¢heir ability to address client needs,
or enter into similar arrangements with potenti@rds. The trend in multi-vendor relationships bagn growing, which could reduce our
revenues to the extent that we are required to iyt terms of our relationship with clients oatltlients obtain services from other vendors.
Increased competition, our inability to competecassfully against competitors, pricing pressurdsss of market share could result in redt
operating margins, which could harm our businessylts of operations, financial condition and ciels.

We expect competition to intensify in the futurenasre companies enter our markets. Increased cdtiopehay result in lower prices
and volumes, higher costs for resources, espegiatiple, and lower profitability. We may not beeatd supply clients with services that they
deem superior and at competitive prices and we losgybusiness to our competitors. Any inabilitctanpete effectively would adversely
affect our business, results of operations andfire condition.

We may disrupt our clients’ operations as a resaoftinadequate service or other factors, includinglécommunications or technology
downtime or interruptions.

The services we provide are often critical to dients’ businesses, and any failure to provide ¢rgervices could result in a reduction in
revenues or a claim for substantial damages agasnsegardless of whether we are responsiblénédrfailure. Most of our agreements with
clients contain service level and performance meguénts, including requirements relating to thdiguaf our services. Failure to consistently
meet service requirements of a client or errorserigdour employees in the course of deliveringisessto our clients could disrupt the client’
business and result in a reduction in revenuesctaim for damages against us. Additionally, weldancur certain liabilities if a process we
manage for a client were to result in internal colrfailures or impair our client’s ability to corypwith its own internal control requirements.

Our contractual limitations on liability with our &ients and third parties may not be enforceable.

Under a majority of our agreements with our clieotg liability for breach of certain of our oblig@ns is generally limited to actual
damages suffered by the client and is typicallypeaiat the greater of an agreed amount or thepgEidsor payable to us for a period of time
under the relevant agreement. These limitationscapd on liability may be unenforceable or otheewisay not protect us from liability for
damages. In addition, certain liabilities, suclclasms of third parties for which we may be reqdite indemnify our clients or liability for
breaches of confidentiality, are generally not{ediunder those agreements. Our agreements arengdvay laws of multiple jurisdictions,
therefore the interpretation of such provisiongl #re availability of defenses to us, may vary,ckhinay contribute to the uncertainty as to the
scope of our potential liability. In addition, maafour agreements with our clients do not incladg limitation on our liability to them with
respect to breaches of our obligation to keeprf@ination we receive from them confidential.
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Our dependence on our offshore operations cergqusres us to maintain active voice and data conications among our operations
centers, our international technology hubs andcbents’ offices. Although we maintain redundartifities and communications links,
disruptions could result from, among other thirtgshnical breakdowns, computer glitches and virasesweather conditions. We also depent
on certain significant vendors for facility storaged related maintenance of our main technologypegent and data at those technology hubs
Any failure by these vendors to perform those s&w,any temporary or permanent loss of our equipresystems, or any disruptions to
basic infrastructure like power and telecommundaicould impede our ability to provide servicesto clients, have a negative impact on
reputation, cause us to lose clients, reduce a@niges and harm our business.

Our business could be materially and adversely aféal if we do not protect our intellectual propeny if our services are found to infringe
on the intellectual property of others.

Our success depends in part on certain methodslggiiactices, tools and technical expertise weatih designing, developing,
implementing and maintaining applications and offreprietary intellectual property rights. In orderprotect our rights in these various
intellectual properties, we rely upon a combinatidmondisclosure and other contractual arrangesr@mtvell as trade secret, patent, copyrigh
and trademark laws. We also generally enter intdidentiality agreements with our employees, cotasus, clients and potential clients and
limit access to and distribution of our proprietarformation. We also have submitted and expecbttiinue to submit U.S. federal and foreign
trademark applications for the names of certaivisemnfferings. We may not be successful in maimiej or obtaining trademarks for these
trade names. India is a member of the Berne Coiorerdn international intellectual property treapd has agreed to recognize protections o
intellectual property rights conferred under thedaf other foreign countries, including the lavistee U.S. There can be no assurance that th
laws, rules, regulations and treaties in effe¢chanU.S., India and the other jurisdictions in vhige operate and the contractual and other
protective measures we take, are adequate to prdmm misappropriation or unauthorized usewwofintellectual property, or that such laws
will not change. We may not be able to detect umanitged use and take appropriate steps to enfancaghts, and any such steps may not be
successful. Infringement by others of our intellet¢iproperty, including the costs of enforcing suellectual property rights, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations and financial condition.

Our client contracts generally require our clientindemnify us for any breaches of intellectuaperty rights or licenses to third party
software when our clients provide such access.tdltisough we believe that we are not infringingtbe intellectual property rights of others,
claims may nonetheless be asserted against ue fattire. The costs of defending any such clainuddcbe significant, and any successful
claim may require us to modify, discontinue or meeaany of our services. Any such changes may havaterial adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial ¢adi

New and changing corporate governance and publisaosure requirements add uncertainty to our congpice policies and increase ol
costs of compliance.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatirmgtounting, corporate governance and publicalsce, including the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, other SEC regulations, and tSRWAQ Global Select Market rules, are creating utaiety for companies like ours. The
laws, regulations and standards may lack spegifésitd are subject to varying interpretations. Theplication in practice may evolve over
time, as new guidance is provided by regulatory gmekrning bodies. This could result in continuingcertainty regarding compliance matters
and higher costs of compliance as a result of anggdvisions to such corporate governance standards

In particular, our efforts to comply with Sectio@4of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rdleggulations regarding our required
assessment of our internal controls over finanejpbrting and our external auditors’ audit of thasessment requires the commitment of
significant financial and managerial resources.dbfesistently assess the adequacy of our intermdtale over financial reporting, remediate
any control deficiencies that may be identified] aalidate through testing that our controls arfioning as documented. While we do not
anticipate any material weaknesses, the inabifitpanagement and our independent auditor to pravédeith an unqualified report as to the
adequacy and effectiveness, respectively, of dernal controls over financial reporting for futyrear ends could result in adverse
consequences to us, including, but not limitectlmss of investor confidence in the reliabilityafr financial statements, which could cause
the market price of our stock to decline.

We are committed to maintaining high standardsopparate governance and public disclosure, angfiarts to comply with evolving
laws, regulations and standards in this regard hasted in, and are likely to continue to resulincreased general and administrative
expenses and a diversion of management time agwtiatt from revenue-generating activities to coanptie activities. In addition, the laws,
regulations and standards regarding corporate gamee may make it more difficult for us to obtairedtor and officer liability insurance.
Further, our board members, chief executive offaoed chief financial officer could face an increhsiek of personal liability in connection
with their performance of duties. As a result, wayrface difficulties attracting and retaining gfiell board members and executive officers,
which could harm our business. If we fail to compiyh new or changed laws, regulations or standafd®rporate governance, our business
and reputation may be harmed.

Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confiderit@dient and customer data, whether through breaochour computer systems or otherwit
could expose us to protracted and costly litigatiand cause us to lose clients.

We are typically required to collect and store g&msdata in connection with our services, inchglhames, addresses, social security
numbers, personal health information, credit cabant numbers, checking and savings account nunamel payment history records, such a
account closures and returned checks. In additier;ollect and store data regarding our employ&es result, we are subject to various data
protection and privacy laws in countries in whicé eperate. In addition, many of our agreements authclients do not include any limitatic



on our liability to them with respect to breachésuar obligation to keep the information we receik@n them confidential. We devote
substantial resources to maintaining adequatedefatyber security and to protecting confidentignt and customer data. However, any
network infrastructure may be vulnerable to rapielplving cyber attacks. If any person, includimy af our employees, penetrates our
network security or otherwise mismanages or misgpates sensitive data, we could be subject toifsignt liability and lawsuits from our
clients or their own customers for breaching casitral confidentiality provisions or privacy laws, iavestigations and penalties from

regulators. We have obtained privacy and netwockisty insurance for claims related to breachesufprivacy and network security,
including unauthorized access to or disclosuresofgive
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data, suspension or interruption of our networkastructure, transmission of computer viruses iduriato comply with our privacy and
network security procedures. However, such covenaay not be adequate or may not continue to béadlaion reasonable terms or in
sufficient amounts to cover one or more large c&iand our insurers may disclaim coverage as tdianye claims. Cyber attacks penetrating
the network security of our data centers could ke a negative impact on our reputation and tctienfidence, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of opagtimancial condition and cash flows.

We may not be fully insured for all losses we magur.

Although we attempt to limit and mitigate our liidyi for damages arising from negligent acts, esror omissions through contractual
provisions, limitations of liability set forth inup contracts may not be enforceable in all instarmranay not otherwise protect us from liability
for damages. In addition, certain liabilities, sashclaims of third parties for which we may beuieed to indemnify our clients, are generally
not limited under those agreements. Although weeslganeral liability insurance coverage, includiogerage for errors or omissions, property
damage or loss and breaches of privacy and netsemilrity, that coverage may not continue to belavig on reasonable terms or in sufficien
amounts to cover one or more large claims, andnsuirers may disclaim coverage as to any futurienclihe successful assertion of one or
more large claims against us that are excluded &omnsurance coverage or exceed available insaraoverage, or changes in our insurance
policies (including premium increases or the imposiof large deductible or co-insurance requiretsgrtould have a material adverse effect
on our business, reputation, results of operatifimancial condition and cash flows.

We do not intend to pay dividends in the foreseesafiture, and, because we are also a holding compame may be unable to pay dividen

For the foreseeable future, we intend to retaineamings to finance the development and expamdionr business, and we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends on our comstock. Any future determination to pay dividendd W at the discretion of our board of
directors and will be dependent on then-existingditons, including our financial condition and wés of operations, capital requirements,
contractual restrictions, including restrictiongdanour credit agreement, business prospects &ed fatctors that our board of directors
considers relevant. Furthermore, because we arseadislding company, any dividend payments wowad depend on the cash flow from our
subsidiaries. Accordingly, we may not be able tp gi@idends even if our board of directors woultarvise deem it appropriate.

We may choose to expand operations to additionalrddes and may not be successful in maintainingrozurrent profit margins in our new
locations due to factors beyond our control.

We are currently continuing to evaluate additidnahtions outside our current operating geographi@ghich to invest in an operations
center. We cannot predict the extent of governraapport, availability of qualified workers, or mdagy and economic conditions in other
countries. Although some of these factors willuethce our decision to establish operations in @matbuntry, there are inherent risks beyond
our control, including exposure to currency fludtoas, political uncertainties, foreign exchangstrietions and foreign regulatory restrictions.
One or more of these factors or other factorsirgjab expanded international operations couldltésuncreased operating expenses and mak
it more difficult for us to manage our costs anémgions, which could harm our business and negjgtisnpact our operating results.

We may increase the range of services that we glexd our clients and our business and future presgs are difficult to evaluate.

We are exploring opportunities to provide servitted we have not provided to date. Should we decidspand our service offerings,
our results of operations may be negatively affdigring any transition or growth period beforetsotferings achieve profitability. For
example, we may need to expand our training ofeaisting employees or recruit new, specially-trdieenployees to provide these services,
which could increase our costs of revenues disptipately to the revenues generated by such ssvidther challenges we may face include
the diversion of our management’s attention, atingand retaining clients for such services, irdigg any new services into our current suite
of services and managing any resulting growth inaperations.
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Failure to adhere to the regulations that govern obusiness could have an adverse impact on our @piens.

Our clients are often subject to regulations thay mequire that we comply with certain rules argutations in performing services for
them that would not otherwise apply to us. Deblteotion services, for example, may be subject éoRhir Debt Collection Practices Act, wh
regulates debt collection practices. In additioangnU.S. states require a debt collector to apmlylfe granted and maintain a license to en
in debt collection activities in a state. We arerently licensed (or exempt from licensing requiesns) to provide debt collection services in
the U.S. from India in all but two U.S. states &man the Philippines in 35 U.S. states that have-ewempt requirements and that have
separate conditional exemptions with respect toomgioing collection obligations. If we do not maiimt our licenses or other qualifications to
provide our services, we may not be able to pros&t®ices to existing customers or be able todthraw clients and could lose revenues,
which could have a material adverse effect on agirtess. Other U.S. federal laws and regulatioatsapply to certain portions of our busines:
include the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Grammatle-Bliley Act, the Health Insurance Portabilitydafsccountability Act of 1996, the
HITECH Act of 2009, the Truth in Lending Act, thaiF Credit Billing Act; the Federal Trade Commigsiact and FDIC rules and regulations.
We must also comply with applicable federal andestamvs and regulations relating to healthcareathdr personal information that we must
process as part of our services. Our agreemerttssaihe of our clients require us to remain knowéadide about and comply with a number of
relevant consumer protection laws and other regolaequirements. Failure to perform our serviecea manner that complies with any such
requirement could result in breaches of contradtis @ur clients. Our failure to comply with any digpble laws and regulations could subject
us to civil fines and criminal penalties.

Our stock price continues to be volatile.

Our stock has at times experienced substantiag potatility as a result of variations between actual and anticipated financial results,
announcements by us and our competitors, projectiospeculation about our business or that otompetitors by the media or investment
analysts or uncertainty about current global ecanaonditions. The stock market, as a whole, aE®dxperienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market pricenahy technology companies in ways that may haee berelated to these companies’
operating performance. Furthermore, we believestatk price should reflect future growth and patfitity expectations and, if we fail to me
these expectations, our stock price may signifigatecline.

Delaware law and our amended and restated certifecaf incorporation and b-laws contain certain anti-takeover provisions theduld
delay or discourage business combinations and taleattempts that stockholders may consider favdeab

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind by-laws contain provisions that may makedte difficult, expensive or
otherwise discourage a tender offer or a changeritrol or takeover attempt by a third-party ttaabdpposed by our board of directors. These
provisions include classified board provisions yismdns permitting the board of directors to filaancies created by its expansion, provisions
permitting the removal of directors only for caasel with a 662 4 % stockholder vote, provisions ieng a 662 /3 % stockholder vote for
certain amendments to our organizational documentsjsions barring stockholders from calling agpkemeeting of stockholders or requiri
one to be called or from taking action by writtemsent and provisions that set forth advance neticeedures for stockholders’ nominations
of directors and proposals for consideration attmnge of stockholders. These provisions may haeesffect of delaying or preventing a
change of control or changes in management theklstdders consider favorable. Additionally, becawseare incorporated in Delaware, we
are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware Ger@ogboration Law. Section 203 may prohibit largecktmlders, in particular those owning
15.0% or more of our outstanding voting stock, fnmrging or combining with us. These provision®of amended and restated certificate o
incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law could discourage potentiadser attempts and reduce the price that investaght be willing to pa
for shares of our common stock in the future whiohld reduce the market price of our stock.

Risks Related to the International Nature of Our Bisiness

Our financial condition could be negatively affealdf foreign governments reduce or withdraw tax befits and other incentives currently
provided to companies within our industry or if vage not eligible for these benefit

Under the Income Tax Act, 1961 of India, we pregiglbenefited from certain tax incentives promutghby the Indian government,
including a tax holiday from Indian corporate inaataxes for the operation of some of our Indiarrajpens centers. The tax benefit for most
of our operations centers in India expired on Aprie011. Our operations centers in Jaipur and &didlia, which were established in SEZs ir
2010, are eligible for tax incentives until 202n years from the year of their establishment. @t of the OPI Acquisition, we also acquired
operations centers in Bengaluru and Kochi, Indé #re also located in SEZs. The operations camiengaluru completed its first five years
of operations on March 31, 2012 and benefitted feob®0% exemption on export profits in prior ye&isder the tax regulations, the
Bengaluru operations center is now entitled to % 5&x exemption on export profits for five yearsnfr April 1, 2012. After April 1, 2017, the
applicable tax exemption will be further reduceck ®so established a new operations center in Pogie,in June 2012, which is located in
SEZ. The Company anticipates establishing additioparations centers in SEZs or other tax advantémgations in the future



The Direct Taxes Code Bill 2010 (the Direct Taxesl€) proposed by the Government of India and ctlyr@ending before the Indian
Parliament proposes grandfathering the existinfjitdrased tax benefits for operations centers iZ$S&ready receiving such tax benefits. The
Direct Taxes Code also proposes discontinuing ppbafsed incentives for operations centers in SEZss after March 31, 2014 and replaces
them with investment-based incentives for operaticenters in SEZs established after that date. rloagly, we expect to continue receiving
the benefit of tax deductions for our existing @pi@ns centers in SEZs pursuant to the curreniagguos until the currently proposed
March 31, 2014 sunset date. If this grandfathediogs not happen under the Direct Taxes Code ahd gunset date is brought forward, our
new operations centers in SEZs will not receivdipb@ased tax benefits. Without such benefits, wpeet that our tax rate in India and our
overall tax rate will increase over the next fevargeand that such increase may be material.

One of our operations centers in the Philippinetefited from a four-year income tax holiday thapieed in May 2012. In February
2013, PEZA, which can approve two successive o@e-getensions, granted us a one year extensiaractively from May 2012. Our new
operations center in the Philippines, which begaerations in January 2012, benefits from a sep&vateyear income tax holiday that can be
extended at PEZA's discretion. While we are reablyneertain that PEZA will extend these tax holidalf is possible that such extension
requests may be denied, or that these tax holisaysbe conditioned or removed entirely due to ckarig applicable legislation by the
government of the Philippines. Should any of thesents occur, our tax liability in the Philippingsuld likely increase.
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We may be required to pay additional taxes in coatien with audits by the Indian taxing authorities.

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regtiivat any international transaction involving @&ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-lengtl
price. Transactions among the Company’s subsidiane the Company may be required to satisfy seghirements. Accordingly, the
Company determines the pricing among its assocetégtprises on the basis of detailed functiondlesonomic analysis involving
benchmarking against transactions among entitegsatte not under common control. The tax autharhigve jurisdiction to review this
arrangement and in the event that they determauethie transfer price applied was not approprtate Company may incur increased tax
liability, including accrued interest and penalti€ee Company is currently involved in disputedwmite Indian tax authorities over the
application of some of its transfer pricing polgi®r past years. Please see Note 15 to our cdasedi financial statements for details.

Based on advice from our Indian tax advisors, #usfunderlying our position and our experiencé wiese types of assessments, we
continue to believe that the probability of losseémote and have not accrued any amount with réspéitese matters in our consolidated
financial statements. Any amounts paid by us assiepwill be refunded to us with interest or apgltoward outstanding disputes at such tim
if we succeed in our appeals with the appropriateatithorities. We cannot assure you that our dppét be successful or that these appeals
will be finally resolved in the near future.

Introduction of tax legislation and disputes witlax authorities may have an adverse effect on ouergions and our overall tax rate

Governments in countries in which we operate ovigeservices could enact new tax legislation whichuld have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition. In addition, our ability to r@piate surplus earnings from our operations
centers in a tax-efficient manner is dependent uptempretations of local laws, possible changesuich laws and the renegotiation of existing
double tax avoidance treaties. Changes to anyesktmay adversely affect our overall tax rate, twiwould have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financiatition. Additionally, if a tax authority in anyijisdiction reviews any of our tax returns and
determines that the transfer prices and terms we &pplied are not appropriate, or that other ire@four affiliates should be taxed in that
jurisdiction, we may incur increased tax liabilitycluding accrued interest and penalties, whiclhildb@ause our tax expense to incre
possibly materially, thereby reducing our profitapiand cash flows.

The Company has undertaken a legal entity ratipatidin project which may be implemented and beceffeetive in 2013 to simplify
the global legal entity structure and remove redumoetes and reduce compliance risks and costs assdevith it. Furthermore, the Company
also intends to optimize the tax and financialoééficies of the group structure. As a result, wg o@ry out certain re-organizations under the
tax laws of various jurisdictions in which we opterand take certain positions to qualify for taxitnality for such internal re-organization. We
cannot assure you that there could not be anwtitig by the tax authorities on such re-organizatiien implemented.

Our global operations expose us to numerous and stimes conflicting legal and regulatory requiremextand violations of these
regulations could harm our business.

Because we provide services to clients throughwaitiorld, we are subject to numerous, and sometimeficting, legal rules on matte
as diverse as import/export controls, content mrequénts, trade restrictions, tariffs, taxation,csimms, government affairs, internal and
disclosure control obligations, data privacy arublarelations. Violations of these laws or regwas in the conduct of our business could re
in fines, criminal sanctions against us or ouragffs, prohibitions on doing business, damage toeputation and other unintended
consequences such as liability for monetary damdiges and/or criminal prosecution, unfavorabl®lpmity, restrictions on our ability to
process information and allegations by our cli¢hé&t we have not performed our contractual oblageti Due to the varying degrees of
development of the legal systems of the countriegtiich we operate, local laws might be insuffitienprotect our rights. Our failure to
comply with applicable legal and regulatory requiemts could have a material adverse effect on usinbss, results of operations and
financial condition.

Among other anti-corruption laws and regulationsjuding the U.K. Bribery Act, we are subject te tinited States Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, or FCPA, which prohibits impropeympents or offers of improper payments to foreigiicéls to obtain business or any other
benefit. The FCPA also requires covered companiesake and keep books and records that accuratdlfa&ly reflect the transactions of the
company and to devise and maintain an adequatersystinternal accounting controls. In many paftthe world, including countries in
which we operate, practices in the local businessnsunity might not conform to international busisietandards and could violate these anti-
corruption laws or regulations. Although we havéigies and procedures in place that are designg@damote legal and regulatory compliance
our employees, subcontractors and agents couldatalans that violate these policies or procedoregpplicable anti-corruption laws or
regulations. Furthermore, the U.S. government neak $0 hold us liable for successor liability FCHalations committed by companies in
which we invest or that we acquire. Violations tedéde laws or regulations could subject us to caion civil enforcement actions, including
fines and suspension or disqualification from goweent contracting or contracting with private a@asitin certain highly regulated industries,
any of which could have a material adverse effecbar business.

Currency fluctuations among the Indian rupee, the.Kl. pound sterling, the Philippine peso and the Ud®llar could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

Although a substantial portion of our revenuesdameominated in U.S. dollars (72.3% in 2012) or LpBunds sterling (20.2% in 2012)
significant portion of our expenses are incurred paid in Indian rupees and Philippines peso (5%a2%7.2% in 2012, respectively). We
report our financial results in U.S. dollars. Thelenge rates among the Indian rupee, the U.K. ¢hstarling, the Philippine peso and the U.S
dollar have changed substantially in recent yeagsnaay fluctuate substantially in the future. Altlgh we take steps to hedge a substantial
portion of our Indian rupee/U.S. dollar and Philipggs peso/U.S. dollar foreign currency exposurasy@sults of operations may be advers



affected if the Indian rupee and Philippines pésctiiates significantly against the U.S. dollag thK. pound sterling further depreciates
against the U.S. dollar, our hedging strategy sugnessful or if the hedging markets have inswfitliquidity or depth to allow us to
implement our hedging strategy in a cost-effecthanner. Any failure by our hedging counterpart@meet their contractual obligations could
materially and adversely affect our profitabiliti/e are subject to legal restrictions on hedgingyiiets as
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well as the convertibility of currencies in Indihis could limit our ability to use cash generairedne country in another country and could
limit our ability to hedge our exposures.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence invily India, the Philippines, the U.S. or other coum¢s could adversely affect the financial
markets, result in a loss of client confidence aadversely affect our business, results of operai@nd financial condition.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or,wenluding those involving India, the Philippinglse U.S. or other countries, may
adversely affect worldwide financial markets andldgotentially lead to economic recession, whichld adversely affect our business, re:
of operations and financial condition. These eventdd adversely affect our clients’ levels of mesis activity and precipitate sudden
significant changes in regional and global econarnitditions and cycles. These events also poséisagtt risks to our people and to our
operations centers. South Asia has, from timeme tiexperienced instances of civil unrest and litiedi among neighboring countries,
including Bangladesh, Pakistan and China. In regeats there have been several instances of mjititamfrontations along the Indo-Pakistani
border. There continues to be potential for hdig#ibetween India and Pakistan due to recentristiaxctivities and the geopolitical climate
along the border. Although this has not been tise ta date, such political tensions could createraeption that there is a risk of disruption of
services provided by India-based companies, whiciidchave a material adverse effect on the madeddir services. Furthermore, if India
were to become engaged in armed hostilities, pdatily hostilities that were protracted or involviba threat or use of nuclear weapons, we
might not be able to continue to operate. Our imsce policies may not insure us against lossesndgaiuptions caused by terrorist attacks an
other acts of violence or war.

We may face difficulties as we expand our operaidnto countries in which we have no prior operatjrexperience.

We intend to continue to expand our global footpirinorder to maintain an appropriate cost strieeumd meet our clientdelivery need:
This may involve expanding into countries othemtttzose in which we currently operate. It may iweoéxpanding into less developed
countries, which may have less political, sociatoonomic stability and less developed infrastmgcaind legal systems. As we expand our
business into new countries we may encounter regylgpersonnel, technological and other diffiastihat increase our expenses or delay ou
ability to start up our operations or become padifie in such countries. This may affect our retatfops with our clients and could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of ope&imaod financial condition.

A substantial portion of our assets and operaticar® located in India, and we are subject to regudat, economic and political uncertaintie
in India.

Our principal operating subsidiaries are incorpedah India, and a majority of our assets and eafgssionals are located in India. We
intend to continue to develop and expand our oftsHiacilities in India. In the early 1990s, Indigperienced significant inflation, low growth
in gross domestic product and shortages of foreigrency reserves. The Indian government, howdaaes exercised and continues to exercise
significant influence over many aspects of thedndéconomy. India’s government has provided sigaifi tax incentives and relaxed certain
regulatory restrictions in order to encourage fgmenvestment in specified sectors of the econanthiding our industry. Certain of those
programs, which have benefited us, include taxdag#, liberalized import and export duties andgnesitial rules on foreign investment and
repatriation. We cannot assure you that liberabrapolicies will continue. Various factors, suchchanges in the current federal government
could trigger significant changes in India’s ecomoliberalization and deregulation policies andrdiig business and economic conditions in
India generally and our business in particular.

The choice of India as an outsourcing destinatimh@ur financial performance may be adversely &fitby general economic conditic
and economic and fiscal policy in India, includiciganges in exchange rates and controls, intereest aad taxation policies, as well as social
stability and political, economic or diplomatic ddepments affecting India in the future. In partizyuindia has experienced significant
economic growth over the last several years, madanajor challenges in sustaining that growthéytears ahead. These challenges include
the need for substantial infrastructure developraedtimproving access to healthcare and educaionability to
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recruit, train and retain qualified employees, depend operate our operations centers, and atrattetain clients could be adversely affe
if India does not successfully meet these challenge

Restrictions on entry visas may affect our abilitty compete for and provide services to clientshe tJ.S., which could have a materi
adverse effect on future revenues.

The vast majority of our employees are Indian metis. The ability of some of our executives and legges to work with and meet our
U.S. and European clients and our clients fromroatbentries depends on their ability to obtainnlkeeessary visas and entry permits. In
response to terrorist attacks, the recent globa@nic downturn and public sentiments about thé bigemployment rates in their respective
economies, U.S. and European immigration autherfise/e increased the level of scrutiny in grantiisgs. Immigration laws in those count
may also require us to meet certain levels of carsaon and comply with other legal requirementa asndition to obtaining or maintaining
entry visas. These restrictions have increasedpécation fees for certain types of visas andehsignificantly lengthened the time
requirements to obtain visas for our personnelctvhias in the past resulted, and may continuestdtrén delays in the ability of our person
to meet with our clients. In addition, immigrati@ws are subject to legislative change and vargtagdards of application and enforcement
due to political forces, economic conditions oresthvents, including terrorist attacks. We canmetljt the political or economic events that
could affect immigration laws or any restrictivegatt those events could have on obtaining or mongantry visas for our professionals. If
we are unable to obtain the necessary visas feopael who need to get to our clients’ sites, ¢néf duration of such visas is shortened or if
such visas are delayed, we may not be able togeaarvices to our clients or to continue to prewtikese services on a timely and cost
effective basis, which could have a material adveféect on our business, results of operationgnitial condition and cash flows.

We are vulnerable to natural disasters that coulelverely disrupt the normal operation of our busirseand adversely affect our business,
results of operation and financial condition.

India and the Philippines are susceptible to natlisasters, including typhoons, tsunamis, flooald earthquakes. The Philippines is
additionally susceptible to volcanic eruptions. Sahtially all of our operations centers and empésyare located in India and the Philippines.
If our operations centers are damaged by a typhsanami, flood, earthquake, volcanic eruptiontheo natural disaster, our operations and
our ability to provide services to our clients abbk interrupted or delayed significantly. Our irmice coverage may not be sufficient to covel
all of our potential losses. In addition, althowdhof our operations centers have access to gihwer sources, disaster management facilities
may not be adequate to protect against potensakk In addition, clients may terminate their @rs with us if we cannot resume providing
services quickly enough. As a result, a naturastey in India or the Philippines could have a miatadverse effect on our business, results o
operation and financial condition.

Investors may have difficulty effecting service pfocess or enforcing judgments obtained in the Ua§ainst our subsidiaries in India or ot
executive officers.

Our primary operating subsidiaries are organizedide the U.S. and a number of our executive afficeside outside of the U.S. A
substantial portion of our assets are locateddimlmAs a result, you may be unable to effect seraf process upon our affiliates who reside ir
India outside their jurisdiction of residence. tiddion, you may be unable to enforce against tipessons outside the jurisdiction of their
residence judgments obtained in courts of the h&lyding judgments predicated solely upon thesfatlsecurities laws of the U.S.

Sections 44A and Section 13 of the Indian Civild&dure Code, 1908 (the “Civil Code”) govern rectigniand enforcement of foreign
judgments. Section 44A of the Civil Code providesrecognition and enforcement of a foreign judgtweithout having to file an original su
in India, provided such judgments have been remdleyecourts in a country or territory outside Indihich the Government of India has
declared to be a reciprocating territory. We hagerbadvised by our Indian counsel that the U.Sliadid do not currently have a treaty
providing for reciprocal recognition and enforcermehjudgments (other than certain arbitration adggin civil and commercial matters.
Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of morendered by any federal or state court in the baSed on civil liability, whether or not it
is predicated upon the federal securities lawfefd.S., would not be enforceable in India as such.
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However, if the party in whose favor such finalgaaent is rendered brings a new suit in a competauntt in India based on a final
judgment that has been obtained in the U.S., SedBoof the Civil Code provides that the foreigdgment will be conclusive as to certi
matters. The suit must be brought in India witthiree years of the date of the foreign judgmeris. iinlikely, however, that a court in India
would award damages on the same basis as a cdbg W.S. if an action is brought in India. It isaunlikely that an Indian court would
enforce judgments obtained in the U.S. if it viewleel amount of damages awarded as excessive arsistent with Indian practice.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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ITEM 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters is located in New YN#gw York. We have fifteen operations centers indntvo operations centers in each
of Bulgaria and the Philippines and one in eacRafhania, the Czech Republic and Malaysia with ayvexgpte area of approximately
1,560,000 square feet and a current installed dgpafcapproximately 18,600 agent workstations2012, we inaugurated the EXL Center for
Talent in Noida, India, which is our first faciligxclusively dedicated to recruitment, capabilihancement and talent development. We also
have six operations centers in the U.S. and a séfies in London, U.K. Our networking and telecommmication hubs are located in Sunnyv
California, Jersey City, New Jersey and New Yor&wNYork. Substantially all of our operations cestare leased under long-term leases witl
varying expiration dates, except for an operatimrdter in Pune, India with an area of 86,361 sa@rftl containing 1,325 agent workstations
which we own. We do not have the option under aas@nt lease agreements to buy any of these piegert

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of our normal business activitiesioues lawsuits, claims and proceedings may beturisti or asserted against us. We
believe that the disposition of matters currentistituted or asserted will not have a material estveffect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. Sdesee Note 15 to our consolidated financial statgsfor details regarding our tax
proceedings.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II.
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Skladtet under the symbol “EXLS.”

The following table sets forth for the periods icatied the high and low sales prices for sharesio€@mmon stock as reported by the
Nasdaq Global Select Marki

Price Range

Calendar Period High Low
2012

First Quartel $28.8¢ $21.45
Second Quarte $28.2¢ $20.2¢
Third Quartel $29.71 $22.67
Fourth Quarte $30.1( $25.87
2011

First Quarte! $22.4¢ $18.6:
Second Quarte $24.7¢ $17.9¢
Third Quartel $26.5¢ $21.5¢
Fourth Quarte $26.9¢ $21.3(

As of February 28, 2013, there were 43 holdergoérd of our outstanding common stock.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividendsuorommon stock. We currently expect to retairohbur earnings for use in
developing our business and do not anticipate gesity cash dividends in the foreseeable futuraurButash dividends, if any, will be paid at
the discretion of our board of directors and wépend, among other things, upon our future opersi@md earnings, capital requirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractesstrictions and such other factors as our boadirettors may deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynpaguired 12,865 shares of common stock from eyegl® in connection with
withholding tax payments related to the vestingestricted stock for a total consideration of $339, The weighted average purchase price ¢
$25.78 per share was the average of the high angrice of the Companyg’share of common stock on the Nasdaqg Global Siladtet on the
trading day prior to the vesting date of the shafagstricted stock. The shares acquired are &elteasury stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Dedger 31, 2012 with respect to the shares of oumeomstock that may be issued
under our existing equity compensation plans. Faescription of our equity compensation plans, sgesee Note 13 to our consolidated
financial statements.
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Plan Category

Equity compensation plans that have
been approved by security hold

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holder
Total

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock with the clative total return of the Nasdi
100 Index (capitalization weighted) and our peeugrof companies for the period beginning Octolier2D06. Our peer group of companie
comprised of two companies that we believe arectngest reporting issuer competitors: Genpact ldchand WNS (Holdings) Limited. The
returns of the component entities of our peer giadpx are weighted according to the market capétibn of each company as of the
beginning of each period for which a return is praged. The stock performance shown on the gramiwbislnot indicative of future price

performance.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table sets forth our selected cortaikd historical financial data as of the datesfanthe periods indicated. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as et&mber 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each of the fler@es in the period ended December 31,
2012 has been derived from our consolidated firrstatements included elsewhere in this AnnualoiRegn Form 10-K. Our selected
consolidated financial data set forth below as et&mnber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and for years dbeleeimber 31, 2009 and 2008 is deri
from our audited financial statements, which areimduded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Getected consolidated financial
information for 2012, 2011 and 2010 should be ieambnjunction with our consolidated financial staents and the notes thereto and “ltem 7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations,” which areuded elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in millions, except share and per share date

Consolidated Statement of Operations Date

Total revenue $ 442.¢ $ 360.t $ 252.¢ $ 191.( $ 181.7
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation

amortization) 271.¢ 220.( 151.: 109.4 112.¢
Gross profit 171.C 140.5 101.t 81.€ 69.2
Selling, general and administrative exper 88.2 76.2 59.1 45.¢ 42.¢
Depreciation and amortization expen 25.€ 23.C 15.¢ 11.4 11.2
Income from continuing operatiol 57.2 41.: 26.t 24.4 15.7
Total other income/(expens (0.5) 5.4 5.€ (4.9 (5.9
Income from continuing operations before

income taxe: 56.7 46.7 32.1 19.5 9.8
Income tax provision/(benefi 14.¢ 11.¢ 5.5 3.7 (1.3
Income from continuing operatiol 41.¢ 34.¢ 26.¢€ 15.¢ 11.1
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations,

net of taxe: — — — (0.7) 3
Net income $ 41.¢ $ 34.¢ $ 26.€ $ 15.7 $ 14.

Earnings per shar
Basic:

Continuing operation $ 1.31 $ 1.1¢F $ 0.91 $ 0.5t $ 0.3¢
Discontinued operatior $ — $ — $ — $ — $ A1
Diluted:

Continuing operation $ 1.2¢ $ 1.1C $ 0.8¢ $ 0.54 $ 0.3¢
Discontinued operatior $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 0.11
Weighted average number of common shar

outstanding

Basic 31,968,38 30,264,80 29,281,36 28,963,77 28,811,04
Diluted 33,171,10 31,546,14 30,388,52 29,417,91 29,212,04
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Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data:

Cash and cash equivale $103.C $ 824 $111.2 $132.2 $l12.C
Working capital® 133.¢ 94.¢ 126.¢ 139.t 118.¢
Total asset 435.¢ 377.¢ 305.% 249.¢ 212.(
Other long term obligatior® 17.C 26.7 9.2 5.€ 0.2
Stockholder' equity 344t 278.k 248.t 205.7 171.:

(1) Working capital means total current assets less ¢totrrent liabilities
(2) Other long term obligations include unrecogdizx benefits, retirement benefits, capital leadeferred rent and unrealized losses on
effective cash flow hedge
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ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conioactvith our consolidated financial statements déimel related notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Sofrike statements in the following discussion are/érd looking statements. See “—
Forward Looking Statemen”

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg statements. You should not place undue rediam those statements because
they are subject to numerous uncertainties andrfactlating to our operations and business enrieani, all of which are difficult to predict
and many of which are beyond our control. Forwaiking statements include information concerningpmssible or assumed future result
operations, including descriptions of our busirgsategy. These statements often include words asi¢hay,” “will,” “should,” “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “i " “plan,” “estimateor similar expressions. These statements are lmasadsumptions that we have made in

intend,
of our experience in the industry as well as ouc@gtions of historical trends, current conditiomspected future developments and other
factors we believe are appropriate under the cistantes. As you read and consider this Annual RepoForm 10-K, you should understand
that these statements are not guarantees of penficeror results. They involve known and unknowkstisincertainties and assumptions.
Although we believe that these forward lookingestaénts are based on reasonable assumptions, yold sleoaware that many factors could
affect our actual financial results or results pémtions and could cause actual results to diffeerially from those in the forward looking
statements. These factors include but are notdufrtib:

. our dependence on a limited number of clientslimded number of industrie:

. worldwide political, economic or business condisg

. negative public reaction in the U.S. or elsewhereftshore outsourcing

. fluctuations in our earning

. our ability to attract and retain clien

. our ability to successfully consummate or integsdtategic acquisition:

. restrictions on immigratior

. our ability to hire and retain enough sufficiertilgined employees to support our operatit
. our ability to grow our business or effectively rage growth and international operatio

. increasing competition in our industi

. telecommunications or technology disruptic

. regulatory, legislative and judicial developmeimsjuding changes to or the withdrawal of governtakfiscal incentives
. technological innovatior

. political or economic instability in the geographia which we operatt

. unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidémi@nt and customer data; a

. adverse outcome of our disputes with the Indiaratztkorities

These and other factors are more fully discussslnddere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Theskather risks could cause actual
results to differ materially from those implied forward looking statements in this Annual Reportramm 10-K.
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You should keep in mind that any forward lookingtetment made by us in this Annual Report on Forrf16r elsewhere, speaks only
as of the date on which we make it. New risks amzkttainties come up from time to time, and inipossible for us to predict these events or
how they may affect us. We have no obligation tdaip any forward looking statements in this Anri@port on Form 10-K after the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as requbgdederal securities laws.

Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and tramsétion services and focus on providing our chemith a positive business impact
and enhancing their long term financial value. Wstemize our services to improve the economicausirtess performance and transform
organizations to be leaner and more flexible. Qusaourcing services provide front-, middle- andksaffice processing for our clients, who
primarily global companies. Outsourcing serviceslwe the transfer to us of select business operatdf a client, such as claims processing,
policy administration and finance and accountirfgeravhich we administer and manage the operafionsur client on an ongoing basis. We
also offer a number of transformation services iheltude decision analytics, finance transformaaon operations and process excellence
services. These transformation services help éemtsl provide additional insight into their futiieancial and operational results, improve t
operating environments through cost reduction, eoba efficiency and productivity initiatives, anghance the risk and control environments
within our clients’ operations whether or not theg outsourced to us. We serve primarily the neé@obal 1000 companies in the insurance
and healthcare, utilities, banking and financial®es, travel, transportation and logistics sextor

On October 12, 2012, we acquired Landacorp, ateggiiovider of healthcare solutions and technolplgg “Landacorp Acquisition”).
Landacorp has more than 50 million lives under rgangent on its software platforms and has develgpedces and technology solutions tha
share vital clinical data with payers, providedsnpparticipants and accountable care organizations

We market our services to our existing and prospedients through our sales and client managetsamhs, which are aligned by
industry verticals and cross-industry domains sagfinance and accounting. Our sales and clienagemnent teams operate from the U.S. an
Europe. We operate fifteen operations centersdralrincluding our new operations center in Pundid and Manila, Philippines which began
operations in 2012. We also have six operationgecgim the U.S., two operations centers eacharPthilippines and Bulgaria and one
operations center in each of Romania, Malaysiathedzech Republic.

Revenues

We generate revenues principally from contractgrtwide outsourcing and transformation servicesalli@venues increased $82.4
million, or 22.9%, from $360.5 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011 to $442.9 million forythar ended December 31, 2012.

Revenues from outsourcing services increased fr2®d .4 million for the year ended December 31, 2@1%366.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenorasdutsourcing services of $72.4 million was dniygimarily by revenues of $49.9
million due to the Landacorp Acquisition in 2012ahe acquisitions in 2011 of OPI (the “OPI Acqtigsi”) and Trumbull ( the “Trumbull
Acquisition”) and net volume increases from existing and newntdiaggregating to $35.7 million. These increaseewffset partially by a n
decrease in revenues of $13.2 million, primarilg ¢o the depreciation of the Indian rupee, the dund sterling and Czech koruna against
the U.S. dollar during the year ended DecembeRB12 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Revenues from transformation services increased $66.2 million for the year ended December 31,12@1$76.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase was printréyto a combination of increased revenues inrriecuor annuity-based decision
analytics services and an increase in project-basgedgements both in our decision analytics andatipas and process excellence services.
Revenues from new clients for transformation s@wiwere $9.4 million and $0.9 million during theayended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

We anticipate that our revenues will grow as weagxpour service offerings and client base, botlwigally and through acquisitions.
We provide our clients with a range of outsourciegvices, principally in the insurance, healthcat#ities, banking and financial services,
travel, transportation and logistics sectors, alé agecross-industry outsourcing services, suclinasce and accounting services. Our clients
transfer the management and execution of theirgssas or business functions to us. As part otthisfer, we hire and train employees to
work at our operations centers on the relevantoouting services, implement a process migratiahése operations centers and then provide
services either to the client or directly to thiet's customers. Each client contract has diffeterms based on the scope, deliverables and
complexity of the engagement. The outsourcing ses/ive provide to any of our clients (particulamhder our general framework agreeme
and the revenues and income that we derive frosetBervices, may decline or vary as the type aadtiy of services we provide under those
contracts change over time, including as a redwdtshift in the mix of products and services wevile.

For outsourcing services, we enter into long-tegmeaments with our clients with typical initial tes ranging from three to eight years.
These contracts also usually contain provisionmjfi#ng termination of the contract after a shastice period. Although these agreements
provide us with a relatively predictable revenusébor a substantial portion of our business, ¢ing Iselling cycle for our outsourcing services
and the budget and approval processes of prospegttants make it difficult to predict the timind wew client acquisitions. Revenues under
new client contracts also vary depending on wherovaplete the selling cycle and the implementagibase. For risks relating to termination
of our client contracts, see “ltem 1A. Risk FacteRisks Related to Our Business—Our client contreotgain certain termination and other
provisions that could have an adverse effect orbasmess, results of operations and financial itimmd’ For risks relating to our selling
cycles, see “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Relate@tn Business—We have a long selling cycle forautsourcing services that requires
significant funds and management resources andggitoplementation cycle that requires significaagaurce commitments.”

Through the Landacorp Acquisition on October 12,2@ve added a leading care management softwaferpfafor healthcare payers.
As a result of our Trumbull Acquisition, on Octolder2011, we acquired the capability to providereghtion services as well as access to a
software platform called SubroSource™ for providéudprogation services to property and casualtyr@rsuln connection with our acquisition
of Professional Data Management Again (“PDMA”") iprk 2010, we acquired an insurance policy admiatgin platform called LifePR® to
administer life insurance, health insurance anesiigind credit life and disability insurance poBdier insurance and healthcare clients. As we
increase our service capabilities utilizing platierand other software-based services, revenuesdumim services will continue to grow in
proportion to our total revenues. Revenues fromuahmaintenance and support contracts for our soéwlatforms provide us with a
relatively predictable revenue base and are gdwpeemognized ratably over the terms of the congiadew license sales and implementation
projects have a long selling cycle and it is difftdo predict the timing of signing of such newntmcts which may lead to fluctuations in our
short term revenues.

Our transformation services can be significantfe@td by variations in business cycles. In addijt@mur transformation services consist
primarily of specific projects with contract termsnerally not exceeding one to three years andmaggroduce ongoing or recurring business
for us once the project is completed. These cotsti@so usually contain provisions permitting taration of the contract after a short notice
period. The short-term nature and specificity @fsth projects could lead to further material fluttares and uncertainties in the revenues
generated from these businesses. We have expatiargignificant increase in demand for our annbaged transformation services, which
engagements that are contracted for one- to theaetgrms.

We serve clients mainly in the U.S. and the U.Kthwhese two regions generating approximately %2add 20.2%, respectively, of our
total revenues for the year ended December 31, a0dZpproximately 71.8% and 22.0%, respectivdlpuo total revenues for the year endec
December 31, 2011.
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In the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201otrevenues from our top ten clients accounted9.1% and 61.9% of our total
revenues, respectively. Only one client accountedrfore than 10% of our total revenues in the yealed December 31, 2012 compared to
two clients in the year ended December 31, 201thofigh we are increasing and diversifying our cmgtiobase, we expect in the near future
that a significant portion of our revenues will tiane to be contributed by a limited number of tagjents.

Pursuant to a services agreement, we provide ssricThe Travelers Company (“Travelers”). Theseises to Travelers represented
$44.6 million, or 10.1%, of our total revenues tioe year ended December 31, 2012, and $41.9 mibiohl.6%, of our total revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2011. Travelers may teteniha services agreement, or any work assignnrembik order thereunder all of whic
expire in December 2013, without cause upon 60’gai& notice.

We derived revenues from 38 and 17 new client®imrservices in the years ended December 31, 20d2@11, respectively. Another
three new clients acquired during 2012 did not geteeany revenues in 2012 but are expected togstadrating revenues from 2013.

Revenues also include amounts representing reimblerexpenses that are billed to and reimbursezlibglients and typically include
telecommunication and travel-related costs. Thewarnof reimbursable expenses that we incur, and-@swylting revenues, can vary
significantly depending on each client’s situatéord on the type of services provided. For the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011, 4.3%
and 4.5%, respectively, of our total revenues rgrereimbursement of such expenses.

To the extent our client contracts do not contaovisions to the contrary, we bear the risk ofatifin and fluctuations in currency
exchange rates with respect to our contracts. Vidgéha substantial portion of our Indian rupee/ddlar, Philippine peso/U.S. dollar and U
pound sterling/U.S. dollar foreign currency expesur

We have observed a shift in industry pricing modelgard transaction-based pricing and other pricmglels. We believe this trend will
continue and we have begun to use transaction-tzaskdther pricing models with some of our cur@ignts and are seeking to move certain
other clients from a billing rate model to a trast&mn-based or other pricing model. Such models placéoities on operating efficiency in ort
to maintain our operating margins. In addition, veere also observed that prospective larger cli@®ntering into multi-vendor relationships
with regard to their outsourcing needs. We beligna the trend toward multi-vendor relationship# eentinue. A multi-vendor relationship
allows a client to seek more favorable pricing atiter contract terms from each vendor, which canltén significantly reduced operating
margins from the provision of services to suchntlfer each vendor. To the extent our large cliexsand their use of multi-vendor
relationships and are able to extract more faverabhtract terms from other vendors, our operatiaggins and revenues may be reduced wit
regard to such clients if we are required to mothty terms of our relationship with such clients.

Expenses
Cost of Revenues
Our cost of revenues primarily consists of:

. employee costs, which include salary, bonus andratbmpensation expenses; recruitment and tracosts; employee insurance;
transport and meals; rewards and recognition faaceemployees; and n-cash stock compensation expense;

. costs relating to our facilities and communicatioesvork, which include telecommunication and I'Btsp facilities and customer
management support; operational expenses for dsoocing centers; rent expenses; and travel dret billable costs to our
clients.

The most significant components of our cost of nexs are employee compensation, recruitment, migimiansport, meals, rewards and
recognition and employee insurance. Salary leeslgloyee turnover rates and our ability to effiigmanage and utilize our employees
significantly affect our cost of revenues. Salargreases for most of our operations personnel are
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generally awarded each year effective April 1. Adaegly, employee costs are generally lower infthst quarter of each year compared to the
rest of the year. We make every effort to manageleyee and capacity utilization and continuouslynitar service levels and staffing
requirements. Although we generally have been @bteallocate our employees as client demand hatufited, a contract termination or
significant reduction in work assigned to us bya@anclient could cause us to experience a highanexpected number of unassigned
employees, which would increase our cost of revemsea percentage of revenues until we are alpéltae or reallocate our headcount. A
significant increase in the turnover rate amongesuployees, particularly among the highly skilledrisforce needed to execute certain
services, would increase our recruiting and trgjriosts and decrease our operating efficiency,ymtodty and profit margins. In addition, cc
of revenues also includes a nca&sh amortization of stock compensation expensdéinglto our issuance of equity awards to employkestly
involved in providing services to our clients.

We expect our cost of revenues to continue to aszes we continue to add professionals in ouratipgrcenters globally to service
additional business and as wages continue to iserglbally. In particular, we expect training ot continue to increase as we continue to
add staff to service new clients and provide exgstitaff with additional skill sets. There is sifggant competition for professionals with skills
necessary to perform the services we offer to bents. As our existing competitors continue towrand as new competitors enter the marke
we expect competition for skilled professionalgeath of these areas to continue to increase, witesponding increases in our cost of
revenues to reflect increased compensation legelsuich professionals. However, a significant portf our client contracts include inflation-
based adjustments to our billing rates year ovar which partially offset such increase in costesfenues. We also expect our cost of reve
to increase due to employee turnover resultingghdr recruitment and training costs. See “ltem 1Risk Factors—Employee wage increase:
may prevent us from sustaining our competitive atkge and may reduce our profit margin.”

Cost of revenues is also affected by our longregltiycle and implementation period for our outsmgeervices, which require
significant commitments of capital, resources ama tby both our clients and us. Before committiogise our services, potential clients rec
us to expend substantial time and resources edgddem as to the value of our services and asgepw feasibility of integrating our systems
and processes with theirs. In addition, once aatkagages us in a new contract, our cost of reeemay represent a higher percentage of
revenues until the implementation phase for thatremt, generally three to four months, is complete

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses are coetpokexpenses relating to salaries of senior memagt and other support personnel
legal and other professional fees, telecommuninatiatilities, travel and other miscellaneous adsiriative costs. Selling and marketing
expenses primarily consist of salaries and otherpemsation expenses of sales and marketing and ol@nagement personnel, sales
commission, travel and brand building, client egeartd conferences. We expect that sales and maglestpenses will continue to increase as
we invest in our sales and client management fanstto better serve our clients and in our brandivig also expect our costs to increase a
continue to strengthen our support and enablingtfans and invest in leadership development, parésice management and training
programs. However, our SG&A as a percentage ofmee® has declined from 21.1% in 2011 to 19.9% &R24k a result of our acquisitions in
2011 and 2012 and operating leverage in 2012. S@8&genses also include acquisition-related costdessional fees, which represent the
costs of third party legal, tax, accounting anceotidvisors, bad debt allowance and non-cash aratiain of stock compensation expense
related to our issuance of equity awards to senmmagement, members of our board of directorsy stiygport personnel and consultants.

Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization pertains to depramiadnd amortization of our tangible assets, iniclgahetwork equipment, cabling,
computers, office furniture and equipment, motdrigkes and leasehold improvements and intangitdetasAs we add new facilities and
expand our existing operations centers, we expattiepreciation expense will increase, reflectidditional investments in equipment such a
desktop computers, servers and other infrastrucfumertization of intangible assets acquired iduded in depreciation and
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amortization. Amortization of intangible assets mseased substantially in 2012 due to the Langmadecquisition in 2012 and the OPI
Acquisition and the Trumbull Acquisition in 2011.8/&xpect amortization of intangible assets to meeefurther as we pursue strategic
relationships and acquisitions. As a percentagevenues, depreciation and amortization expensgeated from 6.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2011 to 5.8% for the year ended Deeeth 2012

Foreign Exchange
Exchange Rate

We report our financial results in U.S. dollars.viéwer, a significant portion of our total revenigsarned in U.K. pounds sterling
(20.2% and 22.0%, respectively, of our total rewemnior the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2MMil§ avsignificant portion of our
expenses is incurred and paid in Indian rupee2%=nd 57.6%, respectively, of our total coststieryears ended December 31, 2012 and
2011) and the Philippine peso (7.2% and 5.6%, ctiyady, of our total costs for the year ended Deber 31, 2012 and 2011). The exchange
rates among the Indian rupee, the Philippine piasol).K. pound sterling, Czech koruna and the ddBar have changed substantially in
recent years and may fluctuate substantially irfubre. The results of our operations could bestitially impacted as the Indian rupee and
U.K. pound sterling appreciate or depreciate agaivesU.S. dollar. See Notes 2 and 7 to our codatdd financial statements and “ltem 7A—
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaRisk—Foreign Currency Risk.”

Currency Regulation

According to the prevailing foreign exchange retiats in India, an exporter of outsourcing and $farmation services that is registered
with a software technology park in India, such asladian subsidiaries in India, is required tolizmaits export proceeds within a period of 12
months from the date of exports. Similarly, in #went that such exporter has received any advagaiast exports in foreign exchange from its
overseas customers, it will have to render theis@iguservices so that the advances so receivegaaned within a period of 12 months. If th
subsidiaries in India did not meet these condititmsy would be required to obtain permission fitie Reserve Bank of India.

Income Taxes

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actsond March 31. Certain of our operations centetadia qualified for an exemption
from corporate tax under the Indian Income Taxwlich expired on April 1, 2011. Therefore, profisnerated from the services provided
from such operations centers have become fullyblexand consequently, our tax expense increasedisantly from 2011 and may continue
to be higher going forward.

The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and rulesddthereunder (the “SEZ Regulations”), introducddgear tax holiday scheme f
operations established in designated SEZs. UnéeBBEY Regulations, qualifying operations are el@fbr a profit-based deduction from
taxable income equal to (i) 100% of the export psaferived for the first five years from the commement of operations; (ii) 50% of the
export profits for the next five years; and (iijlgect to satisfying certain investment requireragf0% of the export profits for a further five
years.

Our operations centers in Jaipur and Noida, Indfach were established in SEZs in 2010, are elgibl tax incentives until 2020, ten
years from the year of their establishment. As pathe OPI Acquisition, we acquired operationsteesnin Bengaluru and Kochi, India that .
also located in SEZs. Our operations center in BRmg completed its first five years of operati@msMarch 31, 2012 and benefitted from a
100% exemption on export profits in prior yearsdenthe tax regulations, the Bengaluru operati@méer is now entitled to a 50% tax
exemption on export profits for five years begimgion April 1, 2012. After April 1, 2017, the appiale tax exemption will be further reduced.
We also established a new operations center in,Pudi@ in June 2012, which is located in an SE£ &\ticipate establishing additional
operations centers in SEZs in the future.

The Direct Taxes Code proposed by the Governmelmidid and currently pending before the Indian iBarént proposes grandfathering
the existing profit-based tax benefits for openmadicenters in SEZs already receiving such tax liesng&he Direct Taxes Code also proposes
discontinuing profit-based incentives for
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operations centers in SEZs set up after March @14 2nd replaces them with investment-based ingenfor operations centers in SEZs
established after that date.

Accordingly, we expect to continue receiving thedfi of tax deductions for our existing operatiaesiters in SEZs pursuant to the
current regulations until the currently proposeddha3l, 2014 sunset date. If this grandfatheringsdwot happen under the Direct Taxes Cod
and if the sunset date is brought forward, our pperations centers in SEZs will not receive prbéised tax benefits. Without such benefits,
we expect that our tax rate in India and our oVésal rate will increase over the next few yeard #rat such increase may be material.

One of our operations centers in the Philippinexefited from a four-year income tax holiday thapieed in May 2012. In February
2013, PEZA, which can approve two successive o@e-getensions, granted us a one year extensiaractively from May 2012. Our new
operations center in the Philippines, which begaerations in January 2012, benefits from a sep&wateyear income tax holiday that can be
extended at PEZA's discretion. While we are reablyneertain that PEZA will extend these tax holiday is possible that such extension
requests may be denied, or that these tax holitkaysbe conditioned or removed entirely due to ckang applicable legislation by the
government of the Philippines. Should any of thesents occur, our tax liability in the Philippingsuld likely increase.

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilitiesdimporary differences between the financial statet carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebasd operating loss carry forwards. We deterihim@aluation allowance is required or not on
the basis of an assessment of whether it is miceéylthan not that a deferred tax asset will béized.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial caodiaind results of operations are based upon tlaadial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, which have been preppameaccordance with generally accepted accoumtiniples in the U.S. The notes to
our consolidated financial statements contain ansam of our significant accounting policies. We siler the policies discussed below to be
critical to an understanding of our consolidatethficial statements, as their application placesnbst significant demands on management’s
judgment regarding matters that are inherently tage These policies include revenue recognitestimating tax liabilities, sto-based
compensation, goodwill, intangibles and long-liasdets, derivative instruments and assets andatibhg related to employee benefit plans.
These accounting policies and the associated aigkset out below. Future events may not develaptbxas forecast and estimates routinely
require adjustment.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsouramptensformation services. Revenues from outsogrservices are recognized
primarily on a time-and-material, cost-plus or ymitced basis; revenues from transformation sesvare recognized primarily on a time-and-
material, fixed price or contingent fee basis. $hevices provided within our contracts generallgtam one unit of accounting. Revenues are
recognized under our contracts generally when jpsige evidence of an arrangement exists, the pélesis fixed or determinable, services
have been performed and collection of amountsiieeasonably assured.

Revenues under time-and-material contracts argynémed as the services are performed. Revenugs@rgnized on cost-plus contracts
on the basis of contractually agreed direct anitésticosts incurred on a client contract plus gread-upon profit markup. Revenues are
recognized on unit-price based contracts basetde@number of specified units of work (such as thelber of email responses) delivered to a
client. Such revenues are recognized as the redet®ites are provided in accordance with the thentract. When the terms of the client
contract specify service level parameters that hasnet (such as turnaround time or accuracy), weitor such service level parameters to
determine if any service credits or penalties Haaen incurred. Revenues are recognized net ofemics credits that are due to a client. We
have experienced minimal service credits and piesatd date.
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Revenues are recognized on fixed-price contradtgjike proportional performance method when thtepaof performance under the
contracts can be reasonably determined. We estitmaigroportional performance of a contract by carimg the actual number of hours or
days worked to the estimated total number of houdays required to complete each engagement. 3&efithe proportional performance
method requires significant judgment relative toneating the number of hours or days required tmglete the contracted scope of work,
including assumptions and estimates relative tdethgth of time to complete the project and theirmand complexity of the work to be
performed. We regularly monitor our estimates fampletion of a project and record changes in thimgen which a change in an estimate is
determined. If a change in an estimate resultsprogected loss on a project, such loss is recaghiia the period in which it is first identified.

Revenues from software licensing arrangementseai@gnized at the later of time of delivery or eafion of significant termination
rights if the license fee is fixed or determinalalellection is probable, and there is sufficiemider specific evidence of the fair value of each
undelivered element. When there are significantlpction modifications or customization, installatieystems integration or related services,
the professional services and license revenuesoanbined and recorded based upon proportional peéioce, measured in the manner
described above. Revenues from fixed-term maintmand support contracts are recognized ratablyraonthly basis over the period of the
contract.

We make accruals for revenues and receivablesfaices rendered between the last billing datethedyalance sheet date. Accordingly,
our accounts receivable include amounts for seswicat we have performed and for which an invo&e ot yet been issued to the client.
These are included in accounts receivable on awsalimlated balance sheet and the amounts are skstio the notes to our consolidated
financial statements.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-lived Assets

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) topic 8@ siness Combinations{ASC No. 805), requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combinatiohs.guidance specifies criteria as to intangibletssscquired in a business combination that
must be recognized and reported separately frordwitloln accordance with ASC topic 350ntangibles—Goodwill and Other{ASC
No. 350), all assets and liabilities of the acaliibeisinesses including goodwill are assigned tontem units. We evaluate goodwill fi
impairment at least annually, or as circumstancasamt. When determining the fair value of our m¥pg units, we utilize various
assumptions, including projections of future cdstv$. Any adverse changes in key assumptions aloutusinesses and their prospects or al
adverse change in market conditions may causeragehia the estimation of fair value and could resuln impairment charge.

We review long-lived assets and certain identiiabtangibles for impairment whenever events ongea in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recblerl general, we will recognize an impairmersslevhen the sum of undiscounted
expected future cash flows is less than the cagrgimount of such asset. The estimate of undiscdwrsh flows and the fair value of assets
require several assumptions and estimates likev#fighted average cost of capital, discount rateksfree rates, market rate of return and risk
premiums and can be affected by a variety of faciocluding external factors such as industry eacehomic trends, and internal factors such
as changes in our business strategy and our ihfeneaasts. Although we believe the historicalumsptions and estimates we have made are
reasonable and appropriate, different assumptiod®atimates could materially impact our reportedrfcial results.

Stoclk-based Compensation

Under the fair value recognition provisions of ABPic 718,"Compensation—Stock Compensatig@®SC No. 718), cost is measured at
the grant date, based on the fair value of the dhaad is amortized on a straight-line basis ovenréuguisite service periods of the awards,
which is generally the vesting periods. Determirtimg fair value of stock-based awards at the giate requires significant judgment,
including estimating the expected term over whiah $tock awards will be outstanding before theyeaimrcised, the expected volatility of our
stock and the number of stock-based awards thaba@rected to be forfeited. In order to determireedhktimated period of time that we expect
employees to hold their shabased options, we have used data on the histexeatise pattern of employees. We use the historigatility of
our common stock and the volatility of stocks of oamparative companies in order to estimate fushae price trends. We use historical (
to estimate pre-vesting option
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forfeitures and record stock-based compensatiorres@only for those awards that are expected to s riskfree interest rate that we use
the option valuation model is based on U.S. trgasearo-coupon bonds with a remaining term simitethie expected term of the options. We
do not anticipate paying any cash dividends inftiheseeable future and therefore use an expectétbdd yield of zero in the option valuation
model. If the actual forfeiture rate differs sigointly from our estimates, our stock-based comgiéms expense and our results of operations
could be materially impacted.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie

In the normal course of business, we actively lmokiitigate the exposure of foreign currency marisit by entering into various
hedging arrangements, authorized under our polieigl counterparties that are highly rated finah@istitutions. Our primary exchange rate
exposure is with the U.K. pound sterling and thdidn rupee. We also have exposure in PhilippinegeSzech koruna and other local
currencies where we operate. We use derivativeuimsnts for the purpose of mitigating the undedy@&xposure from foreign currency
fluctuation risks associated with forecasted tratisas denominated in certain foreign currenciesd tarminimize earnings and cash flow
volatility associated with the changes in foreigimrency exchange rates and not for speculativéniggalrposes.

We hedge anticipated transactions that are sutgjdoteign exchange exposure with foreign curregeghange contracts that are
designated effective and that qualify as cash fiedges under ASC topic 815D¢€rivatives and Hedgin§g(ASC No. 815). Changes in the fair
value of these cash flow hedges which are deeniedtiek, are deferred and recorded as a compori@ucomulated other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of tax until the hedged trarisastoccur and are then recognized in the congelidstatements of income. Changes in the
fair value of cash flow hedges deemed ineffectigeracognized in the consolidated statement offmecand are included in foreign exchange
gain/(loss).

We also use derivatives consisting of foreign auryeexchange contracts not designated as hedgstryiinents under ASC No. 815 to
hedge intercompany balances and other monetartsassiéabilities denominated in currencies othrt the functional currency. Changes in
the fair value of these derivatives are recognimdtie consolidated statements of income and ataded in foreign exchange gain/(loss).

We value our derivatives based on market obseniaplés including both forward and spot pricesdorrencies. Derivative assets and
liabilities included in Level 2 primarily represeforeign currency forward contracts. The quotestaken primarily from independent sources,
including highly rated financial institutions.

We evaluate hedge effectiveness at the time aadrif entered into as well as on an ongoing bHsisiring this time, a contract is
deemed ineffective, the change in the fair valueé®rded in the consolidated statements of incanakis included in foreign exchange gain/
(loss). For hedge relationships that are discoatiraecause the forecasted transaction is not egerbccur by the end of the originally
specified period, any related derivative amountsmeed in equity are reclassified to earnings.

Income Taxes

We utilize the asset and liability method of acdinmfor income taxes. Under this method, incomeetgpense is recognized for the
amount of taxes payable or refundable for the cairyear. In addition, deferred tax assets andliteds are recognized in respect of future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their tax bases
and operating losses carried forward, if any. Defétax assets and liabilities are measured ubm@nticipated tax rates for the years in whicl
such temporary differences are expected to be ezedvor settled. We recognize the effect of a ceandax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the period in which the new teate was enacted or the change in tax status \easdii approved. Deferred tax assets are
recognized in full, subject to a valuation allowarkat reduces the amount recognized to that whiotore likely than not to be realized. In
assessing the likelihood of realization, we consaitimates of future taxable income. With respeeny entity that benefits from a corporate
tax holiday, deferred tax assets or liabilitiesdgisting temporary differences are recorded oolthe extent such temporary differences are
expected to reverse following the expiration of tdre holiday.
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We also evaluate potential exposures related todatingencies or claims made by the tax autharitievarious jurisdictions in order to
determine whether a reserve may be required. Avese recorded if we believe that a loss is mikaly than not to occur and if the amount of
such loss can be reasonably estimated. Such resemydased on estimates and, consequently, geestdchanging facts and circumstances,
including the progress of ongoing audits, changesase law and the passage of new legislation. &levie that we have established adequate
reserves to cover any potential additional tax sssents.

We generally anticipate that we will indefinitelgimvest the undistributed earnings of our foreigbsidiaries. Accordingly, we do not
accrue any material income, distribution or witlthiog) taxes that would otherwise arise if such em®miwere repatriated in a taxable manner.

We employ a two-step process for recognizing andsmeng uncertain tax positions. The first stefpisvaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining, based on the techmwmalits, that the position will, more likely thantnbe sustained upon examination. The
second step is to measure the tax benefit as rifpestaamount of the tax benefit that has a grehser 50% likelihood of being realized upon
settlement. Our provision for income tax expense #&kes into account any interest or penaltiegadlto unrecognized tax benefits.

Retirement Benefit:

We provide our employees in India and the Philippiwith benefits under a defined benefit plan, Whie refer to as the Gratuity Plan.
The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment giacemployees on retirement or on terminatiomgfleyment in an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and years of employmith us. We determine our liability under the @iity Plan by actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Under this meftvoel determine our liability based upon the distedrvalue of salary increases until the dat
of separation arising from retirement, death, mesiign or other termination of services. Criticesamptions used in measuring the plan
expense and projected liability under the projecteitl credit method include the discount rate, expe return on assets and the expected
increase in the compensation rates. We evaluase ttr@ical assumptions at least annually. If datesults differ significantly from our
estimates, our gratuity expense and our resulbpefations could be materially impacted.
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Results of Operations
The following table summarizes our results of ofiers:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(in million)
Revenue® $442.¢ $360.- $252.¢
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréinadion) @ 271.C 220.C 151.%
Gross profit 171.C 140.t 101.t
Operating expense
General and administrative expen®) 57.2 50.€ 40.3
Selling and marketing expens® 31.C 25.€ 18.¢
Depreciation and amortization expen® 25.€ 23.C 15.¢
Total operating expens 113.¢ 99.2 75.C
Income from operation 57.2 41.2 26.t
Other income/(expense
Foreign exchange (loss)/ge (2.5 3.4 4.2
Interest and other incon 2.C 2.C 1.4
Income before income tax 56.7 46.7 32.1
Income tax provisiol 14.¢ 11.€ 5.E
Net income $ 41.¢ $ 34.€ $ 26.€

(1) Revenues include reimbursable expenses of $i#i&n, $16.1 million and $11.8 million for theeprs ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Revenues also include -time fee of $2.3 million in 201

(2) Cost of revenues includes $1.9 million, $1.6 millend $1.6 million for the years ended DecembefB812, 2011 and 2010, respectivt
of non-cash stock compensation expense relatitigetéssuance of equity awards to employees dirétlylved in providing services to
our clients as described in Note 13 to our conatdid financial statement

(3) General and administrative expenses and sedlingmarketing expenses include $7.5 million, $il8on and $6.9 million for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsgtaghon-cash amortization of stock compensatipemse relating to the issuance
of equity awards to our n-operations staff as described in Note 13 to ouscbdated financial statemen

(4) Depreciation and amortization includes $5.6 milli$4.3 million and $2.0 million for the years endeecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(
respectively, of amortization of intangibles asalézmd in Note 5 to our consolidated financial etaénts

46



Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2011

RevenuesRevenues increased 22.9% from $360.5 million ferytkar ended December 31, 2011 to $442.9 milliothi® year ended
December 31, 2012. Revenues from outsourcing swcreased from $294.4 million for the year endedember 31, 2011 to $366.8 milli
for the year ended December 31, 2012. The inclieasw¥enues from outsourcing services of $72.4iomlivas primarily driven by revenues of
$49.9 million from the Landacorp Acquisition in 20&nd the OPI Acquisition and the Trumbull Acquésitin 2011 and net volume increases
from existing and new clients aggregating to $3bilfion. These increases were partially offset hyeddecrease in revenues of $13.2 million,
primarily due to the depreciation of the Indianegapthe U.K. pound sterling and Czech koruna ag#iesU.S. dollar during the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended Dere3hp2011.

Revenues from transformation services increased $66.2 million for the year ended December, 2@1476.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase was printrdyto a combination of increased revenues inrn@guor annuity-based decision
analytics services and an increase in project-basgdgements both in our decision analytics andatipas and process excellence services.
Revenues from new clients for transformation s@wiwere $9.4 million and $0.9 million during theayended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues increased 23.6% from $220.0 mifiow the year ended December 31, 2011 to $27ll®mfor the
year ended December 31, 2012. The increase irotostenues was primarily due to an increase inleyeg-related costs of $55.4 million a:
result of an increase in the number of our perslodinectly involved in providing services to ouiesits, including $25.8 million of employee-
related costs related to our acquisitions. We elgrerienced an increase in reimbursable expenskz ®million and an increase in facilities,
technology and other operating expenses of $14lm(primarily due to our acquisitions and neweogting centers to support business
growth). These increases were partially offset deerease of $20.8 million due to the net effeadeyreciation of the Indian rupee and the
Czech koruna and appreciation of the Philippines@gainst the U.S. dollar during the year endezkBer 31, 2012 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2011. Cost of revenues as anpage of revenues increased from 61.0% for thegreded December 31, 2011 to 61.4%
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 21.7% from $140.6 milliontfte year ended December 31, 2011 to $171.1 mifbo the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase in grosi wax primarily due to an increase in revenue$8#.4 million, offset by the increase in
cost of revenues of $51.9 million. Gross profigsercentage of revenues decreased marginally386% for the year ended December 31,
2011 to 38.6% for the year ended December 31, 3trirRarily due to the OPI Acquisition and the TruwmAcquisition in 2011, partially
offset by the depreciation of the Indian rupee msfathe U.S. dollar during the year ended Decer@be2012 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011.

SG&A ExpensesSG&A expenses increased 15.7% from $76.2 milliartlie year ended December 31, 2011 to $88.2 mifbotthe yea
ended December 31, 2012. The increase in SG&A esqweis primarily due to an increase in employeatedl costs of $10.2 million, including
$5.8 million of employee-related costs relateduo acquisitions and our continued investment iesaind client management personnel. We
also experienced an increase in other SG&A expearfses.7 million, primarily due to increased prafemal fees, facilities and technology
costs incurred at our new operating centers, @sstsciated with our acquisitions as well as in@eas other marketing expenses. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease & #@llion due to the
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net effect of depreciation of the Indian rupee tr@Czech koruna and appreciation of the Philippjpeso against the U.S. dollar during the
year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the pdadddecember 31, 2011. As a percentage of reveBESA expenses decreased fr
21.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 1909%e year ended December 31, 2012 as a refsoliracquisitions and operating
leverage.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 11.4% f$@3.0 million for the year ended December 31, £
to $25.6 million for the year ended December 31,220 he increase is primarily due to the increasemortization of acquisition-related
intangibles of $1.3 million and depreciation rethte our new operations centers including our aitjons of $3.4 million offset by a decrease
of $2.0 million due to the net effect of depre@atpf the Indian rupee and the Czech koruna andeajgtion of the Philippines peso against
U.S. dollar during the year ended December 31, 20h2pared to the year ended December 31, 2011 pascantage of revenues, deprecia
and amortization expenses decreased from 6.4%doydar ended December 31, 2011 to 5.8% for thegraed December 31, 2012. As we
add more operations centers, we expect that depiatiexpense will increase to reflect the addalanvestment in equipment and operations
centers necessary to meet our service requirements.

Income from Operationslncome from operations increased 38.5% from $41lBomfor the year ended December 31, 2011 to $57.
million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Aercentage of revenues, income from operationsased from 11.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2011 to 12.9% for the year ended DieeeBil, 2012. The increase in income from operatama percentage of revenues was
primarily due to our operating leverage, resuliimgpwer SG&A and depreciation and amortizationenges as a percentage of revenue in
2012.

Other Income/(Expense)Other income/(expense) is comprised of foreign arge gains and losses, interest income, interesinse an
other items. Other income/(expense) decreased$mBimillion for the year ended December 31, 2@L@0.5 million) for the year ended
December 31, 2012, due to net foreign exchangeoio$2.5 million during the year ended December2il,2 compared to net foreign
exchange gain of $3.4 million during the year enDedember 31, 2011 attributable to movement oftf& dollar against the Indian rupee.
The average exchange rate of the Indian rupee stgam U.S. dollar increased from 46.92 duringythar ended December 31, 2011 to 53.40
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes increased from $11.9ionilfor the year ended December 31, 2011 to
$14.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 effective tax rate increased from 25.4% ferytear ended December 31, 2011 to
26.2% for the year ended December 31, 2012. Threase is primarily due to the partial expiry of the holiday benefit for our operations
center in Bengaluru, India and provision for tat@sone of our operating centers in Manila, Philiggs. Please see Note 12 to our consolidate
financial statements for further details.

Net Income.Net income increased from $34.8 million for theyeaded December 31, 2011 to $41.8 million forybar ended
December 31, 2012, primarily due to an increasgpgrating income of $15.9 million, offset by a d=se in other income of $5.9 million and
an increase in provision for income taxes of $3illan. As a percentage of revenues, net incomeetesed marginally from 9.6% for the year
ended December 31, 2011 to 9.4% for the year ebdedmber 31, 2012.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2010

RevenuesRevenues increased 42.6% from $252.8 million ferytkar ended December 31, 2010 to $360.5 milliothi® year ended
December 31, 2011. Revenues from outsourcing swcreased from $192.1 million for the year enidedember 31, 2010 to $294.4 milli
for the year ended December 31, 2011. The inclieas¥enues from outsourcing services of $102.8anilwas primarily driven by revenues
of $63.6 million from the OPI Acquisition and theufmbull Acquisition in 2011 and our acquisitionsAtherican Express Global Travel
Service Center (“GTSC") and Professional Data Managnt Again (“PDMA") in 2010, revenues from a oimad payment of $2.3 million
from a client with no associated costs and netmelincreases from existing and new clients aggiregéd $38.3 million. These increases w
partially offset by a net decrease in revenuesld $illion, primarily due to the depreciation betindian rupee and appreciation of the U.K.
pound sterling and Czech koruna against the U.lfardturing the year ended December 31, 2011 coetptr the year ended December 31,
2010.

Revenues from transformation services increased $60.7 million for the year ended December, 2@1966.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011. The increase was printrdyto a combination of increased revenues inrn@guor annuity-based decision
analytics services and an increase in project-basgdgements both in our decision analytics andatipas and process excellence services.
Revenues from new clients for transformation sewiwere $0.9 million and $4.1 million during theayended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Cost of RevenuesCost of revenues increased 45.4% from $151.3 mifiow the year ended December 31, 2010 to $220l@mfor the

year ended December 31, 2011. The increase irotostenues was primarily due to an increase inleyeg-related costs of $57.5 million a:
result of an increase in the number of our persbodinectly involved in providing services to ouieasits, including $33.9 million of employee-
related costs related to the OPI Acquisition andatbier acquisitions. We also experienced an irseéareimbursable expenses of $4.3 mil
(resulting in an increase in revenues) and an aserén facilities, technology and other operatixgemses of $9.2 million (primarily due to our
acquisitions and new operating centers to suppinless growth). These increases were partialgebfiy a decrease of $2.3 million due to
net effect of depreciation of the Indian rupee apgreciation of the Philippines peso and Czechraagainst the U.S. dollar during the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year éheleeinber 31, 2010. Cost of revenues as a perceotageenues increased from 59.9%
for the year ended December 31, 2010 to 61.0%hfoyear ended December 31, 2011.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 38.5% from $101.5 milliontfte year ended December 31, 2010 to $140.6 mifbo the year
ended December 31, 2011. The increase in grosk wad primarily due to an increase in revenue$1df7.8 million, offset by the increase in
cost of revenues of $68.7 million. Gross profibgsercentage of revenues decreased from 40.1%dagrelar ended December 31, 2010 to
39.0% for the year ended December 31, 2011, priynduie to the impact of our acquisitions, partiafjset by the depreciation of the Indian
rupee against the U.S. dollar during the year emdsmémber 31, 2011 compared to the year ended Deredi, 2010.

SG&A Expenses SG&A expenses increased 29.0% from $59.1 milliortlie year ended December 31, 2010 to $76.2 mifbothe
year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in S&&A&nses is primarily due to an increase in empg-related costs of $12.0 million,
including $4.7 million of employee-related costimted to the OPI acquisition and our continued &tweent in sales and client management
personnel. We also experienced an increase in 8B&A expenses of $3.6 million, primarily due tofassional fees associated with our
acquisitions
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and travelrelated expenses. These increases were partifdlgt dfy a decrease of $0.5 million due to the dgptien of the Indian rupee agai
the U.S. dollar during the year ended DecembeB311 compared to the year ended December 31, 2818 percentage of revenues, SG&A
expenses decreased from 23.4% for the year endeghiber 31, 2010 to 21.1% for the year ended DeceB1he011.

Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization increased 45.2% f$d5.9 million for the year ended December 31, &
to $23.0 million for the year ended December 31,1220 he increase is primarily due to the increasemortization of acquisition-related
intangibles of $2.3 million and depreciation rethte our new operations centers (including thosgimed from our acquisitions) of $5.3
million offset by a decrease of $0.5 million duethe depreciation of the Indian rupee and apprieciatf the Philippine peso and the Czech
koruna against the U.S. dollar during the year dridlecember 31, 2011 compared to the year endednidexe31, 2010. As we add more
operations centers, we expect that depreciatiorresgwill increase to reflect the additional inwestt in equipment and operations centers
necessary to meet our service requirements.

Income from Operationslncome from operations increased 55.8% from $26lkomfor the year ended December 31, 2010 to $41.
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Aercentage of revenues, income from operationsased from 10.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to 11.5% for the year ended DieeeBil, 2011. The increase in income from operatama percentage of revenues was
primarily due to operating leverage and the OPlusitjon, resulting in lower SG&A expenses as apatage of revenue in 2011.

Other Income/(Expense)Other income/(expense) is comprised of foreign arge gains and losses, interest income, interpsinse an
other items. Other income/(expense) decreased$mbmillion for the year ended December 31, 2@1$5.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, primarily as a result of deaé&aset foreign exchange gain of $3.4 million dgrthe year ended December 31, 2011
compared to net foreign exchange gain of $4.2 omilduring the year ended December 31, 2010 atafibeito movement of the U.S. dollar
against the Indian rupee, offset by an increask0d million in net interest income and other ineoMhe average exchange rate of the Indian
rupee against the U.S. dollar increased from 4885g the year ended December 31, 2010 to 46.88glthe year ended December 31, 2(

Provision for Income TaxesProvision for income taxes increased from $5.5iamilfor the year ended December 31, 2010 to
$11.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20hk effective tax rate increased from 17.1% feryhar ended December 31, 2010 to
25.4% for the year ended December 31, 2011. Threase in effective tax rate in 2011 was primarilg do a reversal in 2010 related to a tax
position taken by one of our foreign subsidiariesidia. During 2010, the Indian tax authoritiesuisd a clarification with respect to the
taxability of certain components of taxable incowtéch reduced our foreign subsidiary’s taxable mecand its corresponding tax liability.
This clarification decreased the level of uncettain our tax position and was the basis on whiehreduced the amount of our income tax
reserve by $2.8 million for 2010. The reversalhe tax reserve positively impacted our effectiveome tax rate by 8.9% for 2010.

Net Income.Net income increased from $26.6 million for theyeaded December 31, 2010 to $34.8 million forybar ended
December 31, 2011, primarily due to an increasgpgrating income of $14.8 million, offset by a d&se in other income of $0.2 million and
an increase in provision for income taxes of $6ilian. As a percentage of revenues, net incomeetesed from 10.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to 9.6% for the year ended DeeefSih 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2012, we had $109.2 million in castl cash equivalents and short-term investmenichvificlude $61.5 million held
by our foreign subsidiaries. We do not intend fmateiate such funds since our future growth depeipds continued infrastructure and
technology investments, geographical expansionsaaqdisitions outside of the U.S. Therefore, wedrteecontinuously and permanently
reinvest the earnings generated outside of the l[bw& were to repatriate the funds, we would needccrue and pay applicable taxes.

Cash flows provided by operating activities inceshfrom $56.2 million in the year ended December2B11 to $65.8 million in the ye
ended December 31, 2012. Generally, factors tifiattabur earnings—including pricing, volume of sees, costs and productivity—affect our
cash flows provided by operations in a similar manklowever, while management of working capitat)uding timing of collections and
payments affects operating results only indiredtig, impact on the working capital and cash flons/jgled by operating activities can be
significant. The increase in cash flows providedbgrations for the year ended December 31, 2052onedominantly due to an increase in
net income adjusted for non-cash items by $21.lamibffset by decrease in working capital of $1dn#lion. The increase in net income
adjusted for non-cash items is primarily due toremease in net income of $7.0 million, depreciattmd amortization expense of $2.6 million,
deferred income taxes of $6.4 million and decréasmrealized foreign exchange gain of $5.7 million

Changes in working capital are primarily due tceardase in trade accounts receivable of $3.0 miflied accrued expenses and other
liabilities of $9.2 million during the year ende@&mber 31, 2012 compared to the year ended Dec@hp2011. Our daysales outstandir
increased from 49 days as of December 31, 2016 ttags as of December 31, 2012, primarily due tontilestoneshased billing pertaining
our software licensing and implementation contrastsociated with the Landacorp Acquisition.

Cash flows used for investing activities decredseh $105.8 million in the year ended DecemberZiL,1 to $54.8 million in the year
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease is printrdyto the payment of the purchase consideratiappfoximately $37.5 million for the
Landacorp Acquisition in 2012 compared to $81.diatil(net of cash acquired of $20.1 million) pao the OPI Acquisition and the Trumbull
Acquisition during the year ended December 31, 261ither, net proceeds from short-term investmieat®ased by $6.8 million during the
year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the pdadédecember 31, 201

Cash flows provided by financing activities decezhffom $24.9 million in the year ended December2B11 to $9.9 million during the
year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease waarfbyiaiue to net proceeds from the issuance of comstock in a public offering of $21
million during the year ended December 31, 2011s tiecrease was partially offset by higher procdema the exercise of stock options of
$9.6 million during the year ended December 31 228dmpared to $5.5 million during the year endedddeber 31, 2011.

We expect to use cash from operating activitiemaintain and expand our business. As we have fdoms@xpanding our cash flow
from operating activities, we continue to make t@pnvestments, primarily related to new faciktiand capital expenditures associated with
leasehold improvements to build our facilities atichase telecommunications equipment and compatevare and software in connection
with managing client operations. We incurred appnately $18.8 million and $19.5 million of capiekpenditures in the year ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We expentur capital expenditures of between $25.0ionilto $30.0 million in the calendar
year 2013, primarily to meet the growth requirersenftour clients, includin
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additions to our facilities as well as investmentgechnology applications and infrastructure. Tilvéng and volume of such capital
expenditures in the future will be affected by n&ignt contracts we may enter into or the expansidousiness under our existing client
contracts.

In connection with any tax assessment orders that been issued or may be issued against us subsidiaries, including against exl
Service.com (India) Private Limited (“ExI India”hd ExI Service.com, Inc. (“ExI Inc.”we may be required to deposit additional amounts
respect to such assessment orders. Refer to Ndtedls consolidated financial statements for ferttietails.

On May 26, 2011, we entered into a three-year tegfieement (the “Credit Facility”) with certaimigers and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent. Borrowings under tBeedit Facility may be used for working capitatlageneral corporate purposes. Origin
a $50.0 million revolving facility, including a ket of credit sub-facility, the availability undére Credit Facility was reduced to $15.0 million
in June 2012. Upon our request, and the fulfillmardertain conditions, the Credit Facility canibereased to $50.0 million. As of
December 31, 2012, we did not have any borrowimgieuthe Credit Facility.

We anticipate that we will continue to rely uporsitdrom operating activities to finance our sma#lequisitions, capital expenditures ¢
working capital needs. If we have significant growhrough acquisitions, we may need to obtain &t financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2012, we had no off-balancetsime@ngements or obligations.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2012:

Payment Due by Perioc

Less thar After 5
1 year xée?rs @ years Total
(in millions)
Capital lease $ 2C $2€ %04 $— $ 5.C
Operating lease 8.1 13.4 3.5 1.1 26.1
Purchase obligatior 3.4 — — — 3.4
Other obligation«? 1.7 2.6 2.4 2.8 9.6
Total contractual cash obligatio® $ 15z $18< $6.3 $4C 444

(a) Represents estimated payments under the Grataity
(b) Excludes $3.0 million related to uncertain pesitions, since the extent of the amount and gneihpayment is currently not reliably
estimable or determinabl

Certain units of our Indian subsidiaries were dighbd as 100% Export-Oriented units under thevig# Technology Parks of India
(“STPI") scheme promulgated by the Government didrwhich provides certain incentives on importad adigenous capital goods upon the
fulfillment of certain conditions. Although the gmrate tax incentives under the STPI scheme atenuer available to us, the units are
required to fulfill such conditions for a limitetirte. In the event that these units are unable tet these conditions over the specified period,
we may be required to refund those incentives alwitly penalties and fines. We believe, howevert these units have in the past satisfied an
will continue to satisfy the required conditions.

Our operations centers in Manila, the Philippinesragistered with PEZA. The registration providsswith certain fiscal incentives on
the import of capital goods and requires that Ehilifpines meet certain performance and investrodtdria. One of our operations centers in
the Philippines benefited from a four-year income ioliday that expired in May 2012. In Februant20we received a one-year extension
retroactively from May 2012 and expect to file dretextension request after which no further extessare presently permitted. Our new
operations center in the Philippines, which begaerations in January 2012, benefits from a sep&vateyear income tax holiday that can be
extended at PEZA's discretion.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsrddq&~ASB”) issued update No. 2011-04Amendments to Achieve Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements$ GAAP and IFRS(ASU No. 2011-04). ASU No. 2011-04 is intendedrtgrove the
comparability of fair value measurements preseatetidisclosed in financial statements prepareddéoraance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and InternationahBncial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). ASU No. 2@#lexplains how to measure fair
value and does not require additional measuremantrdingly, our adoption of this accounting prancement from January 1, 2012 did not
have an impact on our consolidated financial statém

In June 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2011-8%e8entation of Comprehensive Incof@SU No. 2011-05). ASU No. 2011-05,
effective retrospectively for the interim and aninperiods beginning on or after
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December 15, 2011 (early adoption is permittedjuires presentation of total comprehensive incatreecomponents of net income and the
components of other comprehensive income eitharsimgle continuous statement of comprehensivaniecor in two separate but consecutive
statements. We adopted the option of presentatibnag separate but consecutive statements. Referrtoonsolidated statements of
comprehensive income/(loss) for further details.

In December 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2@11Bkferral of the Effective Date for Amendmentshe Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated O@emprehensive Income in Accounting Stanc” (ASU No. 2011-12), which deferred the
requirement to present on the face of the finarstatbments the effects of reclassifications oatoofumulated other comprehensive income or
the components of net income and other comprehemsiwme for annual and interim financial stateraehhe adoption of this accounting
pronouncement from January 1, 2012 did not havarapgct on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2811 Testing Goodwill for Impairment (ASU No. 2011-08), which permits an
entity to first perform a qualitative assessmerddtermine whether it is more likely than not ttieg fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying value. If an entity concludes that the failue of a reporting unit is less than its cargyvalue, it is necessary to perform a two-step
goodwill impairment test. ASU No. 2011-08 is effeetfor annual and interim goodwill impairment wegerformed for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this aattog pronouncement did not have a material impaabur consolidated financial
statements and our annual goodwill impairment assest for the fiscal year 2012.

In July 2012, the FASB issued update No. 2012-0&sting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Innpeent” (ASU No. 2012-02),
which simplifies the guidance for testing the imp@ént of indefinite-lived intangible assets othearn goodwill. Examples of intangible assets
subject to the guidance include indefinite-livealigmarks, licenses and distribution rights. Therattmeent provides the option to first assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it is remeey to perform the quantitative impairment t&stder the option, an entity is no longer
required to calculate the fair value of an indeédived intangible asset unless the entity detees based on a qualitative assessment, that it
more likely than not that its fair value is lesaritits carrying amount. This amendment is effedivdiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2012, with early adoption permitt¥d.do not expect the new guidance to have an ingraour 2013 impairment test results.

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update2813-02;'Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Cehwmrsive Incon” (ASU 2013-02). Under ASU 2013-02, an entity is fieeghto provide
information about the amounts reclassified out 6\ by component. In addition, an entity is reqdite present, either on the face of the
financial statements or in the notes, significanbants reclassified out of AOCI by the respectine items of net income, but only if the
amount reclassified is required to be reclassifieits entirety in the same reporting period. Faroants that are not required to be reclassified
in their entirety to net income, an entity is regqdito cross-reference to other disclosures thmatige additional details about those amounts.
ASU 2013-02 does not change the current requiresrfenteporting net income or other comprehengigeme in the financial statements.
ASU 2013-02 is effective for us on January 1, 288 we do not expect the new guidance to have padtron our consolidated financial
statements.
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ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
General

Market risk is the loss of future earnings, failues or future cash flows that may result from ange in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument mhgnge as a result of changes in the interes, faesign currency exchange rates,
commodity prices, equity prices and other markeingfes that affect market risk sensitive instrumevegket risk is attributable to all market
sensitive financial instruments including foreigmrency receivables and payables.

Our exposure to market risk is a function of oypenses and revenue generating activities in foreigrencies. The objective of market
risk management is to avoid excessive exposuremoéarnings and equity to loss. We manage margletiirough our treasury operations. Our
senior management and our board of directors appoav treasury operations’ objectives and policlée activities of our treasury operations
include management of cash resources, implemeh#dging strategies for foreign currency exposusespwing strategies, if any, and
ensuring compliance with market risk limits andipieks.

Components of Market Risk

Foreign Currency RiskOur exposure to market risk arises principally frexechange rate risk. Although substantially albof revenues
are denominated in U.S. dollars (72.3% in the pealed December 31, 2012) or U.K. pounds sterliog@ in the year ended December 31,
2012), a substantial portion of our expenses warerired and paid in Indian rupees and Philippireop€55.2% and 7.2%, respectively, in the
year ended December 31, 2012). We also incur eegand).S. dollars, the Czech koruna and the caiesrof the other countries in which
have operations. The exchange rates among theningieee, the Philippine peso, U.K. pound sterlidgech koruna and the U.S. dollar have
changed substantially in recent years and mayuhietsubstantially in the future.

Our exchange rate risk primarily arises from owefgn currency revenues, expenses incurred byarvaigh subsidiaries and foreign
currency accounts receivable and payable. Based aypolevel of operations during the year endeddbdter 31, 2012 and excluding any
hedging arrangements that we had in place duriagpteriod, a 5% appreciation/depreciation in thdddn rupee against the U.S. dollar would
have increased/decreased our revenues in the yead ®ecember 31, 2012 by approximately $5.6 milind our expenses incurred and paid
in Indian rupees by approximately $10.6 million.

We have sought to reduce the effect of Indian rgrekPhilippine peso and certain other local culyexchange rate fluctuations on our
operating results by purchasing forward foreignhexme contracts to cover a substantial portioruoeapected cash flows. Further, a
significant number of our customer contracts inelpdotection against foreign exchange rate fluanatwhich minimizes the impact of
volatility in the exchange rates on our operatieguits. Forward exchange contracts with notionalwrts of $160.0 million were outstanding
at December 31, 2012 compared to $184.3 milliostanting at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2b&2Zash flow hedging derivatives
had maturity periods of one to thirty-three monffisese contracts must be settled on the day ofrityatu may be cancelled subject to the
payment of any gains or losses in the differend¢e/éen the contract exchange rate and the markbbege rate on the date of cancellation.
use these instruments as cash flow hedges andmgpédculative purposes. We may not purchase aastagequate to insulate ourselves from
Indian rupee and Philippine pesos foreign exchawgesncy risks. In addition, any such contracts matyperform adequately as a hedging
mechanism. We may, in the future, adopt more attédging policies, and have done so in the past.

55



Table of Contents

We hedge our net recognized foreign currency assetdiabilities with foreign exchange forward c@ats to reduce the risk that our
earnings and cash flows will be adversely affetiedhanges in foreign currency exchange rates.eltiesvative instruments hedge assets ar
liabilities that are denominated in foreign curriescand are carried at fair value with changebénfair value recorded as foreign exchange
gain/(loss).

These derivative instruments do not subject usaterial balance sheet risk due to exchange ratements because gains and losses ol
the settlement of these derivatives are intendexdf$et revaluation losses and gains on the aasetdiabilities being hedged. Forward
exchange contracts with notional amounts of $61ilkomand GBP 11.4 million were outstanding at Betber 31, 2012 compared to
$51.6 million and GBP 10.3 million outstanding adember 31, 2011. At December 31, 2012, the oulstgribalance sheet hedging
derivatives had maturities of 31 days or less.

Interest Rate RiskWe had cash, cash equivalents and short-term imesss totaling $109.2 million at December 31, 200ese
amounts were invested principally in a short-temrestment portfolio primarily comprised of highlgted mutual funds, money market
accounts and time deposits. The cash and cashadepiis are held for potential acquisitions of coenpéntary businesses or assets, working
capital requirements and general corporate purpd¥gesio not enter into investments for tradingmeculative purposes. We believe that we
have no material exposure to changes in the faievaf our investment portfolio as a result of ofpasin interest rates. The interest income
from these funds will be subject to fluctuationgda changes in interest rates. Declines in inteéeg¢ss would reduce future investment incc
A 50 basis points change in short term rates wonjzhct our interest income for the year ended Déezrl, 2012 by approximately $0.2
million. As of December 31, 2012, we did not hawg Borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Credit Risk.As of December 31, 2012, we had accounts receiv$&3.7 million. We believe that our credit pddis reflect normal
industry terms and business risk. We do not arateimon-performance by the counterparties andrdicggdy, do not require collateral. Credit
losses and write-offs of accounts receivable baamave historically not been material to our feiahstatements and have not exceeded our
expectations.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The financial statements required to be filed pansto this Item 8 are appended to this Annual RepoForm 10-K. A list of the
financial statements filed herewith is found aefit 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.”

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountarst on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
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ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phoess that are designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed in the
reports the Company files under the Securities Bgk Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act) is recordedc@ssed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s sutand forms, and that such information is accuredland communicated to the Company’s
management, including its Chief Executive OfficEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), to alloungly decisions regarding required
financial disclosure. In connection with the pregimm of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Comyga management carried out an
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigipgtion of the CEO and CFO, of the effectivenasd operation of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decenthe2@®.2. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO ar@ ledve concluded that, as of
December 31, 2012, the Company’s disclosure cantmotl procedures were effective.

Managemen's Responsibility for Financial Statements

Responsibility for the objectivity, integrity andgsentation of the accompanying financial statemant! other financial information
presented in this report rests with our manageniérg.accompanying financial statements have besaped in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. The fai@rstatements include amounts that are basegdtonaes and judgments which manage!
believes are reasonable under the circumstances.

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered pusaticounting firm, is retained to audit the Compargonsolidated financial
statements and the effectiveness of our interrarabover financial reporting. Its accompanyingae#s are based on audits conducted in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compaepunting Oversight Board.

The Audit Committee of the board of directors isnpmsed solely of independent directors and is mesipte for recommending to the
board of directors the independent public accogrfitm to be retained for the coming year. The A@bhmmittee meets regularly and prival
with the independent public accountants, with thejgany’s internal auditors and with managemengtew accounting, auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters.

Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control over FinanciaReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchangé Ahose rules define internal control over finahoeporting as a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation iwfancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the U.S. The Company’s internal contr@rdinancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoreasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect oansactions

. provide reasonable assurance that transactionse@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted & thS.;

. provide reasonable assurance that receipts andéxpes are being made only in accordance withathiborization of our
management and our board of directors;

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, osaisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the consatididinancial statement
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Det®m31, 2012. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria desaribéaternal Control—Integrated Frameworkidsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Managémeanssessment included an evaluation of the dedignar internal control over
financial reporting and testing of the operatiogfééctiveness of its internal control over finahegporting. Management reviewed the results
of its assessment with the Audit Committee of tharll of directors. Based on this assessment aisé ttriieria, management concluded that
we maintained effective internal control over finah reporting as of December 31, 2012. See Erng¥b&ng LLP’s accompanying report on
their audit of our internal controls over finanaiaporting.

On October 12, 2012, we completed the Landacorpisdgpn. The scope of our assessment of the éffsoess of internal control over
financial reporting does not include this newly aicgd business as permitted by SEC rules for récantjuired businesses. We are in the
process of reviewing the internal control structof&andacorp, and, if necessary, will make appedprchanges as we incorporate our control
and procedures into the acquired business.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

During the three months ended December 31, 20&2e thiere no changes in our internal control overftial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchang® that have materially affected, or are reasontikdly to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

In making its assessment of the changes in intearatol over financial reporting during the quasteded December 31, 2012, our
management excluded an evaluation of the disclasur&ols and procedures of Landacorp, Inc. whiels acquired on October 12, 2012. See
Note 5 to our consolidated financial statementgd&tails of the acquisitiol

ITEM 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI.

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registran
Code of Ethics.

We have adopted a code of conduct and ethics pipdiea to all of our directors, officers and emmey, including our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal aoanting officer and persons performing similar fiimes. Our code of conduct and ethics can be
found posted in the investor relations section enveebsite at http://www.exlservice.cariiVe intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement
under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendrteerar waiver from, a provision of our code of cantland ethics by posting such
information on our website at the address anddbation specified above.

We incorporate by reference the information resp@® this Item appearing in the definitive prostatement for our 2013 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the Proxy Statement), Whie intend to file with the SEC within 120 dayteafthe fiscal year end of December 31,
2012.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensatior
We incorporate by reference the information resp@® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matter:
We incorporate by reference the information resp@® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence
We incorporate by reference the information resp@® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service
We incorporate by reference the information resp@® this Item appearing in our Proxy Statement.
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PART IV.
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(&8 1. Financial Statement

The consolidated financial statements are listetbufitem 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeridata” of this Annual
Report on Form 1-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedul

Financial statement schedules as of December 32, &0d 2011, have been omitted since they arereititgequired, not materi
or the information is otherwise included in our solidated financial statements or the notes toconsolidated financial
statements

3. Exhibits.

The Exhibits filed as part of this Annual Reportfeorm 10K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately praiogy such Exhibits
which Exhibit Index is incorporated in this AnnlRéport on Form 1-K by reference

(b)  Exhibits. See Item 15(a)(3) aboy
(c)  Financial Statement Schedules. See Item 15(a)®)ea
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed orbéhkalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized

Date: March 7, 201 EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ VisHAL C HHIBBAR
Vishal Chhibbar
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Signatory, Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual RepoRaym 10-K has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the R&gnt and in the capacities and on the datesatelil.

Signature Title Date
Is/ RoHITK APOOR Chief Executive Officer, Vice-Chairman and Director March 7, 2013
Rohit Kapoor (Principal Executive Officer
/sl VISHAL C HHIBBAR Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and duinting March 7, 2013
Vishal Chhibbar Ofﬁcer)
/s/ VIKRAM T ALWAR Chairman of the Board March 7, 2013
Vikram Talwar
/s/  KIRAN K ARNIK Director March 7, 2013
Kiran Karnik
/s/  DAvID B. K ELSO Director March 7, 2013
David B. Kelso
/s/ CLYDE W. O STLER Director March 7, 2013
Clyde W. Ostler
/s/ DR.M OHANBIR S AWHNEY Director March 7, 2013
Dr. Mohanbir Sawhney
/s/ GARENK. STAGLIN Director March 7, 2013

Garen K. Staglin
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are being filed as part bistreport or incorporated by reference as indat#terein:

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinoofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed
on October 25, 2006

Third Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporatedefigrence to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current ReporFonm 8-K filed on May 2,
2011).

Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by refeestio Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment 6 to our RegistratBtatement on Form B{No.
333-121001)).

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated byresiee to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on F8ri filed on October 25,
2006).

Professional Services Agreement, dated March 76, 20€&tween The Travelers Indemnity Company and &xiSe Holdings, Inc as
amended by Amendment 3, effective January 1, 2B@®@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to AnrRaport on Form 10-K filed
on March 16, 2010

Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 2009, betwedéseesce.com (India) Private Limited and Vishal @tfar (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Annual Report on FA€-K filed on March 16, 2010

Letter Agreement, effective June 1, 2009, betwedB&tvice Holdings, Inc, and Vishal Chhibbar (incorated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2010

Employment Contract, as amended, effective Oct8b2006, by and between ExlIService Inc. and AmésBlank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Amendment 6 to ougiRation Statement on Forn-1 (No. 33-121001)).

Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competgmaement entered into by and among ExIServicalidgk, Inc. and
Vikram Talwar (incorporated by reference to Exhitfit 10 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2009

Amendment, effective June 2, 2010, to the AmenaetRestated Employment and Non-Competition Agre¢nuzned
December 16, 2008 between Vikram Talwar and ExliSemdoldings, Inc. (incorporated by reference tdii 10.1 to Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed on August 9, 2010

Summary of terms of compensation for Vikram Tal@mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to QeidytReport on Form 10-Q
filed on November 9, 2010

Amended and Restated Employment and ampetition Agreement entered into by and amongeE&ixlice Holdings, Inc. and Ro
Kapoor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1&d Annual Report on Form -K filed on March 16, 2009

Amendment to the Amended and Restated EmploymehiNan-Competition Agreement entered into by and ragriexIService
Holdings, Inc. and Rohit Kapoor (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.7 to Annual Report on Forr-K filed on March 16, 2010

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 India Stock OptidarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18\afendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plarc@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of Ameadh® to our Registration
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Plan (inavgted by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Amendmettd 6ur Registration
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Subplaincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 Anfendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Onmiindia Subplan 1 (incorporated by reference toitkik10.22 of Amendme
6 to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. Management Incentive Rlanorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Ameent 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).
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10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35*

10.36

10.37*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referandexhibit 10.31 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Onmidward Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibiB2 of Amendment 6
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus India Subplan 1 (incorporated by efee to Exhibit 10.33 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amended and Restated Nonqualified Stock Option Awsgreement between Amit Shashank and the Compategldune 1, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 of Amle@nt 6 to our Registration Statement on Fo-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus India Sub@a(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3&ofendment 6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Onmiimdia Subplan 2 (incorporated by reference toiliix10.39 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under2®@6 Omnibus India Subplan 2 (incorporated by efee to Exhibit 10.40 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Restricted Stock Award Agreement between Vikranwaaland the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.41 of Amendment 6 to our Registratioat8inent on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Rohit &apand the Company dated July 27, 2006 (incorpdrhy reference to
Exhibit 10.42 of Amendment 6 to our Registratioat8inent on Form-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amendment to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 OmniBugard Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibi4B of Amendment 6 1
our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1 under28@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by refergndexhibit 10.44 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2 under2@@6 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.45 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Amendment No. 2 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 20Q@ribus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toilkf0.46 of
Amendment 6 to our Registration Statement on Fc-1 (No. 33:-121001)).

Letter Agreement, dated March 20, 2008, betweerSexrVice.com, Inc. and Rembert de Villa (incorpeddby reference to Exhibit
10.29 to the Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2011

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 1diporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the QatrReport on Form 8-K filed
on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 2diporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the GatrReport on Form 8-K filed
on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 3diporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the QutrReport on Form 8-K filed
on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 4diporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the QutrReport on Form 8-K filed
on February 4, 2010

Form of 2010 Restricted Stock Unit Agreement 5diporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to the GatrReport on Form 8-K filed
on February 4, 2010

Framework Agreement, dated July 25, 2005, betwesnr{ca plc, the Company and ExIService.com (InBiayate Limited
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to AalnReport on Form ’-K filed on March 16, 2009

Notice of Extension between Centrica plc and then@any, dated July 11, 2008 (incorporated by refezda Exhibit 10.1 to th
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed on November 10, 200¢

Amendment No. 6, dated April 1, 2009, to the FramdwAgreement between Centrica plc, the CompanyEifiervice.com
(India) Private Limited (incorporated by referenodexhibit 10.36 to Annual Report on Form-K filed on March 16, 2010
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10.38

10.39*

211
23.1
31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Amendment No. 3 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 20Q@ribus Award Plan (incorporated by reference toilkh.6 to our
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (No. 33:-157076)).

Framework Agreement, dated February 29, 2012, byaamong Centrica plc, the Company and exl Sendce.@ndia) Private
Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10t8%he Annual Report on Form-K/A filed on June 1, 2012

Subsidiaries of the Registra
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of BBeétrvice Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) oftkehange Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of ESérvice Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) ofikehange Act, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18.C.Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudao Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 ©.Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

XBRL Extension Presentation Linkbase

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstamonfidential treatment granted by the SEC. Gimétted portions have been filed w
the SEC

**  This exhibit will not be deemed “filed” for pugses of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or othersishject to the liability of that section.
Such exhibit will not be deemed to be incorpordigdeference into any filing under the Securities ér the Exchange Act, except to the
extent that the Company specifically incorporatdsyireference

64



Table of Contents

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Consolidated Financial Statemer

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@imcember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomsg|lLfor the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2@10 F-7
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20i1201( F-8
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeailed December 31, 2012, 2011 and z F-9
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems F-10

F-1



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
ExIService Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subs&biaas of December 31, 2012
and 2011, and the related consolidated statemémsane, comprehensive income/(loss), stockholdagaity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, Zligse financial statements are the responsibifithieo Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries at Deoen81, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated resiutteir operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endecBber 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generallgepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), ExIService
Holdings Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal controkofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2012¢tHam criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Casion and our report dated
March 7, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinionetbier

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 7, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of ExISavioldings, Inc.

We have audited ExIService Holdings, Inc. and glibses’ internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirmgpfizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). ExIService Holdings. and subsidiaries’ management is responfiblmaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assaent of the effectiveness of internal control dimancial reporting included in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on InteQwadtrol over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiis to express an opinion on the
company'’s internal control over financial reportiogsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etastilg and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s AhRegort on Internal Control over Financial Repagtimanagement’s assessment
of and conclusion on the effectiveness of inteowaltrol over financial reporting did not includestimternal controls of Landacorp, Inc., which
is included in the 2012 consolidated financialestatnts of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsidsasird constituted total assets of $43,745
thousand (of which $27,660 thousand representswitiahd intangibles included within the scope loé tassessment) as of December 31, 20!
and $4,022 thousand of revenues and insignificahincome for the year then ended. Our audit @frivdl control over financial reporting of
ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries alsorditlinclude an evaluation of the internal contmlsr financial reporting of Landacorp, Inc.

In our opinion, ExIService Holdings, Inc. and sulisiies maintained, in all material respects, d¢ifednternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on theGCO&eria.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of ExIService Holdingsand subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 8td,2and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income/(Istsykholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofttiree years in the period ended
December 31, 2012 and our report dated March 73 2@pressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 7, 2013
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, n
Prepaid expenst
Deferred tax assets, r
Advance income tax, n
Other current asse

Total current asse

Fixed assets, ni

Restricted cas

Deferred tax assets, r

Intangible assets, n

Goodwill

Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Deferred revenu
Accrued employee co
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current por
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (see Note
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 15,000,000 sheuthorized, none issu
Stockholder' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 stargmrized, 32,540,082 shares issued and
32,203,820 shares outstanding as of December 32, &@d 31,496,461 shares issued and 31,17
shares outstanding as of December 31, :

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total stockholdel equity including shares held in treasi

Less: 336,262 shares as of December 31, 2012 éhd%2shares as of December 31, 2011, held inurgas
at cosl

ExIService Holdings, Inc. stockhold’ equity

Non-controlling interes

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financéstents.
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December 31

December 31

2012 2011
$ 103,03 $ 82,39
6,13 7,86¢
572 934
73,72¢ 55,67:
5,35¢ 4,50¢
7,46( 6,22¢
4,581 3,37¢
7,06¢ 5,86
207,93 166,84
40,23¢ 42,32(
3,75¢ 3,381
13,13¢ 16,49t
43,52; 36,317
106,67: 92,28’
20,59¢ 19,76¢
$ 43585  $ 377,41
$ 3600 $ 4,33
7,922 7,77:
29,39: 27 44¢
31,73 30,95¢
1,68¢ 1,72¢
74,34 72,23
2,67¢ 4,24¢
14,31 22 45¢
91,33 98,93¢
33 31
195,244 173,92
188,88: 147,04(
(36,647 (39,85¢)
347 51 281,144
(3,024 (2,699
344,49; 278,45:
25 23
344,51 278,47
$ 43585  $ 377,41
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues $ 442,93( $ 360,54 $ 252,75
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andréinadion) 271,87¢ 219,98 151,28!
Gross profit 171,05« 140,55« 101,46¢
Operating expense

General and administrative expen 57,19: 50,66( 40,27¢

Selling and marketing expens 31,00 25,58: 18,83:

Depreciation and amortizatic 25,62:¢ 22,99 15,83t
Total operating expens 113,82: 99,23t 74,94¢
Income from operation 57,23: 41,31¢ 26,52:
Other income/(expense

Foreign exchange (loss)/ge (2,509 3,37: 4,19¢

Interest and other income, r 1,997 1,957 1,36
Income before income tax 56,72( 46,64¢ 32,08¢
Income tax provisiol 14,88¢ 11,86¢ 5,49
Net income $ 41,83t $  34,78( $ 26,59
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 1.31 $ 1.1 $ 0.91

Diluted $ 1.2¢€ $ 1.1C $ 0.8¢
Weighte-average number of shares used in computing earpergshare

Basic 31,968,38 30,264,80 29,281,36

Diluted 33,171,10 31,546,14 30,388,522

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LO SS)
(In thousands)

Year ended December 31

2011 2010

$34,78C  $26,59:

(14,820  3,92¢
(24,849 3,48
(28¢) (147)

(1,11 (2,745
81 12¢

(40,98) 4,641

2012
Net income $41,83¢
Other comprehensive income/(los
Unrealized gain/(loss) on effective cash flow hexJget of taxes $192, ($5,509) and
$1,524 51€
Foreign currency translation adjustm (4,149
Retirement benefits, net of taxes ($65), ($66) @3D) (193
Reclassification Adjustmen
Realized loss/(gain) on cash flow hedges, netx&4&2,106, ($484) and ($91 6,93¢
Retirement benefits, net of taxes $26, $22 and 9¢
Total other comprehensive income/(lo 3,211
Total comprehensive income/(los $45,04°

$ (6,200 $31,23:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Accumulated

Additional Other Non -
Common Stock Paid-in Retained  Comprehensive Treasury Stock Controlling
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Shares Amount Interest Total
Balance as of December 31, 20( 29,278,10 $ 29 $ 124,49 $ 8567 $ (3,515 (247,03) $ (97¢) $ 13 $205,71
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 412,36( 1 3,02¢ — — — — — 3,02¢
Nonr-employee stock optior — — 58 — — — — — 58
Stock based compensati — — 8,491 — — — — — 8,491
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens. — — 107 — — — — — 107
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (5,472) 93 — (93)
Non controlling interes — — — — — — — 7 7
Other comprehensive incor 4,641 4,641
Net income — — — 26,59: — — — — 26,59:
Balance as of December 31, 20: 29,690,46 $ 30 $ 136,170 $112,26¢ $ 1,12¢ (252,509 $ (1,069 $ 20 $248,54t
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 805,99¢ — 5,53t — — — — — 5,63¢
Stock issued in primary offerir 1,000,00! 1 21,52t — — — — — 21,52¢
Non-employee stock optior — 21 — — — — — 21
Stock based compensati — — 9,46: — — — — — 9,46:
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens. — — 1,21C — — — — — 1,21(
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (70,89Y) (1,629 — (1,629
Non controlling interes — — — — — — — 3 3
Other comprehensive lo (40,989 (40,98
Net income — — — 34,78( — — — — 34,78(
Balance as of December 31, 20: 31,496,46 $ 31  $ 173,92t $147,04¢ $ (39,859 (323,39) $(2,699) $ 23 $278,47!
Stock issued on exercise/vesting of equity aw 1,043,62 2 9,601 — — — — — 9,60
Non-employee stock optior — — 32 — — — — — 32
Stock based compensati — — 9,41¢€ — — — — — 9,41¢
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens — — 2,27° — — — — — 2,27%
Acquisition of treasury stoc — — — — — (12,86%) (33)) — (331)
Non controlling interes — — — — — — — 2 2
Other comprehensive incor — — — — 3,211 — — — 3,211
Net income — — — 41,83¢ — — — — 41,83¢
Balance as of December 31, 20: 32,540,08 $ 33 $ 19524¢( $188,88: $ (36,647 (336,26 $(3,029) $ 25  $344,51

See accompanying notes to consolidated financagtstents
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigemn by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Stocl-based compensation expel
Amortization of deferred financing cc
Non-employee stock optior
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/lc
Gain on bargain purcha
Deferred income taxe
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic
Non-controlling interes
Change in operating assets and liabilities (neffigfct of acquisitions)
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Deferred revenu
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Advance income tax, n
Other asset

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

Purchase of fixed asse

Business acquisition (net of cash acquil
Purchase of shc-term investment

Proceeds from redemption of st-term investment

Net cash used for investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie

Principal payments on capital lease obligati

Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of issuaosts
Proceeds from sh«term borrowings

Repayments of sh«-term borrowings

Payment of debt issuance cc

Acquisition of treasury stoc

Proceeds from exercise of stock opti

Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis.
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxes, net of refu

Assets acquired under capital le

See accompanying notes to consolidated financag¢stent.
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Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ 41,83 $ 34,78C $ 26,59
25,62: 22,99 15,83t
9,41¢ 9,46: 8,491
151 90 —

32 21 58
(94%) (6,596) 1,05(

— (40E) —
4,727 (1,705) (2,375)
(2,279 (1,210 (107)
2 3 7

(32) (49€) 431
(8,08¢) (5,109) (8,449
(1,799 (4,660) (2,166)
3,01¢ (840) (145)
(3,721) (319) (2,767)
(715) 8,52( 9,08:
(1,319 1,40¢ (5,850)
(14¢) 29¢ (3,18))
65,78: 56,23 36,50¢
(18,80) (19,469 (19,86
(37,500 (80,989 (42,149
(7,351) (8,815 (2,422)
8,821 3,517 3,45¢
(54,83)  (105,75) (60,979
(1,640) (1,286) (88)
— 21,52¢ —

— 30,00¢ —

— (30,049 —

— (44€) —
(331) (1,622) (93)
9,60: 5,53¢ 3,02¢
2,27¢ 1,21( 107
9,90t 24,86¢ 2,95(
(209 (4,139 482
20,64+ (28,789  (21,03)
82,39 111,18; 132,21
$103,03 $ 82,39 $111,18:
$ 82 $ 80 $ 43
$13,77¢ $ 1454. $ 12,81t
$ 24z $ 352 $ 547
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

ExIService Holdings, Inc. (ExIService Holdings)igyanized as a corporation under the laws of tie sif Delaware. ExIService
Holdings, together with its subsidiaries (colleetyy the Company), is a leading provider of outstg services and transformation services.
The Company'’s clients are located principally ia th.S. and the U.K.

Basis of Presentatio
Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial sta¢ats and related notes have been reclassifieahforen to the 2012 presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Principles of Consolidatic

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieade been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengiadcepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). The accompanying financial statements have beqraped on a consolidated basis and reflect the dinhstatements of ExIServi
Holdings and all of its subsidiaries. All intercoamy balances and transactions have been elimiiratzhsolidation.

The non-controlling interest represents the miggrdrtner’s interest in the operation of exl Seewtom (India) Private Limited (“ExI
India”) and the profits associated with the minopartner’s interest in those operations, in thesotidated balance sheets and consolidated
statements of income, respectively. The minoritgirga’s interest in the operations for the yeameghDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 wa
insignificant and is included under general and iatbtrative expenses in the consolidated statendritecome.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with GAAP requires managemennike estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the congeliistatements of income during the reporting jgefistimates are based upon
management’s best assessment of the current bsignesonment. Actual results could differ from skoestimates. The significant estimates
and assumptions that affect the financial statesniectude, but are not limited to, allowance fouldtiul receivables, service tax receivables,
assets and obligations related to employee beplafis, deferred tax valuation allowances, incomeutacertainties and other contingencies,
valuation of derivative financial instruments, #dzased compensation expense, depreciation andiaatimn periods, recoverability of long-
term assets including goodwill and intangibles, astimates to complete fixed price contracts.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of each entity in the Comps its respective local country currency whistaiso the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates exceptte entity in Mauritius. Monetary assets andiliibs in foreign currencies are re-
measured into functional currency at the ratesxohange prevailing at the balance sheet datessacéions in foreign currencies are re-
measured into functional currency at the ratesxohange prevailing on the date of the transac#dirtransaction foreign exchange gains and
losses are recorded in the accompanying consaliddié@ements of income.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiariesafbich the functional currency is other than the .\dl@lar are translated into U.S. dollars,
the reporting currency, at the rate of exchangeailiag on the balance sheet dates.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continu ed)
December 31, 2012
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues and expenses are translated into U.&rglall the exchange rates prevailing on the lashbss day of each month, which
approximates the average monthly exchange rateltfestranslation adjustments are included in awglated other comprehensive loss in the
audited consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company derives its revenues from outsouramptensformation services. Revenues from outsongrservices are recognized
primarily on a time-and-material, cost-plus or ymitced basis; revenues from transformation sesvaze recognized primarily on a time-and-
material and fixed price basis. The services pmeidithin our contracts generally contain one ohiiccounting. Revenues are recognized
under our contracts generally when persuasive aeilef an arrangement exists, the sales pricgeasl for determinable, services have been
performed and collection of amounts billed is remdily assured.

Revenues under time-and-material contracts argynémed as the services are performed. Revenues@rgnized on cost-plus contracts
on the basis of contractually agreed direct anitésticosts incurred on a client contract plus gread upon profit mark-up. Revenues are
recognized on unit-price based contracts basetde@number of specified units of work (such as thmlper of e-mail responses) delivered to a
client. Such revenues are recognized as the redeteites are provided in accordance with the tientract. When the terms of the client
contract specify service level parameters that hasnet (such as turnaround time or accuracy), weitor such service level parameters to
determine if any service credits or penalties Haaen incurred. Revenues are recognized net ofemics credits that are due to a client. We
have experienced minimal service credits and piesald date. Revenue on contingent fee based otsisarecognized when the related
contingency has been met to the client’s satigacti

Revenues are recognized on fixed-price contradtgjike proportional performance method when thtepaof performance under the
contracts can be reasonably determined. We estimatgroportional performance of a contract by carmg the actual number of hours or
days worked to the estimated total number of houdays required to complete each engagement. 3defithe proportional performance
method requires significant judgment relative tneating the number of hours or days required tmglete the contracted scope of work,
including assumptions and estimates relative tdethgth of time to complete the project and theiremand complexity of the work to be
performed. We regularly monitor our estimates fampletion of a project and record changes in thimgen which a change in an estimate is
determined. If a change in an estimate resultsprogected loss on a project, such loss is recaghiiz the period in which it is first identified.

Revenues from software licensing arrangementseai@gnized at the later of time of delivery or eapion of significant termination
rights if the license fee is fixed or determinalglellection is probable, and there is sufficiemider specific evidence of the fair value of each
undelivered element. When there are significantipction, modifications or customization, instaltetj systems integration or related services
the professional services and license revenuesoambined and recorded based upon proportional peéioce, measured in the manner
described above. Revenues from fixed-term maintemand support contracts are recognized ratablyraonthly basis over the period of the
contract.

The Company accrues for revenue and receivablesefoices rendered between the last billing dadetlaa balance sheet date.
Accordingly, our accounts receivable include amsdat services that we have performed and for whitlnvoice has not yet been issued to
the client.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continu ed)
December 31, 2012
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses receiezd €lients have been included as part of reveituascordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) topic 605-45-14ntome Statement Characterization of Reimbursenieeteived for “Out-of-Pocket”
Expenses Incurre(’

Revenues for the following periods include reimleanents of out-of-pocket expenses:

Year ended December 31, 2C $18,86:
Year ended December 31, 2C $16,07:
Year ended December 31, 2C $11,82(

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investmegmnischased with an original maturity of three mandin less to be cash equivalents.
Pursuant to the Company’s investment policy, itplsis funds are kept as cash or cash equivaledtsigninvested in highly-rated mutual
funds, money market accounts and time depositsdoce its exposure to market risk with regard ésé¢hfunds.

Current restricted cash represents amounts on ieyigsbanks against bank guarantees issued thrbagks for equipment imports that
will mature on various dates before December 31328s well as client funds held in dedicated basdounts.

Non-current restricted cash represents amount&pasit with banks against bank guarantees issuedgh banks for equipment imports
and for demands against pending income tax assess(see Note 15 for details), that will maturevanious dates after December 31, 2013.

Investments

The Company'’s investments consist of time depwgits financial institutions which are valued at tasd approximate fair value.
Interest earned on such investments is includéaténest income. Investments with original matestgreater than three months but less than
twelve months are classified as short-term investménvestments with maturities greater than teehonths from the balance sheet date are
classified as long-term investments.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowafmedoubtful accounts. Allowances for doubtful agnts are established through the
evaluation of the accounts receivable ageing aiwd pollection experience to estimate the ultimaaectability of these receivables. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $20%%8% of allowance for doubtful accounts, respetyi

Accounts receivable include unbilled accounts neatddie which represents revenues for services peddrbut yet to be billed to the
client. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Compead $15,601 and $6,103 of unbilled accountsivabke, respectively, part of which ¢
subsequently billed to the respective clients.
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continu ed)
December 31, 2012
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulagpeelciiion and amortization. Equipment held undgrital leases is stated at the lower of
present value of minimum lease payments at theptiare of the leases or its fair value. Advancesl gawards acquisition of fixed assets and
the cost of fixed assets not yet placed in servefere the end of the period are classified astooctton in progress.

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenewents or changes in circumstances indicate thatahging amount may not be
recoverable through an assessment of the estirh#ted undiscounted cash flows related to suchtaskethe event that assets are found to b
carried at amounts that are in excess of estimatdiscounted future cash flows, the carrying valithe related asset or group of assets is
reduced to a level commensurate with fair valuedam a discounted cash flow analysis.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehrad over the estimated useful lives of the as&preciation and amortization on
equipment held under capital leases and leaseimgbivements are computed using the straight-linghadeover the shorter of the assets’
estimated useful lives or the lease term.

The estimated lives used in determining depreaiai@ as follows:

Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)

Network equipment, computers and softw 35
Buildings 30
Leasehold improvemen 3-8
Office furniture and equipmel 3-7
Motor vehicles 35

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other IntangibAsset:

ASC topic 805,Business Combinations{ASC No. 805), requires that the purchase methatobunting be used for all business
combinations. The guidance specifies criteria d@ntingible assets acquired in a business combim#tiat must be recognized and reported
separately from goodwill. Under ASC topic 35Mitangibles—Goodwill and Other(ASC No. 350), all assets and liabilities of theaiced
businesses, including goodwill, are assigned tontégy units.

Gooduwill represents the cost of the acquired bissieg in excess of the fair value of identifiablethle and intangible net assets
purchased. Goodwill is not amortized but is te$tedmpairment at least on an annual basis, relging number of factors including operating
results, business plans and estimated future ¢awshk.fRecoverability of goodwill is evaluated usimdwo-step process. The first step involves
a comparison of the fair value of a reporting wvith its carrying value. The fair value of the refreg unit is measured by discounting
estimated future cash flows. If the carrying amafrthe reporting unit exceeds its fair value, $keond step of the process involves a
comparison of the fair value and carrying valu¢hef goodwill of that reporting unit. If the carrgvalue of the goodwill of a reporting unit
exceeds the fair value of that goodwill, an impannloss is recognized in an amount equal to tkessx Goodwill of a reporting unit will be
tested for impairment between annual tests if amegccurs or circumstances change that would filaly than not reduce the fair value of
the reporting unit below its carrying amount.
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Intangible assets are initially valued at fair meirkalue using generally accepted valuation metlpgsopriate for the type of intangible
asset. Intangible assets with definite lives areréized over the estimated useful lives and areevesd for impairment, if indicators of
impairment arise. The evaluation of impairmentasdd upon a comparison of the carrying amounteoirttangible asset to the estimated fu
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be genkbgtthe asset. If estimated future undiscountstt iaws are less than the carrying amoun
of the asset, the asset is considered impairediripa@rment expense is determined by comparinggtienated fair value of the intangible a
to its carrying value, with any shortfall from faialue recognized as an expense in the currerdgoeri

The Company’s definite lived intangible assetsam®rtized over their estimated useful lives agdidtelow using a straight-line method
or a method of amortization that reflects the patte which the economic benefits of the intangtdssets were consumed or otherwise
realized:

Customer relationshir 3-15 year
Leasehold benefit 3-8 year:
Developed technolog 5-10 year
Non-compete agreemer 1-2 year
Trade names and tradema 3-5 year:

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company elgtiooks to mitigate the exposure of foreign coogmarket risk by entering into
various hedging instruments, authorized under Camppalicies, with counterparties that are highliedafinancial institutions. The Company
uses derivative instruments for the purpose ofgaiing the underlying exposure from foreign cursefigctuation risks associated with
forecasted transactions denominated in certaingoreurrencies and to minimize earnings and cash ¥lolatility associated with changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, and not for spéigeltrading purposes.

The Company hedges anticipated transactions thadudnject to foreign exchange exposure with foreigmency exchange contracts that
are designated effective and that qualify as clasth fiedges under ASC topic 815D¢rivatives and Hedgin(ASC No. 815). Changes in the
fair value of these cash flow hedges which are @ekeffective, are recorded in accumulated othempeehrensive income/(loss) (AOCI) until
the hedged transactions occur and at that timesaognized in the consolidated statements of inc&@hanges in the fair value of cash flow
hedges deemed ineffective are recognized in theatioiated statement of income and are includedrieign exchange (loss)/gain. The
Company also uses derivatives instruments congisfifioreign currency exchange contracts not dedeghas hedging instruments under ASC
No. 815 to hedge intercompany balances and othaeetary assets or liabilities denominated in curieother than the functional curren
Changes in the fair value of these derivatives@regnized in the consolidated statements of incantkeare included in foreign exchange
(loss)/gain.

The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrtigedticontract is entered into as well as on aningdasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in direvilue is recorded in the consolidated statesnehincome and is included in foreign
exchange (loss)/gain. For hedge relationshipsateatiscontinued because the forecasted transastiai expected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatasmounts recorded in equity are reclassified taings.
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Retirement Benefit:

Contributions to defined contribution plans arerged to the consolidated statements of incomedrp#riod in which services are
rendered by the covered employees. Current secaisis for defined benefit plans are accrued irpgréod to which they relate. In accordance
with ASC topic 715, ‘Compensation—Retirement Ben&{iASC No. 715), the liability in respect of definednefit plans is calculated annu:
by the Company using the projected unit credit methPrior service cost, if any, resulting from amesmmdment to a plan is recognized and
amortized over the remaining period of servicehef tovered employees. The Company recognizesilitities for compensated absences in
accordance with ASC topic 710Compensation—Genera{ASC No. 710).

Share-Based Compensation

The Company follows ASC topic 718 ompensation—Stock Compensatig@iSC No. 718), which requires the recognition afckt
based compensation expense in the consolidatetciaiastatements for awards of equity instrumentsmployees and non-employee directors
based on the grant-date fair value of those awaitis. Company recognizes these compensation cestsf an estimated forfeiture rate, over
the requisite service period of the award.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC topic 740;Income Taxes”(ASC No. 740). Under ASC No. 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfiaetuture tax consequences attributable to difieess between the financial statement carrying
value of existing assets and liabilities and thespective tax basis and all operating lossesethfarward, if any. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using tax rates expedeipply to taxable income in the years in whichdhpplicable temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effecled@rred tax assets and liabilities of a changevirates or tax status is recognized in the
statement of income in the period in which the deais identified. Deferred tax assets are redugeal\mluation allowance if, based on
available evidence, it is more likely than not teame portion or all of the deferred tax assetbnil be realized.

ASC No. 740 clarifies the accounting for incomeesby prescribing the minimum recognition threshetdx position is required to me
before being recognized in the financial statemdhtdso provides guidance on de-recognition, meament, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The guidance contains a two-gpgwoach to recognizing and measuring
uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordavite ASC No. 740. The first step is to evaluate thx position for recognition by
determining, based on the technical merits, thaptbsition will be more likely than not sustaingebn examination. The second step is to
measure the tax benefit as the largest amounedbthbenefit that is greater than 50% likely ahlgerealized upon settlement. Interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitdanag included in provision for income-tax expemsthe consolidated statements of income.

Financial Instruments and Concentration of CreditiBk

Financial Instrumentsi-or certain financial instruments including casd aash equivalents, short-term investments, acsaeceivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses, and othentliatglities, recorded amounts approximate failue due to the relatively short maturity
periods of such instruments.
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Concentration of Credit RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subje& @ompany to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, time d@ppaccounts receivable and derivative finariostruments. By their nature, all such
financial instruments involve risks including thedit risks of non-performance by counterpartiagsBant to the Company’s investment
policy, its surplus funds are maintained as castash equivalents and are invested in highly-ratatual funds, money market accounts and
time deposits to reduce its exposure to marketwistk regard to these funds. Trade accounts reb&hare incurred pursuant to contractual
terms with customers. Credit losses on accountsivaile have not been material because of a lamgeenitration of revenues with a small
number of large, established companies. The Comeaalyiates the creditworthiness of its clientsdnjanction with its revenue recognition
processes as well as through its ongoing collditabssessment processes for accounts receivable.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirtgnm®me to common stockholders by the weightedayenumber of common shares
outstanding during each period. Diluted earningsspare is computed using the weighted average aeuoflcommon shares plus the
potentially dilutive effect of common stock equieats issued and outstanding at the reporting dabag the treasury stock method. Stock
options, restricted stock and restricted stocksuthiait are anti-dilutive are excluded from the catapon of weighted average shares
outstanding.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respectitvested shares of restricted stock and restrtteak units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstrficted stock, without interest, only if and wharch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristeck and restricted stock units are immediateffefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder’'s employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righasdividends or dividend equivalents and are theeefmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method. However, the Comipamgted restricted stock units against
which the underlying common stock has not beerei$scontain non-forfeitable rights to dividendslividend equivalents and are therefore
after vesting considered as participating secusritie the purposes of computing basic earningsbpare pursuant to the two-class method.
Application of this treatment had an insignificafitect on the basic earnings per share.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Numerators:
Net income $ 41,83t $ 34,78 $ 26,59
Denominators:
Basic weighted average common shares
outstanding 31,968,38 30,264,80 29,281,36
Dilutive effect of share based awal 1,202,71! 1,281,33 1,107,15
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 33,171,10 31,546,14 30,388,52
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 1.31 $ 1.1 $ 0.91
Diluted $ 1.2¢ $ 1.1C $ 0.8¢
Weighted average common shares considered anti-
dilutive in computing diluted earnings per sh 413,49: 424,08: 674,50
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive La

ASC topic 220, ‘Reporting Comprehensive Incofi@stablishes rules for the reporting of compreliemincome and its components.
Comprehensive income is defined as all changegquityefrom non-owner sources. For the Company, aemgnsive loss consists of net
earnings/(loss), amortization of actuarial gairggjoon retirement benefits and changes in the atimealforeign currency translation
adjustments. In addition, the Company enters ioteifin currency exchange contracts, which are dasigl as cash flow hedges in accordanc
with ASC No. 815. Changes in the fair values oftcacts that are deemed effective are recordedcasmponent of accumulated other
comprehensive loss until the settlement of thatre@h The balances as of December 31, 2012 antl @@las follows:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Cumulative translation adjustments $ (30,48¢) $ (26,33)
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, net of tak¢$2521) and
($4,819) (5,45¢6) (12,910
Retirement benefits, net of taxes of ($203) an®4$ (705) (611
Accumulated other comprehensive | $ (36,64) $ (39,859
Accrued expenses and other current liabiliti
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isbrd the following:
December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Accrued expenses $ 20,13¢ $ 15,57:
Derivative instrument 6,40: 9,17(
Other current liabilitie 5,20( 6,214
Accrued expenses and other current liabili $ 31,73 $ 30,95¢
Non-current liabilities
Non-current liabilities consist of the following:
December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Derivative instruments $  3,45¢ $ 8,55¢
Unrecognized tax benefi 2,68( 4,981
Deferred ren 4,631 3,31¢
Retirement benefit 2,38( 3,06¢
Other nor-current liabilities 1,16¢ 2,531
Non-current liabilities $ 14,31 $ 22,45¢

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsrddqa-ASB”) issued update No. 2011-04AMmendments to Achieve Common Fair
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements$ GAAP and IFRS(ASU No. 2011-04). ASU No. 2011-04 is intendedrtgprove the
comparability of fair value measurements preseatetidisclosed in financial statements prepareddéor@ance with GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). ASU No. 204 explains how to measure fair value and doesaguire additional measurements.
Accordingly, the adoption of this accounting pronoement from January 1, 2012 did not have an impathe Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
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In June 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2011-8%e8entation of Comprehensive Incof@SU No. 2011-05). ASU No. 2011-05,
effective retrospectively for the interim and aninperiods beginning on or after December 15, 2@Htly adoption is permitted), requires
presentation of total comprehensive income, thepmrants of net income and the components of otlrepeehensive income either in a sir
continuous statement of comprehensive income twanseparate but consecutive statements. The Conguopted the option of presentation
in two separate but consecutive statements. RethietCompany’s consolidated statements of compsihe income/(loss) for further details.

In December 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2@11Bkferral of the Effective Date for Amendmentshe Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated O@amprehensive Income in Accounting Stanc” (ASU No. 2011-12), which deferred the
requirement to present on the face of the finaratatements the effects of reclassifications oatosfumulated other comprehensive income
(“AOCI") on the components of net income and otb@mprehensive income for annual and interim finalnstiatements. The adoption of this
accounting pronouncement from January 1, 2012 dtidhave any impact on the Company’s consolidateaifitial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued update No. 2811 Testing Goodwill for Impairmerit(tASU No. 2011-08), which permits an
entity to first perform a qualitative assessmerddtermine whether it is more likely than not ttheg fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying value. If an entity concludes that the failue of a reporting unit is less than its cargyvalue, it is necessary to perform a two-step
goodwill impairment test. ASU No. 2011-08 is effeetfor annual and interim goodwill impairment gegerformed for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this actitog pronouncement did not have a material impadhe Company’s consolidated
financial statements and annual goodwill impairnfenthe fiscal year 2012.

In July 2012, the FASB issued update No. 2012-0&sting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Innpeent” (ASU No. 2012-02),
which simplifies the guidance for testing the imp@ént of indefinite-lived intangible assets othearn goodwill. Examples of intangible assets
subject to the guidance include indefinite-liveattiemarks, licenses, and distribution rights. Theradment provides the option to first assess
qualitative factors to determine whether it is resegy to perform the quantitative impairment t&sider the option, an entity is no longer
required to calculate the fair value of an indeédived intangible asset unless the entity deteesi based on a qualitative assessment, that it
more likely than not that its fair value is lesaritits carrying amount. This amendment is effedivdiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2012, with early adoption permitfdet Company does not expect the new guidance t® &@avmpact on its 2013 impairment
test results.

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update2R13-02;'Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Cehwmrsive Incon” (ASU 2013-02). Under ASU 2013-02, an entity is fieeghto provide
information about the amounts reclassified out 6fA by component. In addition, an entity is reqdite present, either on the face of the
financial statements or in the notes, significanbants reclassified out of AOCI by the respectiae items of net income, but only if the
amount reclassified is required to be reclassifigits entirety in the same reporting period. Foroants that are not required to be reclassified
in their entirety to net income, an entity is reqdito cross-reference to other disclosures thmatige additional details about those amounts.
ASU 2013-02 does not change the current requiresrfenteporting net income or other comprehensieeine in the financial statements.
ASU 2013-02 is effective from January 1, 2013 drel@ompany does not expect the new guidance todrairapact on its consolidated
financial statements.
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Summarized quarterly results for the years endezbDber 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2012

Revenues

Gross profit

Net income

Earnings Per Shar
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average number of shares used in
computing earnings per sha
Basic
Diluted
Note:
Stock compensation exper
Amortization of intangible:

2011

Revenues

Gross profit

Net income

Earnings Per Shar
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average number of shares used in
computing earnings per sha
Basic
Diluted
Note:
Stock compensation exper
Amortization of intangible:

Three months endec

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31 Full Year

$ 104,60¢ $ 108,03( $ 112,63¢ $ 117,65: $ 442,93(
37,93¢ 41,98t 43,98¢ 47,14« 171,05¢

$ 8,91¢ $ 9,054 $ 11,70: $ 12,16: $ 41,83¢
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3¢ $ 1.31
$ 0.27 $ 0.27 $ 0.3t $ 0.3¢ $ 1.2¢
31,445,59 31,970,88 32,154,00 32,297,41 31,968,38
32,783,85 33,096,60 33,283,85 33,514,44 33,171,10
$ 2,748 $ 2,71¢ $ 1,871 $ 2,081 $ 9,41¢
$ 1,39¢ $ 1,36¢ $ 1,32¢ $ 1,55¢ $ 5,63¢

Three months endec
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31 Full Year

$ 72,90 $  85,02¢ $ 100,02 $ 102,58 $ 360,54:
28,68¢ 33,03( 38,27: 40,56t 140,55¢

$ 8,361 $ 8,47¢ $ 8,391 $ 9,55: $ 34,78(
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.31 $ 1.1t
$ 0.27 $ 0.27 $ 0.27 $ 0.2¢ $ 1.1C
29,620,21 29,859,81 30,293,11 31,266,18 30,264,80
30,911,06 31,043,42 31,586,93 32,623,25 31,546,14
$ 2,24¢ $ 2,87¢ $ 2,16( $ 2,17¢ $ 9,462
$ 63€ $ 91z $ 1,39¢ $ 1,38t $ 4,32¢

Note: Figures for the quarters may not be compardbé to acquisitions in 2011 and 2012.
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4. Segment Information

The Company is organized around its outsourcinges and transformation services segments. Thep@oy's recent acquisition of
Landacorp, Inc. (“Landacorp”) is classified withihre outsourcing services segment. See Note 5 ftirdiudetails regarding the acquisition of
Landacorp (the “Landacorp Acquisition”).

The chief operating decision maker generally regiéwancial information at the consolidated statenwd income level but does not
review any information except for revenues and obsevenues of the individual segments. Therefitre Company does not allocate or
evaluate operating expenses, interest expenseaman capital expenditures, and income taxes wpisating segments. Consequently, it is
practical to show assets, capital expenditures;edégtion or amortization by segment.

Revenues and cost of revenues for each of the gadedd December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, for owdisguservices and
transformation services segments, respectivelyasifellows:

Year ended December 31, 201 Year ended December 31, 201
Outsourcing Transformation QOutsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total Services Services Total
Revenues $366,76° $ 76,16: $442,93( $294,36: $ 66,18(  $360,54:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization) 222,86( 49,01¢ 271,87¢ 178,30: 41,68¢ 219,98
Gross profit $14390 $ 27,147 $171,05¢ $116,06( $ 24,49:  $140,55:
Operating expenst 113,82: 99,23t
Other income/(expens (512 5,33(
Income tax provisiol 14,88¢ 11,86¢
Net income $ 41,83¢ $ 34,78(
Year ended December 31, 201
Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total
Revenues $192,09! $ 60,65¢ $252,75:
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation andrtinadion) 113,46: 37,824 151,28!
Gross profit $ 78,63¢ $ 22,83 $101,46¢
Operating expenst 74,94t
Other income/(expens 5,56¢
Income tax provisiol 5,49
Net income $ 26,59:
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5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible ssets

On October 12, 2012, the Company acquired Landdoatpa leading provider of healthcare solutiond technology (the “Landacorp
Acquisition”). Landacorp has more than 50 milliowves under management on its software platformshasddeveloped services and
technology solutions that share vital clinical daith payers, providers, plan participants and aotable care organizations. The Landacorp
Acquisition furthers the Company’s strategic intentontinue investing in the healthcare domain stnehgthen its capabilities to serve the
U.S. healthcare industry and continue to investuitding processes, analytics and platform cap#dslin its focused verticals. Accordingly,
Company paid a premium for the acquisition whicheag reflected in the goodwill recognized froma fiurchase price allocation of the total
consideration paid by the Company.

The total purchase price of the acquisitions ifodsws:

Enterprise Valut $37,50(
Add: Working capital adjustment: 1,18:
Total purchase pric $38,68!

*Paid in January 2013.

The Company’s preliminary purchase price allocafmrthe acquisitions is as follows:

Amount

(In thousands’

Net tangible asse $ 10,72
Identifiable intangible asset

Customer relationshir 7,09t

Developed technolog 5,31z

Trade name 54¢

Goodwill 14,99¢

Total purchase price $ 38,68

* Includes $4,500 deposited in escrow account®imection with the acquisition.

Under ASC topic 805, Business Combinationsthe preliminary allocation of the purchase prioghe tangible and intangible assets an
liabilities acquired may change up to a periodé gear from the date of acquisition. Accordinghe Company may adjust the amounts
recorded as of December 31, 2012 to reflect angedwaluations of the assets acquired or liabdiaissumed. The Company’s purchase
accounting as of December 31, 2012 was incompléteapily due to the pending final assessment ofrdadizability of the Landacorp’federa
and state net operating losses in the U.S. an@tratuof intangibles as of October 12, 2012. Thaltamount of deferred tax assets recognize
for the acquired federal and state net operatiages is approximately $6,004 as of December 312 a6d is included under “deferred tax
assets” in the consolidated financial statements.

The customer relationships and developed techndlogy the Landacorp Acquisition are being amortipedr a weighted average life of
10.0 years. Similarly, trade names are being amexttover a life of 5.0 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynnognized $450 of acquisition-related costshSarmounts are included under
general and administrative expenses in the audiiadolidated statements of income.

Our results of operations for the year ended DeeerBb, 2012 include $4,022 of revenues and insigmif net income since the
Landacorp Acquisition was consummated.

F-21



Table of Contents

Goodwill

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(continu ed)
December 31, 2012
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

The following table sets forth details of the Comyia goodwill balance as of December 31, 2012:

Outsourcing

Transformation

Services Services Total
Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 26,58¢ $ 16,78t $ 43,37(
Goodwill arising from OPI acquisitio 54,60: — 54,60
Currency translation adjustmel (5,687 — (5,687
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 75,50: $ 16,78t $ 92,28
Goodwill arising from Landacorp acquisitit 14,99¢ — 14,99¢
Purchase accounting adjustme® 422 — 422
Currency translation adjustmel (1,037%) — (1,039
Balance at December 32012 $ 89,88¢ $ 16,78t $106,67:

(1) Relates to the acquisition of Business Prooeassourcing Inc. (“OPI”) on May 31, 2011 (the “OfRtquisition”) pertaining
to service tax receivables included un“other current ass¢’ in the consolidated balance sheet as of Decemhex(d1l.

The entire amount of goodwill recognized from thel@.cquisition in 2011 and Landacorp Acquisition2@12 is not deductible for tax
purposes.

Based on the results of its impairment testinggrenéd during the year ended December 31, 201Z dinepany’s goodwill was not
impaired. The Company makes every reasonable eff@hsure that it accurately estimates the fdirevaf the reporting units. However, futt
changes in the assumptions used to make theseagssicould result in the recording of an impairmess.

Intangible Asset
Information regarding the Company’s intangible &sseset forth below:

As of December 31, 201

Gross Accumulated Net Carrying
Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships $40,15¢ $ (7,83 $ 32,32
Leasehold benefii 3,35¢ (1,219 2,14z
Developed technolog 7,44 (683) 6,762
Non-compete agreemer 1,31¢ (1,316 —
Trade names and tradema 3,27( (979) 2,291
$55,54¢ $ (12,029 $ 43,52
As of December 31, 201
Gross Accumulated Net Carrying
Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships $33,10( $ (4,456 $ 28,64«
Leasehold benefii 3,47¢ (66€) 2,80¢
Developed technolog 2,13: (35)) 1,78
Non-compete agreemer 1,31¢ (60€) 71C
Trade names and tradema 2,722 (351) 2,371
$42,74¢ $ (6,430 $ 36,31
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Amortization expense for the years ended Decembge2@®12, 2011 and 2010 was $5,638, $4,329 and 42r62pectively. The weighted
average life of intangible assets was 10.1 yearsustomer relationships, 6.8 years for leasehetukfits, 10.0 years for developed technology
1.5 years for non-compete agreements and 3.5 f@arade names and trademarks excluding indeflifiégrade names and trademarks. The
Company had $900 of indefinite lived trade namesteedemarks as of December 31, 2012 and Decemb@031.

Estimated amortization of intangible assets duringhe year ending December 31

2013 $5,74¢
2014 $5,29¢
2015 $5,04¢
2016 $5,04:
2017 $5,01%

6. Fair Value Measurements

ASC topic 820;Fair Value Measurements and DisclosureASC No. 820) defines fair value as the pricet tivauld be received upon
sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a lighiti an orderly transaction between market pgréinis at the measurement date and in the
principal or most advantageous market for thattamskability. The fair value should be calculatedsed on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset oriliigh not on assumptions specific to the entity.addition, the fair value of liabilities should
include consideration of non-performance risk, udahg the Company’s own credit risk.

ASC No. 820 establishes a three-level hierarchgiofvalue measurements based on whether the ibpti®se measurements are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputsctafiarket data obtained from independent sourckie wnobservable inputs reflect the
Company’s market assumptions. The fair-value hignarequires the use of observable market data \&heitable and consists of the
following levels:

* Level —Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets;

* Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments itiv\e markets; quoted prices for identical or simitsstruments in markets that
are not active; and mocderived valuations in which all significant inp@e observable in active markets; :

* Level Z—Valuations derived from valuation techniques in efhone or more significant inputs are unobserv

The following table sets forth the Company’s asaets liabilities that were accounted for at failueaas of December 31, 2012 and 2011
The table excludes short-term investments, accaentsvable, accounts payable and accrued expérsebich fair values approximate their
carrying amounts.
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt
The assets and liabilities measured at fair vatugeourring basis are summarized below:

As of December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total
Assets

Money market and mutual funi $64,76¢ $ — $— $64,76¢
Derivative financial instrumen — 1,73( — 1,73(C
Total $64,76¢ $ 1,73( $— $66,49¢
Liabilities

Derivative financial instrumen $ — $ 9,861 $— $ 9,861
Total $ — $ 9,861 $— $ 9,861
As of December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total
Assets

Money market and mutual fun: $42,06° $ — $— $42,06°
Derivative financial instrumen — 32 — 32
Total $42,06° $ 32 $— $42,09¢
Liabilities

Derivative financial instrumen $ — $17,72¢ $— $17,72¢
Total $ — $17,72¢ $— $17,72¢

Derivative Financial InstrumentsLhe Companys derivative financial instruments consist of fgrecurrency forward exchange contra
Fair values for derivative financial instruments Aased on independent sources including hightdrfitancial institutions and are classifie
Level 2. See Note 7 for further details on Derivasi and Hedge Accounting.

7. Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative instruments and hedgangactions to mitigate exposure to foreign awyefluctuation risks associated
with forecasted transactions denominated in ceftaigign currencies and to minimize earnings arghdblbw volatility associated with chang
in foreign currency exchanges rates. The Compatgrivative financial instruments are largely fordidoreign exchange contracts that are
designated effective and that qualify as cash fiedges under ASC topic 815D¢rivatives and hedging(ASC No. 815). The Company also
uses derivatives consisting of foreign currencyhexge contracts not designated as hedging institsrmeder ASC No. 815 to hedge
intercompany balances and other monetary assébiities denominated in currencies other tham @ompany’s functional currency. The
Company’s primary exchange rate exposure is wighlthK. pound sterling and the Indian rupee. The @amy also has exposure in Philippine
pesos, Czech koruna and other local currenciesiohat operates.

The Company had outstanding foreign exchange atsttataling $221,255 and GBP 11,544 as of Dece®be?012 and totaling
$235,866 and GBP 10,368 as of December 31, 20 CbBmpany estimates that approximately $5,269 bleevative losses included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss could bessfiled into earnings within the next 12 monthsealasn exchange rates prevailing as of
December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, the maximutstanding term of derivative instruments tredde forecasted transactions was
thirty three months.
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The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness atrtigedticontract is entered into as well as on aningdasis. If during this time, a
contract is deemed ineffective, the change in direvilue is recorded in the consolidated statesnehincome and is included in foreign
exchange (loss)/gain. For hedging positions thatd&@continued because the forecasted transastioot iexpected to occur by the end of the
originally specified period, any related derivatasvmounts recorded in equity are reclassified taiegs. No significant amounts of gains or
losses were reclassified from AOCI into earninga assult of forecasted transactions that faileddmur during the year ended December 31,
2012 and 2011.

The following tables set forth the fair value oétforeign currency exchange contracts and theatios on the consolidated financial
statements:

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

Other current assets:
Foreign currency exchange contre $ 98( $
Other assets:
Foreign currency exchange contre $ 75C $ —
$ $
$ $

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Foreign currency exchange contre 6,24¢ 9,17(
Other non-current liabilities:

Foreign currency exchange contre 3,45¢ 8,55¢

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
December 31 December 31
2012 2011

Other current assets:

Foreign currency exchange contre $ — $ 32
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Foreign currency exchange contre $ 154 $ —
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The following tables set forth the effect of foneigurrency exchange contracts on the consolida&tensents of income for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Amount of
Location of Gain/(Loss)
Gain/(Loss) Recognized Recognized in
Amount of Gain/ Location of Amount of Gain/ in Income on Derivative  Income on Derivative
Derivatives (Loss) Recognized in Gain/(Loss) Reclassified (Loss) (Ineffective Portion (Ineffective Portion
in Cash Flow AOCI from AOCI into Reclassified from and Amount And Amount
Hedging on Derivative Income (Effective AOCI into Income Excluded from Excluded from
Relationships (Effective Portion) Portion) (Effective Portion) Effectiveness Testing Effectiveness Testing
201z 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Foreign $70¢ $(20,329 Foreign $(9,044) $1,60C Foreignexchange $ — $ —
exchange exchange (loss)/gain
contracts (loss)/gain
Amount of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income on
Derivatives not designatec Location of Gain/(Loss) Derivatives
as Hedging Instruments Recognized in Income on Derivative 2012 2011
Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange (loss)/ge $ 2,07¢ $ (5,489

8. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consist of the following:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Owned Assets:
Network equipment, computers and softw $ 63,460 $ 55,49¢
Buildings 1,40¢ 1,49¢
Land 98t 98C
Leasehold improvemen 23,91¢ 21,73
Office furniture and equipmel 10,69¢ 9,011
Motor vehicles 63¢ 82¢
Capital work in progres 1,70i 2,73
102,81! 92,28¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (65,58) (54,736
$ 37,23¢ $ 37,55(
Assets under capital lease:
Network equipment, computers and softw $ 361 $ 474
Leasehold improvemen 2,45¢ 2,541
Office furniture and equipmel 1,43 1,64t
Motor vehicles 954 882
5,201 5,54%
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (2,196 (779
$ 3,00¢ $ 477C
Fixed assets, ni $  40,23¢ $ 42,32
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Depreciation and amortization expense excludingrémadion of acquisition related intangibles foetyear ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 was $19,985, $18,665 and $13,81decteely.

Capital work in progress represents advances paidrtls acquisition of fixed assets and the cofikefl assets not yet ready to be pla
in service.

9. Capital Structure
Common Stock
The Company has one class of common stock outstgndi

During the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2821Company acquired 12,865 and 9,596 shares of constock, respectively from
employees in connection with withholding tax paytseelated to the vesting of restricted stock ftwtal consideration of $331 and $185,
respectively. The weighted average purchase pfié2®78 and $19.26, respectively was the averagfgechigh and low price of the
Company'’s share of common stock on the Nasdaq G&ddact Market on the trading day prior to thetivesdate of the shares of restricted
stock. The shares acquired are held as treasurly. sto

On September 19, 2011, the Company completed é&mffdring of its common stock. The Company sojd0D,000 shares of its
common stock and certain selling stockholders aaldggregate of 3,000,000 shares of common staclp@te of $23.00 per share less
underwriting discount. The Company received netgeds of $21,526 from the offering.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyngaguired 61,299 shares of common stock for a ¢otasideration of $1,439 in
pursuance of an option agreement between the CongahPrudential Financial, Inc. (Prudential) daiaty 1, 2004. The purchase price of
$23.47 per share was the average closing pricihéo80-day period on the Nasdaq Global Select Mamlexeding the date of exercise of
options by Prudential. The shares acquired aredmetdeasury stock.
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10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company’s Gratuity Plans in India and the Bpilies provides a lump sum payment to vested erapkgn retirement or on
termination of employment in an amount based ondébpective employeg’salary and years of employment with the Comphiailities with
regard to the Gratuity Plans are determined byaaigtlivaluation using the projected unit credit hoet. Current service costs for the Gratuity
Plan are accrued in the year to which they rekatéuarial gains or losses or prior service costany, resulting from amendments to the plans
are recognized and amortized over the remaininiggef service of the employees.

The benefit obligation has been measured as ofrbleee31, 2012. The following table sets forth thevity and the funded status of the
Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognized in the i2zowy's consolidated financial statements at theadride relevant periods:

December 31

2012 2011
Change in projected benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the yi $4,42¢ $2,88:
Service cos 1,027 79z
Interest cos 414 30z
Benefits paic (595) (339
Actuarial loss 361 351
Acquisitions — 1,08z
Effect of exchange rate chang (145) (64¢)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the \ $5,491 $4,42¢
Unfunded amour—nor-current $2,38( $3,06¢
Unfunded amour—current 91C 34¢€
Total accrued liability $3,29( $3,41¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $4,141 $3,31¢

Net gratuity cost includes the following components

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Service cost $1,027 $ 792 $52€
Interest cos 414 302 152
Expected return on plan ass (72) (24) —

Actuarial loss 12E 10z 167
Net gratuity cos $1,49¢ $1,17: $ 84t

The amount in accumulated other comprehensivethagds expected to be recognized as a componamatgferiodic benefit cost over |
next fiscal year is $149. The components of accatedlother comprehensive income that has not ls@egnized as components of net
gratuity cost in the statement of income as of bdmr 31, 2012 is as follows:

December 31

2012 2010
Net actuarial los $694 $60C
Net prior service cos 11 11
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o $70¢ $611
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The weighted average actuarial assumptions useetésmine benefit obligations and net periodicigtatcost are:

December 31

201z 2011 201
Discount rate 8.5% 9.1% 8.7%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 8.2% 8.4% 8.C%

The Company evaluates these assumptions annuakiy fmm its long-term plans of growth and industapdards. The discount rates are
based on current market yields on government séesiedjusted for a suitable risk premium.

Expected benefit payments during the year endingebBer 31

2013 $1,69¢
2014 $1,52¢
2015 $1,40¢
2016 $1,30%
2017 $1,121
2018 to 202: $2,94(

The Gratuity Plans in India are partially funded @me managed and administered by Life Insuranepdaation of India and HDFC
Standard Life Insurance Company. They calculatetireial contribution required to be made by the gamy and manage the Gratuity Plans,
including any required payouts. Fund managers natiagse funds on a cash accumulation basis andrdeaterest retrospectively on
March 31 of each year. The Company expects theretuthe Gratuity Plans to be approximately 8.5%¥%annum for the year ended
March 31, 2013.

Change in Plan Asset:

Plan assets at January 1, 2I $1,01¢
Employer contributior 1,08¢
Actual return 72
Actuarial gain 92
Effect of exchange rate chang (67
Plan assets at December 31, 2 $2,201

The Company maintains the Exl Service Inc. 401{&phRinder Section 401(k) of the Internal RevenudeCaf 1986, covering all eligible
employees, as defined. The Company may make disicaey contributions of up to a maximum of 3% offayee compensation within
certain limits. The Company has made provisionsémtributions to the 401(k) Plan amounting to $&62 and $269 during the years ende
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyiridrease in contributions in 2012 compared to 28%imarily due to the Company’s
acquisitions of OPI and Trumbull in 2011 and insehparticipation by employees.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@anhd, the Company contributed the following amouotgarious defined
contribution plans on behalf of its employees idi&) the Philippines, Bulgaria, Malaysia and the@rzRepublic:

Year ended December 31, 2C $5,62¢
Year ended December 31, 2C $5,011
Year ended December 31, 2C $3,64¢
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11. Leases

The Company finances its use of certain computeivare, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtud&ice equipment and motor
vehicles under various lease arrangements provgdithancial institutions. Future minimum lease pents under these capital leases as of
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Year ending December 3

2013 $2,03:
2014 1,492
2015 1,11¢
2016 35€
2017 9
Total minimum lease paymer 5,007
Less: amount representing inter 643
Present value of minimum lease payme 4,36¢
Less: current portio 1,68t
Long term capital lease obligatis $2,67¢

The Company conducts its operations using fadaliéased under non-cancelable operating leaseragnée that expire at various dates.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetajseements expiring after more than twelve montbset forth below:

Year ending December 3

2013 $ 8,05¢
2014 7,447
2015 5,99:
2016 2,71¢
2017 752
2018 and thereaftt 1,117

$26,07¢

The operating leases are subject to renewal pegthgiand have scheduled rent increases. The Coyrgeanounts for scheduled rent on a
straight line basis over the lease period. Rentese under both cancelable and non-cancelabletopgeleases was $17,860, $14,599 and
$9,808 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20d 2010, respectively. Deferred rent as of Decer@beg2012 and 2011 was $4,893 and
$3,815, respectively, and is included in “Accruggdenses and other current liabilities” and “Nonreat liabilities” in the consolidated balance
sheets.

12. Income Taxes
The components of income before income taxes dowisike following:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Domestic $22,04¢ $ 6,012 $ 5,96¢
Foreign 34,67« 40,63¢ 26,12¢

$56,72( $46,64¢ $32,08¢
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The income tax provision consists of the following:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Current provision
Domestic $ 4,51¢ $ 1,43 $ 4,38(
Foreign 5,63¢ 12,14( 3,492

$10,15: $13,57¢ $ 7,872

Deferred provision/(benefit

Domestic $ 4,371 $ 1,99¢ $(1,437)
Foreign 35€ (3,709 (9449)

$ 4727 $(1,709  $(2,379

Income tax provisiol $14,88:¢ $11,86¢ $ 5,49

The effective income tax rate differs from the amocomputed by applying the U.S. federal statutocpme tax rate to income before
income taxes approximately as follows:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected tax provision $19,85: $16,32" $11,23:
Change in valuation allowan (259 (1,702 367
Impact of tax holiday (3,219 (3,239 (2,579
Foreign tax rate differentii (1,077 (1,039 (363)
Deferred tax provision/(benefi 35¢€ (694) (1,179
Unrecognized tax benefits and inter (2,089 871 (2,849
State taxes, net of Federal ta: 62C 841 55C
Non-deductible expenst¢ 591 427 11E
Other 92 59 197
Tax provision $14,88¢ $11,86¢ $ 5,497

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Actsod March 31. Certain of the Company’s operatmargers in India qualified for an
exemption from corporate tax under the Indian Inedrax Act which expired on April 1, 2011. Therefgpeofits generated from the services
provided from such operations centers have becathetéxable and consequently, the Company’s tgpeease increased from 2011 and may
continue to be higher going forward.

The Company benefited from a four-year income tlidhay that expired in May 2012. The tax benefiéidendable by two successive
one-year periods on fulfillment of certain performa and investment criteria. The Company had Fedfisuch obligations and had applied to
the Philippines Economic Zone Authority (“PEZA”)rfan extension of the tax holiday. In February 2ath8 Company received a formal
communication from PEZA approving a one year extangetroactively from May 2012. The Company’s neperations center in the
Philippines, which began operations in January 2b&Befits from a separate four-year income taidaglthat can be extended at PEZA's
discretion. While the Company is reasonably certiaé PEZA will extend these tax holidays, it ispible that such extension requests may b
denied, or that these tax holidays may be conditicar removed entirely due to changes in applickdgjislation by the government of the
Philippines. Should any of these events occurCihiapany’s tax liability in the Philippines wouldkédily increase.

The Company’s operations centers in Jaipur and & ditlia, which were established in Special Ecomranaines (“SEZ”) in 2010, are
eligible for tax incentives until 2020. As parttbe OPI Acquisition, the Company also acquired apens centers in Bengaluru and Kochi,
India that are also established in SEZs. The oj&i@tenter in
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Bengaluru completed its first five years of operasi on March 31, 2012. Under the tax regulatidms Bengaluru operations center is entitled
to a 50% tax exemption on export profits for fiveays from April 1, 2012, for an additional five ygeeriod. Our tax expense for the Bengalurt
center has increased after April 1, 2012 and witlifer increase after the expiry of a further fjgar. The Company also established a new
operations center in Pune, India in June 2012, lwisitocated in an SEZ. The Company anticipatesbéishing additional operations centers in
SEZs or other tax advantaged locations in the éutur

The diluted earnings per share effect of the tdidag is $0.10, $0.10 and $0.08 for the years erdecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

The components of the deferred tax balances agoémber 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Tax credit carry forwar $ 2,93¢ $ 2,79¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,95¢ 5,06(
Sharebased compensatic 5,361 4,78
Accrued employee costs and other expe 2,66( 3,412
Net operating loss carry forwar 13,55 7,94
Unrealized exchange lo 3,20¢ 5,612
Deferred ren 851 21z
Allowance for doubtful accoun 59 48
Others 1,16( 851
$35,73¢ $30,72:
Valuation allowanct (665) (919
Deferred tax asse $35,07( $29,80:
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized exchange ga $ 70C $ —
Intangible assel 14,40: 7,08(
Deferred tax liabilities $14,47: $ 7,08(
Net deferred tax asse $20,59¢ $22,72:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaeflture tax consequences attributable to tenmyatdferences between the financial
statement carrying values of assets and liabildies their respective tax bases and operatingchrsg forwards. At December 31, 2012 and
2011, the Company performed an analysis of thergefdax asset valuation allowance for net opegdtiss carry forward for its domestic
entities. Based on this analysis, the Company coas to carry a valuation allowance on the defelardssets on net operating loss carry
forwards. Accordingly, the Company has recordedlaation allowance as of December 31, 2012 and 20$665 and $919, respectively.

As a result of the OPI Acquisition and the LandacAcquisition, the Company acquired federal antestat operating losses in the
United States. Thus, as of December 31, 2012, tilepg@ny has federal net operating loss carry forsvafdpproximately $34,700, which
expire through various years till 2032. The Compaufgderal net operating loss carry forwards atgest to certain annual utilization
limitations under Section 382 of the United Stdtgsrnal Revenue Code. The Company also has stdtkeal net operating loss carry
forwards of varying amounts, which are subjecirtothtions under the applicable rules and regutetiof those taxing jurisdictions. The
Company estimates that it will be able to utilileohthe losses before their expiration.
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Our Indian subsidiaries are liable to pay Minimuttefnative Tax (MAT) under the domestic tax laws. & December 31, 2012 and
2011 deferred income taxes related to the MAT w2832 and $2,793, respectively expiring througtious years until 2024.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, no deferred inc@xesthave been provided for the Company’s shanedittributed net earnings of
foreign operations due to management’s intentitovest such amounts indefinitely. The determinatibthe amount of such unrecognized
deferred taxes is not practical. Those earningseadtapproximately $153,906 and $125,226 as of bee 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company’s provision for income taxes also idekithe impact of provisions established for uageihcome tax positions
determined in accordance with ASC No. 748come Taxes,"as well as the related net interest. Tax expostarsnvolve complex issues and
their resolution may require extended periods. édtjh the Company believes that it has adequatserved for its uncertain tax positions, no
assurance can be given that the final tax outcdntieese matters will not be different. The Compaudjusts these reserves in light of changing
facts and circumstances, such as the closingaf audit or the refinement of an estimate. To titerg that the final tax outcome of these
matters differs from the amounts recorded, sudertifices will impact the provision for income taxeshe period in which such determinat
is made.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe gross unrecognized tax benefits from JanbiaP012 through December 31,
2012:

Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 5,324
Increases related to prior year tax positi —

Decreases related to prior year tax posit (2,24%)
Increases related to current year tax posit 33¢
Decreases related to current year tax posit (339
Effect of exchange rate chang (60)
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 3,01¢

The unrecognized tax benefits as of December 3112 20$3,019, if recognized, would impact the efifextax rate.

The Company has recognized interest and penaft®®3oduring the year ended December 31, 2012,wikicncluded in the income tax
provision in the consolidated statements of incoht® unrecognized tax benefits may increase ordserin the next twelve months depen
on the Company’s tax positions.

13. Stock Based Compensation

In 2006, the Company instituted the ExIService lfad, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan (the 2006 P¥amich replaced the 2003 Plan.
The 2006 Plan covers all of the employees of they@my. Under the 2006 Plan, the Committee may gnaatds of nonqualified stock
options, incentive stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock, restricted stock ursteck bonus awards, performance compens
awards (including cash bonus awards) or any contibmaf the foregoing.

The Committee determines which employees are #digibreceive the equity awards, the number oftgcqwards to be granted, the
exercise price, the vesting period and the exepssi®d. The vesting period for the equity awaslied is determined on the date of the grant
and is non-transferable during the life of the ggaivard. The majority of options expire ten yefaosn the date of grant and generally vest
incrementally over a period of four years from tlage of grant with 10% vesting at the end of yaar, 20% vesting at the end of year two,
30% vesting at the end of year three and 40% \gstitthe end of year four. Pursuant to the 2006, Rtee Company reserved 3,399,384 share
of common stock (in addition to the available pob829,854 shares from the 2003 plan) for the gngraf
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equity awards. If an employee resigns or is terteithathe employee must exercise any vested optiiths 90 days after termination or the
vested options are forfeited. At a special meetihthe Company’s stockholders held on January 8992the Company’s stockholders
approved, among other things, an amendment tofé Rlan to increase the number of shares of itsnan stock issuable there under by
4,000,000 shares, which brought the total numbshafes reserved under the plan to 7,729,238.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedamae under ASC No. 718, using the modified prospechethod of transition. Und
the provisions of this guidance, the estimatedvalue of shardyased awards granted under stock incentive plaesdgnized as compensat
expense over the vesting period. Using the modfredpective method, compensation expense is remmtjbeginning with the effective date
of adoption of this guidance for all share baseghpnts (i) granted after the effective date of didopand (ii) granted prior to the effective d
of adoption and that remain unvested on the dateloption.

The following costs related to the Company’s stbeked compensation plan are included in the catatelil statement of income:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cost of revenues $1,89: $1,63¢ $1,59:
General and administrative expen 4,557 4,58¢ 3,83¢
Selling and marketing expens 2,972 3,23¢ 3,06(
Total $9,41¢ $9,46: $8,491

The fair value of each stock option granted to @ygés is estimated on the date of grant using ekBScholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life (years 5.3¢ 5.5¢ 4.6t

Risk free interest rai 0.97% 2.1€% 1.84%
Volatility 40% 40% 44%

The estimated expected term of options granted&as based on historical experience since Octdl#g, 2vhich is representative of the
expected term of the options. Volatility has bealtulated based on the volatility of the Compammgmmon stock and the volatility of stocks
of comparative companies. The risk-free interet# tlaat the Company uses in the option valuatiodehis based on U.S. treasury zemsipon
bonds with a remaining term similar to the expectezth of the options.

The Company does not anticipate paying any cadtatids in the foreseeable future and therefore ailsexpected dividend yield of z¢
in the option valuation model. The Company is rezgito estimate forfeitures at the time of grartd eevise those estimates in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseigsites. The Company uses historical data to estiat-vesting option forfeitures and records
stock-based compensation expense only for thosedawlzat are expected to vest. All stock-based payrawards are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service periods efaWards, which are generally the vesting periods.
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Stock option activity under the Company’s stocknglés shown below:

Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Aggregate Remaining

Average Contractual

Number of Exercise Intrinsic

Options Price Value Life (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 3,188,06! $ 11.52
Grantec 326,31¢ 18.0:
Exercisec (278,119 10.8¢
Forfeited (160,650 13.51]
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,075,61 $ 12.13%
Grantec 360,86 20.41
Exercisec (342,16¢) 11.97
Forfeited (64,190 10.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 3,030,12i $ 13.2%
Grantec 416,12¢ 25.3¢€
Exercisec (793,059 12.11
Forfeited (198,570 17.3¢

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,454,63 $ 15.3( $27,55¢ 6.3¢€

Vested and exercisable at December 31, : 1,289,42 13.4¢ $16,82: 5.4C

Available for grant at December 31, 2C 2,229,61i

The unrecognized compensation cost for unvestadrapas of December 31, 2012, is $5,158, whickieeted to be expensed over a
weighted average period of 2.41 years. The weigatedlage fair value of options granted during tharg ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar
2010 was $9.43, $8.16 and $7.10, respectively.tdtad grant date fair value of options vested duitime years ended December 31, 2012, :

and 2010 was $3,000, $3,099 and $3,481, respectiVee aggregate intrinsic value of options exemtiduring the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 was $12,020, $4,180 and $2ddpectively.

The following table summarizes the status of then@any’s stock options outstanding and stock opticasted and exercisable at
December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Vested and Exercisabl
Weighted-
Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Shares Price Shares Price
$0.12 to $0.17 10,00( $ 0.1z 10,00( $ 0.1z
$8.00 to $15.01 1,225,08: 9.87 818,90¢ 10.3¢
$15.01 to $24.0i 860,50¢ 19.0¢ 457,87( 19.2:
$24.01 to $36.1! 359,04( 25.1¢ 2,65( 24.81
Total 2,454,63. $ 15.3( 1,289,42 $ 13.4¢

Subsequent to December 31, 2012, the Company dgradt801 stock options and 437,880 restricted stimits to its employees and
directors.
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

An award of restricted stock is a grant of shatggext to conditions and restrictions set by then@uttee. The grant or the vesting of an
award of restricted stock may be conditioned upsomise to the Company or its affiliates or upon ditiainment of performance goals or other
factors, as determined in the discretion of the @dttee. The Committee may also, in its discretjgmoyvide for the lapse of restrictions impo
upon an award of restricted stock. Holders of aardwef restricted stock may have, with respechéorestricted stock granted, all of the rights
of a stockholder, including the right to vote andeceive dividends.

The Committee is authorized to award restrictedkstmits to participants. The Committee establigthegerms, conditions and
restrictions applicable to each award of restrictedk units, including the time or times at whieltricted stock units will be granted or vestec
and the number of units to be covered by each awdrelterms and conditions of each restricted saveard will be reflected in a restricted
stock unit agreement.

Any cash or in-kind dividends paid with respectitivested shares of restricted stock and restrgttk units are withheld by the
Company and paid to the holder of such sharesstficted stock, without interest, only if and whstrch shares of restricted stock and restr
stock units vest. Any unvested shares of restristeck and restricted stock units are immediateffefted without consideration upon the
termination of holder's employment with the Compamyts affiliates. Accordingly, the Company’s usted restricted stock and restricted
stock units do not include non-forfeitable righdasdividends or dividend equivalents and are theesfmt considered as participating securities
for purposes of earnings per share calculationsyaunt to the two-class method.

Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activitgler the Company’s stock plans is shown below:

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Intrinsic Intrinsic

Number Value Number Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 379,81( $ 21.7¢ 28,000 $ 14.0¢
Grantec — — 643,81¢ 18.1¢
Vested (134,24 19.2¢ (28,000 14.0¢
Forfeited (9,687%) 15.6¢€ (19,009 18.4:
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 235,88! $ 23.4i 624,81 $ 18.1:
Grantec — — 460,97 20.8¢
Vested (152,965 19.0Z (108,67() 18.3¢
Forfeited (19,089 19.7( (37,459 18.8¢
Outstanding at December 31, 20 63,83: $ 18.41] 939,65¢ $ 19.4(
Grantec — — 389,05( 25.07
Vested (55,726 18.2¢ (198,84 19.2%
Forfeited (2,907 23.8:2 (103,959) 21.41
Outstanding at December 31, 20 5,200 $ 17.5¢ 102591 $ 21.3¢

* Excludes 24,000 restricted stock units vestednduboth the years ended December 31, 2012 and @2#1000 and 120,000 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively) for wthehunderlying common stock is yet to be issi

The fair value of restricted stock and restrictextls units is generally the market price of the @amy’s shares on the date of grant. A
December 31, 2012, unrecognized compensation €84i60069 is expected to be expensed over a welghterage period of 2.28 years. The
weightedaverage fair value of restricted stock and restdatock units under the 2006 Plan granted duhiagéars ended December 31, 2(
2011 and 2010 was $25.07, $20.84 and $18.14, réaglgc The total grant date fair value of restidtstock and restricted stock units vested
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd was $7,010, $5,456 and $2,913, respectively.
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Advisory Board Option:

During the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 @h€,2he Company recorded compensation expensg2of21 and $58,
respectively, related to stock options granted éonmoers of the Company’s advisory board. There anenvested stock options granted to the
advisory board members as of December 31, 2012.

14. Geographical Information

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Revenues
United State! $320,24¢ $258,80° $182,04:
United Kingdom 89,48: 79,41¢ 61,43¢
Rest of World 33,20! 22,31¢ 9,27¢

$442,93( $360,54: $252,75:

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
Fixed assets, ne
India $ 30,42: $ 35,78
United State! 4,41¢ 1,40¢
Philippines 4,36: 3,94¢
Rest of World 1,03¢ 1,17¢
$ 40,23¢ $ 42,32

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Fixed Asset Commitments

At December 31, 2012, the Company has committesppémd approximately $3,392 under agreements tdpsecfixed assets. This
amount is net of capital advances paid in respktttase purchases.

Other Commitments

Certain units of the Company'’s Indian subsidiaviese established as 100% Export-Oriented units ntngeSoftware Technology Parks
of India (“STPI") scheme promulgated by the Goveemtof India which provided the Company with certamicentives on imported and
indigenous capital goods on fulfillment of certaonditions. Although the corporate tax incentivader the STPI scheme are no longer
available to the Company, the units are requirddlfdl such conditions for a limited time. In thevent that these units are unable to meet the
prescribed conditions over the specified period,Glompany may be required to refund those incemtil@ng with penalties and fines. The
Company’s management believes, however, that i@t have in the past satisfied and will contitmeatisfy the required conditions.

The Company’s operations centers in Manila, thdiftines are registered with the Philippines Ecoimmorione Authority (“PEZA”). The
registration provides the Company with certaindlsncentives on the import of capital goods arguies ExI Philippines to meet certain
performance and investment criteria. One of the @amyg’s operations centers in the Philippines béegfrom a four-year income tax holiday
that expired in May 2012. In February 2013, the @any received a one-year extension retroactivelynfiay 2012 and expects to file
another extension request after which no furthézresions are presently permitted. The Company’s ovations center in the Philippines,
which began operations in January 2012, benefits fa separate four-year income tax holiday thatbeaextended at PEZA's discretion.
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Contingencies

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations regtiivat any international transaction involving @ssted enterprises be at an arm’s-lengtl
price. Accordingly, the Company determines the appate pricing for the international transacti@msong its associated enterprises on the
basis of a detailed functional and economic ansliysiolving benchmarking against transactions anmentgies that are not under common
control. The tax authorities have jurisdiction éview this arrangement and in the event that tletgrchine that the transfer price applied was
not appropriate, the Company may incur increasedldhility, including accrued interest and pengdti The Company is currently involved in
disputes with the Indian tax authorities over thpl@ation of some of its transfer pricing policies some of its subsidiaries. Further, the
Company and its U.S. subsidiary are engaged ifitigation with the income-tax authorities in India the issue of permanent establishment.

The aggregate disputed amount demanded from thg@&uonrelated to its transfer pricing issues foiows years ranging from tax years
2003 to 2009 and its permanent establishment issuging from tax years 2003 to 2008 as of DecerBlheP012 and 2011 is $18,624 and
$19,228, respectively of which the Company hasadlyanade payment or provided bank guarantee textemt $14,715 and $14,156,
respectively. Amounts paid as deposits in respestich assessments aggregating to $12,307 andé®lastof December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, are included in “Other assets” andwambs deposited for bank guarantees aggregati#ig,#d8 and $2,494 as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively, are included in “Retstl cash” in the non-current assets sectionefdbmpany’s consolidated balance sheets ¢
of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Based on advice from its Indian tax advisors, #ws underlying its position and its experiencenlitese types of assessments, the
Company believes that the probability of crystalfian of these liabilities is remote and accordjrghs not accrued any amount with respect t
these matters in its consolidated financial statemd& he Company does not expect any impact fr@settassessments on its future income ta
expense. There is a likelihood that the Companyhinigceive similar orders for subsequent yearsnivilnese disputes are resolved, the In
tax authorities may still serve additional orders.
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Name of Subsidiary

Business Process Outsourcing (India) Private Lidr

Business Process Outsourcing L
Business Process Outsourcing, L

ex| Service.com (India) Private Limite
Ex| Support Services Private Limit

Ex| Service Germany, Gmb

ExIService (U.K.) Limitec

ExIService Czech Republic S.R.
ExIService ADAPT, LLC

ExIService Mauritius Limitec

ExIService Philippines, In

ExIService Romania Private Limited S.R
ExIService SEZ BPO Solutions Private Limit
Ex| Service.com, LLC

Inductis (India) Private Limite

Inductis (Singapore) PTE Limite
Landacorp, Inc

OPI Limited

Outsource Partners International E;
Outsource Partners International L
Outsource Partners International Private Lim
Outsource Partners International SDN B
Outsource Partners International, |
Professional Data Management Again, |
Trumbull Services, LLC

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

India

Mauritius
Delaware

India

India

Germany
United Kingdom
Czech Republi
Delaware
Mauritius
Philippines
Romania

India

Delaware

India
Singapore
Delaware
Mauritius
Bulgaria
United Kingdom
India

Malaysia
Delaware
Delaware
Connecticu



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-179098) of ExIService Holdings, Inc

(2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33--139211) pertaining to the 2006 Omnibus Award PlaBxdService Holdings, Inc.; ar

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15F@#staining to the 2003 Stock Option Plan, 20GHdrStock Employee Option Plan,
2006 Omnibus Award Plan, 2006 Omnibus India Subfiland 2006 Omnibus India Subplan 2 of ExIServiodditgs, Inc.;

of our reports dated March 7, 2013, with respethéoconsolidated financial statements of ExISeroldings, Inc. and subsidiaries, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting of ExIService Holdings, Inc. and subsidéarincluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-
K) for the year ended December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 7, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rohit Kapoor, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicddiws, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlaet inaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officers anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 7, 2013 /s/ Rohit Kapoor

Rohit Kapoor
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vishal Chhibbar, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report of ExIServicddiws, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donfitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niaadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoige designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in case of an annual report) tlaet inaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 7, 2013 /sl Vishal Chhibbar

Vishal Chhibbay
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServigeldings, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for tremyended December 31, 2012 as filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortd#tie hereof (the Report), I, Rohit Kapoor, Presidenl Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01.2% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sask@mnley Act of 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Rohit Kapoor
Rohit Kapoor
Chief Executive Office

March 7, 201:



Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ExIServigeldings, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-K for tremyended December 31, 2012 as filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the Report), I, Vishal Chhibbar, Cliiefancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtewpf 2002, that:

(@) the Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ Vishal Chhibbar
Vishal Chhibba
Chief Financial Office

March 7, 201:



